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BUILDING A STRONGER ECONOMY

KLJ Resources Limited Wide Marketing Network
is engaged in Import, and Storage Centers
Marketing & Located in all Major
Strategic Locations across
India

Distribution of
petrochemicals,
derivatives & solvents
in India

KLJ Resources Limited is engaged in importing of petrochemicals & blending of Base Oil in India. Product range
covers a range of Paraffins, Linear Alkyl Benzene, Glycol Ether, Oxo-Alcohols, Aromatics, Ketones, Monomers, Esters
& Amines to name a few. The Company has strong tie-ups with leading global players to ensure cost effective and
uninterrupted supply to its customers. The Company has Pan India presence of marketing network with storage tanks,
Drumming and Distribution facilities etc.
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KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED

CIN: L67120WB1986PLC041487
Registered Office: 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata, West Bengal -7006 017
Telephone: (011)-25459706, 45371433, E-mail: kljresources@kliindia.com;
Website: www.kljresources.in

NOTICE OF 38" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 38" Annual General Meeting of the members of KL Rescurces Limited will be held on
Saturday, 28" September, 2024 at 10:00 A M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan
Building, 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata — 700 017 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Item No. 1- Adoption of Andited Standalone Annual Financial Statement

To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone annual financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resclution: :

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone annual financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31
March, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby
received, considered and adopted.”

Item Neo. 2- Adoption of Audited Consolidated Annual Financial Statement

To receive, consider and adopt the audited consolidated annual financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2024 and the report of the Auditors thereon and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated annual financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2024 and the report of the Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby received, considered and

adopted.” '

Item No. 3- Declaration of Dividend

To declare a fina} dividend on the equity shares of the company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 and in this
tegard, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT a final dividend at the rate of Rs. 0.25 (Twenty five paisa only) per equity share of Rs. 10 (Ten
Rupees) each, be and is hereby declared for the financial year ended 31™ March, 2024 and the same be paid out of the
profits of the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2024.»

Item No. 4- Re-Appointment of Director

To appeint a Director in place of Smt. Kalpana Seth (DIN 06949098), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
herself for re-appointment and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Kalpana Seth (DIN:
06949098), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is
hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

item No. 5- Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), the remuneration payabie to M/s Yogesh Gupta & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
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Number 000373), appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
company for the financial year ending 31* March 2025, amounting to Rs. 2,00,000 (Rupees Two Lacs onlv) plus incidental
expenses and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and js hereby
approved.”

Item 6: Appointment of Sh. Babulal Bhutoria (DIN: 07143965) as a Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resclution as an Qrdinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule 1V and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,
2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Sh. Babulal Bhutoria (DIN: (7143965), who was appointed as an Additicnal Director of the Company in the capacity of
Non-executive Director, effective from 15" December, 2023 by the Board Directors and who holds office upto the date of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as
a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matter and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Item 7: Re-appointment of Sh. Ram Parkash Makan (DIN: 08574991} as an Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,
2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Sh. Ram Parkash Makan (DIN: 08574991) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at the 34"
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30™ September, 2020 for a term of 5(five) consecutive years
commencing from 14" November, 2019 to 13" November, 2024 (both days inclusive) and who being eligible for re-
appointment as an Independent Director and has given his consent along with a declaration that he meets the criterja for
independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1Xb) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in respect of
whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
proposing his candidature for the office of Director and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on
the Board of the Company commencing from 14" November, 2024 upto 13" November, 2029 (both days inclusive).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matter and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED

{Ajai Kgrkar Gupta)
Company Secretary
Membership No.; FCS 8020

3" September, 2024
New Delhi
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1) A member entitied to attend and vote at the 38" Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The
instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting,

NOTES:

2) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent of the fotal paid up share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than
ten percent of the total paid up share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appeint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove
his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. :

3) A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), relating to the Special Business. to be
transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

4) Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map, showing directions to reach the meéting venue are annexed to the Notice.

5) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the
Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s) of the
representative(s) authorized under the said Board Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6} The Nofice convening the 38" Annual General Mecting has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www kliresources.in.

Saturday, 28" September, 2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of Annual General Meeting, for the financial vear
2023-24.

8) The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an electronic voting system which will
include remote ¢-voting as prescribed by the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as presently in
force. Information and instructions including details of User ID and password relating to e-voting are provided in the Notice
under Note No. 23. '

| 9) The Final Dividend for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2024, as recommended by the Board, if approved at the

October, 2024 to those members who names appear in the Register of Members of the Company as on the Book Closure
date, as under;

* In respect of equity shares held in physical form, to all those members whose names appear in the company’s
Register of Members after giving effect to valid transfers in respect of transfer requests lodged with the company
on or before the close of business hours on Saturday, 21 September, 2024, :

* In respect of equity shares held in electronic form, to all beneficial owners of the shares, as per details. furnished by
the depositories for this purpose, as of the close of business hours on Saturday, 21% September, 2024.

10)In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Smt. Kalpana Seth (DIN: 06949098) Director, retires by rotation at the Meeting and
| being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends her re-appointment,
; Details of the Director retiring by rotation, as required to be provided pursuant to the provisions of (i} the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard

on General Meetings (“S5-2") are provided herein below:

Name Smt. Kalpana Seth
i Dhate of Birth - 21° September, 1962
1 Age 61 _gfears
Date of first Appointment on Board 14" August, 2014
Qualification Graduate

| Experience (including expertise in specific functional area)/ | 36 vears of experience in Marketing
Brief Resume _

Remuneration last drawn NIL

No. of Meetings attended during the vear 7 (Seven)
Relationship  with  other Directors/Key ~ Managerial | NIL
Personnel [

[ T T

7) The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company will be closed from, Monday 23" September, 2024 10

Annual General Meeting, will be paid subject to tax deducted a source, wherever applicable, on or afier Thursday, 3™ -
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Directorships held in other public companies {excluding | Adilakshmi Enterprises Limited (formerly known as
foreign and section 8 companjes) KL} Plastics Limited)

Membership/Chairmanship of committees of other public | Chairman of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in
companies  (includes only Audit Committee and | Adilakshmi Enterprises Limited

stakeholders’ Relationship Committee)
Number of Shares held in the Company 900

11) Members / Proxies / Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly completed Attendance Slip enclosed
herewith to attend the AGM.

12) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to
vote at the Meeting.

13) All relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Cornpany on all working days (i.e., except Sundays and Public Holidays) during business hours up 1o the date of the
Meeting. The aforesaid documents will also be available for inspection by members at the Meeting.

14) Members may also note that SEBI vide its Circular dated 25T January, 2022 has mandated listed companies to issue
securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. issue of duplicate share certificates; claim
form; unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of share certificates; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of share
certificates; consolidation of share certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. In view of the same and to eliminate
all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to
dematerialise the shares held by them in physica) form.

15) The Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (the “RTA”) for its share registry (both, physical as well as electronic)
is R & D Infotech Private Limited, having its registered office at 15C, Naresh Mitra Sarant, Kolkata West Bengal — 700026.

16) Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to their
Depository Participants (DPs) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company by sending a request in form
ISR-1 at KLJ House, 8A, Shivaji Marg, Najafgarh Road, New Delhi- 110015 or by email to kliresources@kljindia.com
from their registered email id.

17) Members holding shares in electronic mode:
(a) are required to submit their Permanent Account Number (PAN) to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts.

(b) May contact with their respective Depository Participants (DPs) for availing the nomination facility.

18y Members holding shares in physical mode;

(a) are required to submit their Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details to the Company/RTA, if not
registered with the Company as mandated by SEBI.

(b) are advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in the company by sending the nomination form (SH-
13) to the comparny.

19) Members who have not registered/updated their e-maijl addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode or with
their DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode, are requested to do so for receiving all future communications from the
Company including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars electronically.

20) Members who hold shares in physical mode in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names
are requested to send the share certificates to RTA, for consolidation into a single folio.

21) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

1 22) Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the Company well in advance so as to
enable the management to keep the information ready.

23) Information and instructions relating to e-voting are as under:

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , the Company is pleased to provide to
its members 2 facility to exercise their rigit to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed at the Annual General Meeting by
electronic means. The members may cast their vote(s) using an electronic voting system from a place other than the venue
of the Meeting (‘remote e-voting”).
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vi,

vii.

ii. The facility for voting through physical ballot papers will be made available at the Meeting and members attending the

Meeting who have not cast their vote(s) by remote e-voting will be abie to vote at the Meeting through poll “by physical
ballot’.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on
the cut-off date i.e. 21% September, 2024. A person whose name appears in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote
e-voting as well as voting at the meeting through permitted means.

. The members who have cast their vote(s) by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast

their vote(s) again,

. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Sh. Ganesh Dutt Sharma, 2 Practicing Company Secretary, New

Delhi (Membership No. A43348) as Scrutinizer, who has submitted to the Company his willingness to act as such as a
Scrutinizer and to scrutinize the remote e-voting and physical poll process at the Annual General Meeting venue in a fair
and transparent manner., _ .

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date shall only be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. A person, who is not a
member as on the cut-off date, should treat this Notice for information purpose only.

The Scrutinizer will, afier the conclusion of voting at the Meeting, scrutinize the votes cast at the Meeting and votes cast
through remote e-voting, make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same to the Chairman. The result
declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report will be communicated to the Stock Exchange.

i. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

The members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through e-voting services provided by the
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-
voting are given herein below.

b} The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 25" September, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 27" September,

"

2024 at 5:00 p.m. During this period the shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 21" September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting
will not be permitted beyond the aforesaid date and time and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled upon expiry of
aforesaid period. '

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

d) Click on Shareholders.
¢) Now Enter your User 1D

.
jii.

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company,

f) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

2

h)

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www_evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (applicable for both
| demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

| Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Partcipant are
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the
PAN field.

- In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0°s before the
number affer the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then énter RAQ0000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank - Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
Details OR demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Date of Birth If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id /

(DOB) folic number in the Dividend Bank details field,




i) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tah.

j) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members
helding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting
for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

k) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.
) Click on the EVSN for KL Resources Limited.

m) On the voting page, you wiil see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO? for voting.
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution. .

n) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

¢} After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™. A confirmation box will be displayed. If
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your
vote.

p) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote,
- q) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the voting page.

1) Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click
on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

s} Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-
Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
voting on your mobile,

)} Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians:

¢ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate,

¢ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evotingt@cdslindia.com, :

* After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

» The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. ) '

* A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian,
if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

u) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and e-
voting manual available at www.evotingindia com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com
or call on Toll Free No.: 1800 22 5533. In case you need further assistance, you may contact Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta,
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company at Telephone No. (+91) 11-45371433 or at e-mail id:
kljresources@kljindia.com,




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013
ITEM NG. 5
Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3™ September, 2024 has
approved the appointment of M/s Yogesh Gupta & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration Number 000373) as
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the company for the financial year ending 31% March, 2023, at a
£ remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000 (Rupees Two Lacs only) plus incidental expenses and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses that may be incurred by them during the course of audit,

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the

members of the company.
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested
in the resolution mentioned at Item No. 5 of the Notice, except to the extent of their shareholding in the company, if any.

ITEM NO. 6

Sh. Babulal Bhutoria (DIN: 07143965) has been inducted as an Additional Director on the Board effective from 15%
December, 2023 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and he holds office up to the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. In the interest of the Company, it shall be expedient that Sh. Babulal
Bhutoria be appointed as a director of the Company, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Details of Sh. Babulal
Bhutoria as required to be provided pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“5S-27) are

provided herein below:

Name Sh. Babulal Bhutoria
Date of Birth 23" December, 1956
Age 67 Years
Date of first Appointment on Board 15" December, 2023
Qualification 127 pass
Experience (including expertise in specific functional | 30 years in the field of Chemicals Industry
area)/ Brief Resume _ '
Remuneration last drawn NIL
No. of Meetings attended during the year 2 {Two)
| Relationship with other Directors/Key Managerial NIL
Personnel
Directorships held in other companies 1(one)

KLJ Polymers and Chemicals Limited
Membership/Chairmanship of - committees of other | KLJ Polymers and Chemicals Limited

companies Membership:

+ Audit Commiitee

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee
» Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Chairmanship: Nil

Number of Shares held in the Company NIL

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out at item no.6 of the notice for approval of the members.

Except Sh. Babulal Bhutoria, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their respective
relatives i3 concerned or interested in the resolution mentioned at Item No. 6 of the Notice, except to the extent of their

shareholding in the company, if any.

ITEM NO. 7

Sh, Ram Parkash Makan (DIN: 08574991), was appointed as ai Independent Director of the Company by the Members at ’
34® Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30" September, 2020 for a term of S(five) consecutive vears {
|

]

commencing from 14™ November, 2019 to 13" November, 2024 (both days inclusive) and is eligible for re-appointment for
a second term on the Board of the Company. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (*“NRC’), the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 3% September, 2024, has proposed the re-appoiniment of
Sh. Ram Parkash Mazkan as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive vears

[T —
o Page 8




Sh. Ram Parkash Makan as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years
commencing from 14" November, 2024 upto 13" November, 2029 (both days inclusive), not lable to retire by rotation, for
the approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution.

Details of Sh. Ram Parkash Makan as required to be provided pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings (“S8-27) are provided herein below:

Name Sh. Ramn Parkash Makan
Date of Birth 20" June, 1950

Age 74 Years

Date of first Appointment on Board 14" November, 2019
Qualification 12" pass

Expetience (including expertise in specific functional 35 years in the field of Transportation and Real
area) Brief Resume Estate sector
Remuneration last drawn NIL

No. of Meetings attended during the year 6 (Six)

Relationship with other Directors/Key Managerial NIL

Personnel

Directorships held in other companies : NIL
Membership/Chairmanship of committees of other | NIL

conpanies

Number of Shares held in the Company NIL

The Board recommends the special resolution as set out at item no.7 of the notice for approval of the members.

Except Sh. Ram Parkash Makan, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their respective
relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution mentioned at Item No. 7 of the Notice, except to the extent of their
shareholding in the company, if any. '

By Order of the Board of Directors
For KL.J RESOURCES LIMITED

Membership No.: FCS 8020

3" September, 2024
New Delhi
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KLJ RESOQURCES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 8 Cammac Street, Kolkata, West Bengal — 700 017
CIN: L67120WB1986PL.C041487

Ferm No, MGT-11
Proxy Form
[FPursnant to section 105(6) of the Companies 4ct, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
38" Annual General Meeting — Saturday, 28" September, 2024 at 10:00 A.M.

Name of the member(s):
Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

Folio/ DP 1D - Client D No.:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name:............o..o....
AIess: oot e
E-mailld:
Signature: ...................cccoee, oF failing him/her

[2e]

Name: .
Address: oo
E-mailld: oo
Signature: ..oovvvniiiiininaiennn., , or failing him/her

3, Name: oo,
Address: ..o e
E-mailld: e
Signature: ...,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll} for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 38" Annual general meeting of the company to be held on
Saturday, 28" September, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. at 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan Building, 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata ~ 700017 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolations as are indicated below:

; R-gs.;l‘;ft.mn‘ --f-:sz'l)é'écvrifxpion' R o Ll '. Sfor 'agaihst
- ORDINARY BUSINESS -7
| Adoption of Standalone Annual Financial Statement and the Reports of the Board of Directors
' and Auditors thereon, for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2024.

= Adoption of Conselidated Annual Financial Statement and the Report of the Auditors thereon, for |
the Financial Year ended 31™ March, 2024.

3 To declare a final dividend (@ Rs. (.25 per equity share of Rs. 10 each for the financial year 2023

’ 24,
4. Re-appointment of Smt, Kalpana Seth (DIN: 06949098), as a Director.
T b e [’ SPECIAL'BUSINESS e

3. Ta ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31" March, 2025
(Ordinary Resolution}.
Appointment of Sh. Babulal Bhutoria (DIN: 07143965), as a Director of the company (Ordinary

6. Resolution).

- Re-appointment of Sh. Ram Parkash Makan (DIN: 08574991) as an Independeat Director of the

- Company (Special Resolution).

. . Affix
Signed this...cooei i e e day of oo L2024 Revenue
Stamp
S.«_znamre of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:
L. This form of proxy i onder 1o be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Otfice of ihe Company, not less than 4%
hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. A Proxy nead not be a member of the Company,

3. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, piease refer to the Notice of the 38® Annual General Mecting.

s
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KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED

i Regd. Office: 8 Cammac Street, Kolkata, West Bengal — 700 017
CIN: L67120WBI1986PLC041487

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Registered Folio No. /DP 1D Ne. /Client ID No.

(N Y R T A Y I I O

No. of shares held;

N N O O I O Y

1 certify that T am a member/proxy/authorized representative for the member of the company. | hereby record my presence
at the 38" Annual general meeting of the company on Saturday, 28" September, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. at 22, Ground Floor,
Shanti Niketan Building, 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata — 700 017

Name of the member/proxy Signature of shareholder / Proxy
{in BLOCK letters)

NOTE: Please fill the Folio/DP ID-Client ID No. and name and sign the Attendance Skp and hand it over at the
Attendance verification Counter at the ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

Page -} 1




Route Map to the Venue of 38" Annual General Meeting of KLJ Resources

Limited
Fenue of meefing: 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan Building, 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

Gocgle Maps
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
KL.J Resources Limited

Your Company’s Directors are pleased to present the 38" Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited
Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31™ March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (STANDALONE)

(Rupees in lakhs)

PARTICULARS Yeur ended Year ended

31" March, 2024 31" March, 2023
Total Revenue 3,65,710.72 3,82,13543
Total Expenses 3,60,638.63 3,86,116.25
Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation and Tax 9,337.38 (1,431.39)
Finance Cost 3,618.14 1,879.33
Depreciation 647.15 670,10
Profit before Tax 5,072.09 {3,980.82)
Tax Expenses (1,277.94) 1,050.50
Profit after Tax 3,794.15 (2,930.32)
Other Comprehensive Income 504.50 138.56
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 4,298.65 {2,791.76)
Eamnings Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) 3533 (27.28)

Z. PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
During the year under review, the Company has earned total revenue of Rs. 3,65,710.72 lakhs as compared to Rs,
3,82,135.43 lakhs in the corresponding previous year. EBIDTA for the year was Rs.9,337.38 lakhs as compared to Rs.
(1,431.39) lakhs for the previous year. Profit for the year stood at Rs. 4,298.65 lakhs as against loss of Rs. (2,791.76) lakhs
in the previous year.

The state of affairs of the Company is presented as part of the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part-
of the Annual Report.

3. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directars of the company in its meeting held on 27™ May, 2024 has recommended a final dividend of Rs.
0.25 per equity share of Rs. 10 each to be paid out of the profits of the company for financial year 2023-24. The total
dividend outgo for the financial year 2023-24, amounts to Rs. 26.85 lakhs. The payment of final dividend is, subject to
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company and shall be subject to tax deducted
at source,

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year 2023-24 is carried to the Retained earnings.

5. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
As required under provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter, the Act), and rules issued there under read with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter “SEBI Regulations™), Consolidated
Financial Statement of the Company and its subsidiaries form part of the Annual Report. The annual accounts of the
Subsidiary Companies and the related detailed information shall be made available to Shareholders of the Company upon
their request and it shall also be available on the website of the company i.e. www.kliresources.in.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE
DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT
No material changes and commitments have occurred afer the close of the year till the date of this Report, which affect
the financial position of the Company.

7. CHANGE INNATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year under review,

- )




8.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
The Company has following Nine (9) wholly Owned subsidiaries as on 31% March, 2024.
St Name of the Company Status
No.
1 | Altamonte Townships and Resorts Private Limited Wholiy Owned Subsidiary
2 Brokenhills Townships and Resorts Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
3 Springdale Townships and Resorts Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
4 Valley View Townships Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
5 KLJ Resources, DMCC Wholly Owned Subsidiary
6 Sadhok Real Estate Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
7 AKX Buildtech Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
8 KLI Speciality Chemicals Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary
9 Lakeland Chemicals (India) Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary

During the year under review, the Company has transferred its investment consisting of 4100 number of equity shares held
in its Associate Company “Hamlog Plastic Goods Private Limited” on 22™ February, 2024, Pursuant to the said transfer of
shares Hamlog Plastic Goods Private Limited has ceased to be an associate of the Company.

As required under the first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, a separate statement
containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the
consolidated financial statement of the company. The said form also highlights the financial performance of each of the
subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial statement of the company, as required under Rule &(1) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

10.

Smt. Kalpana Seth (DIN 06949098), Director of the Company retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board of
Directors recommends her re-appointment. A brief resume of Smt. Kalpana Seth proposed to be re-appointed, as stipulated
under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards on General
Meetings (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in explanatory statement to the notice
forming part of the Annual Report.

During the year under review, Sh. Ranjit Ray Bantlia (DIN: 08725401), Independent Director of the Company had
demised on 18th September, 2023. Sh. Babulal Bhutoria (DIN: 07143965) was appointed as an Additional Director by the
Board effective from 15th December, 2023, to fill the vacancy caused due to demise of Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia and he is
required to be regularized as a Director in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors recommends his appointment. A brief resume of Sh. Babulal Bhutoria
proposed to be appointed, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015
and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (88-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is
provided in explanatory statement to the notice forming part of the Annual Report.

Sh. Ram Parkash Makan (DIN: 08574991) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5(five)
years commencing from 14th November, 2019 and his present term ends on 13th November, 2024. Sh. Ram Parkash
Makan is eligible for re-appointment for a second term as per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
and the Board of Directors recommend his re-appointment for a second term of 5(five) years. A brief resume of Sh. Ram
Parkash Makan proposed to be re-appointed, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (8S-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India is provided in explanatory statement to the notice forming part of the Annual Report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

7 (Seven) meetings of the Board were held during the financial year 2023-24. For details of the meetings of the Board,
please refer the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual Report. The Company has the following
Board Committees:

. Audit Committee

. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

. Corporate Social Responsibility Commitige

1
2
3
4

Compaosition and other details of the Board Committees are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms
part of the Annual Report,
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1. BOARD AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Company has a policy for performance evaluation of the board, committees and individual Directors {inctuding
independent directors} which include criteria for performance evaluation of Non-executive Directors and Executive
Directors. Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations, the board carried out
an anpual evaiuation of its performance as well as of its committees and individual Directors, including Chairman of the
board. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the commitiee members
on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. In a separate
meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the
Company was evaluated.

12. ANNUAL RETURN
A copy of the Annual Return of the company for the financial vear ended 31% March, 2024, containing the particulars
prescribed under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules issued
thereunder, in the form MGT-7 shall be uploaded post conclusion of ensuing Annuval General Meeting, on the website of
the company in the Investor Relations Section and can be accessed from http://www.kljresourees. in.

13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

‘ The Board has laid down internal financial Controls to be followed by the Company commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditors report to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and all significant audit observations and corrective actions are presented to the
Committee. M/s Rakhecha & Co. Chartered Accountants, New Delhj (Firm Registration Number 02990N) are the Internat
Auditors of the Company and have been entrusted to conduct Internal Audit of the functions and activities of the
Company. The audit committee reviews the reports submitted by the internal auditors of the company and also seeks the
views of statutory auditors on the adequacy of the intemal control system in the company and keeps the board of directors
infermed of its major observations periodically.

Based on its evaluation, the audit committee is of opinion that, as of 31% March, 2024, the internal financial controls were
adequate and operating effectively.

' 14. DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the
criteria of Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6} of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under
Regulatien 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, as amended and
have complied with the requirements as provided in sub rule (1) and (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies {Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended . The Declarations received from all the Independent Directors were
taken on record by the Board of Directors.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors possess the integrity, expertise and experience including the
proficiency required to be Independent Directors of the Company, fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the
Act and the Listing Regulations and are independent of the management and have also comtplied with the Code for
Independent Directors as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013,

| 15. AUDITORS

(AY STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR'S REPORT
' Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time M/s Kumar Chopra & Associates, Chartered Accountants {(Firm Registration Number 000131N), were
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the 36 Annual General Meeting held on 30®
September, 2022 till the conclusion of the 41™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 (to carry out the
statutory audit for Financial Year 2022-23 to 2026-27) at a remuneration as mutually decided between the Statutory
Auditors and the Company.

The Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2023-24 does not contain any qualtfication(s), reservation(s} or adverse
remark(s). The Auditor’s Report forms part of the Annual Report and is self-explanatory requiring no further elucidation.

{B) COST AUBITORS, COST AUMT REPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
The Company is required 1o maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1} of the
Compznies Act, 2013 and accordingly such accounts and records are made 2nd maintained by the company.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended, the cost audit records maintained by the Company are required to be audited. The Board, on ihe
recommendations of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s Yogesh Gupta & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm.
Registration Number 000373) New Delhi, as cost auditors for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for the
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financial year 2024-25. In terms of provisions of section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 (2) (i} of
the Company (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the aforementioned period is
sought to be ratified by the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24, does not contain any qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverse
remark(s).

(C) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARJIAL AUDIT REPORT

16.

17

-

18,

M/s Deepti Chawla & Associates, Company Secretaries (ICS] COP No. 8759), New Delhi, a firm of Company Secretaries
in Practice have conducted Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report
for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2024 is annexed herewith as Annexure “I” 1o this Report.

The Secretarial Auditor in her report dated 21% August, 2024 has observed that the Company is not complying with the
applicable provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading), Regulations 2015. The Board of Directors states that the
equity shares of the company are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and the shares of the Company are not treded,

for past many vears,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION_ POLICY FOR_THE DIRECTORS. KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Company has formulated a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy in terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, laying down inter alia, the criteria for appointment and
payment of remuneration 1o Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Employees of the Company, a summary of
which is annexed as Annexure “II” to this Report. Details of the policy on appeintment and remuneration are available
on the website of the Company (URL: hitp://www.kliresources.in).

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis for the period ended 31% March, 2024, as
stipulated under SEBI Regulations has been provided in a separate section and forms part of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies

Act, 2013. Accordingly, no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of details relating to deposits.

19. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commitiee of the Board has been formed in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Audit Committee as on 31 March, 2024 comprises of two Independent Directors namely Sh. Babulal Bhutoria and
Sh.Ram Parkash Makan and one Non-Executive Director namely Smt, Kalpana Seth. Other relevant details as required
under SEBI Regulations have been given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the Annual Report. The
Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year.

20. VIGIL MECHANISM

21

A Vigil Mechanism as per provision of section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been established for Directors and Employees to report
to the management about suspected or actual frauds, unethical behavior or violation of the Company’s code. The policy is
intended to encourage and enable the employees of the Company to raise serious concerns within the organization rather
than overlooking a problem or handling it externatly. The Vigil Mechanism policy of the Company is available on the
website of the Company (URL: http://www kliresources.in).

CORFPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY
The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board under the Chairmanship of a

Non-executive Director. Composition of CSR Committee of the Company and other relevant details has been provided in
the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. “Promoting health care including preventive
health care and sanitation” is the core area of CSR activities undertaken by the Company. In addition to such core CSR
areas, the Company has always remained sensitive to the underprivileged people of the society and support them in
improving their lives in the areas as provided in Schedule VII to the Act. The Corporate Social Responsibility policy of
the Company s available on the website of the Company (URL: http://www.kliresources.in).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Annual Report on CSR Activities has been annexed herewith and marked as
Annexure “1H7 10 this Board’s Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has structured a Risk Management policy in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
SEBI Regulations which is available on the website of the Company (URL: http://www.kliresources.in). The risk
framework covers the management’s approach and initiatives taken to mitigate a host of business and industry risks by
identifying such risks and infer alia redefining processes, decision making authorities, authorization levels, risk and control
documentation and reviewing these pericdically. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. Details of the same are set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report which forms part of the Annual Report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR(S) OR COURT(S)
OR TRIBUNAL(S) IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulator(s) or Court{s) or
Tribunal(s) impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

PARTICULARS OF FRAUDS, IF ANY, REPORTED UNDER SUB-SECTION (12} OF SECTION 143 OTHER
THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

No frauds have been reported under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the auditors of the

Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The details as required in terms of provisions of Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personne]) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as Annexure “IV” to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &

QUTGO
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014, the information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is
enclosed as Annexure “V* to this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under, the details of loans given, investments
made and guarantee provided in connection with a loan have been provided in the Notes to financial statements for the
financial year 2023-24,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All related party contracts and/or arrangements entered by the Company during the financial year 2023-24 were on an
arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations. All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for its prior
approval. There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters,

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, subsidiaries and associate Companies which might have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company. There were no transactions that were required to be reported in Form AOC-2 hence the said form
does not form part of this report. However, the details of the transactions with Related Party (ies) have been provided in
the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-24).

DETAILS OF APPLICATION(S) OR_PROCEEDING(S) PENDING AGAINST THE COMPANY UNDER

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
No application(s) were made or any proceeding(s) were pending against the company under the Insolvency and

Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM BANK(S) OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION(S)
During the year under review, Rule 8 (5) (xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 was not applicable to the Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all the applicabie mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India for the financial year 2023-24.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSALYACT. 2013
The Company is commiited to provide a healthy work environment and thus does not tolerate anv discrimination and/ or
harassment in any form to its women employees. The Company has in place a policy for prevention, prohibition and




redressal of Sexual Harassment in compliance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohiuition and Redressal} Act, 2013 which is available on the website of the Company. An
Internal Complaints Commitiee has been set up to redress complaints of women employees of the Company received
regarding sexual harassment. All women employees whether permanent, contractual, temporary or frainees are covered
under this policy. During the financial year 2023-24, nil complaints were received by the committee.

33. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2024, the applicable Accounting Standards have
been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profits of the Company for that period; '

¢) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concem basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls for the Company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and

1) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems are adequate and operating effectively.

34, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS :
During the year under review, the relations between the Management and the employees were highly cordial. Human

resource initiatives such as skill up gradation, training, appropriate reward & recognition systems and productivity
improvement were the key focus areas for development of the employees of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Your Company always endeavours to promptly respond to shareholders’ requests/grievances. Each and every issue raised

by the shareholders is taken up with utmost priority and every effort is made 1o resolve the same at the earliest. The
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board periodically reviews the status of the redressal of investors®

grievances.

35

¥

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors wish to place on record the sincere and dedicated efforts of all the employees of the Company. Your

Directors also take this opportunity to offer their sincere thanks to the Financial Institutions, Banks and other Government
Agencies, vajued customers and all the stakeholders for their continued support, co-operation and assistance.

For ard on behatf of Board of Directors of
‘KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED

a
(Hemant Jain) {Dilip Kumar Karn)
‘Managing Director Director

DIN: 00506995 DIN: 00061804

Date: 3" September, 2024
Place: New Deihi
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Annerire. T

Deepti Chawla & Associates 102, DDA SFS Flats

Company Secretaries ' Sector 3, Dwarka
New Delhi-110 078
Ph: 9971067554
Email Id:dchawla.cs@gmail.com
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.¢ of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To
The Members
KL} Resources Limited
8- Cammac Street
Kolkata-700 017

I, Deepti Chawla, Proprietor of Deepti Chawla & Associates, Company Secretaries have conducted the
Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by KL} Resources Limited (CIN: L67120WB1986PLC041487 Y(hereinafter cailed
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and autharized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report
that in my opinien, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisiens listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under:

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; -

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

{v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act):-

*  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeavers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

»  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Steck Purchase Scheme} Guidelines, 1999; - Not applicable to the Company during the period
of audit

*  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; - Not applicable ta the Company during the period of audit

»  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(¢



*  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulaticns, 2009; -
Net applicable to the Company during the period of audit and

¢  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1898; - Not
applicable to the Company during the period of audit

¢ Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transhoundary Movement) Rules, 2008 and
Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

Thave also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

{ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclesure Requirements} Regulations, 2015.

I further report that;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the following:

{i} The Listing Agreements

- The company is not complying with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations,2015

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Birectors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was change in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the peried under review. :

Adequate natice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation

at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

1 further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed along with this Report and forms an
integral part thereof,

For Deepti Chawla & Associates

Deriyi Chawrla
M

FCNo.: 11445

C P No.: 8759

Place : New Delhi

Date : 21 August 2024

ICSI UDIN: FO11445F001009926
P.R Certno. 2578/2022 dated 14 August 2022
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Deepti Chawla & Associates 102,DDA SFS Flats

Company Secretaries Sector 3, Dwarka
New Dethi-110 078
Ph: 9971067554
Email Id:dchawla.cs@gmail.com

To

The Members

KL} Resources Limited
8 Cammac Street
Kolkata-700 017

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

Z. 1 have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test check
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and
practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis of my epinion.

3. lhave notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company,

4. Where ever required, 1 have cbtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test check basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

i Chawla
roprietor

FCS No.: 11445

CP No.: 8759

Place: New Delhi

Date:21 August 2024

ICSI UDIN: F011445FG01009926

P.R Certno. 2578/2022 dated 14 August 2022
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Annexure ‘IP

POLICY ON BIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

A. Introduction
This Policy on Directors Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management

Personnel has been formulated in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
SEBI Regulations by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Directors of the Company.

E. Definitions
Directors: Directors other than Managing Director(s) and Whele-time Director(s) appointed under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.
Key Managerial Personnel: Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

Senior Management Personnel: officers and personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team,
excluding the Board of Directors, and shall also comprise all the members of the management one level below the
Managing Director or Whole Time Director and shall specifically include the functional heads, by whatever name called
and the Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer. '

C. Terms of Reference ‘
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Its terms of reference

are as follows:

» Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

» Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

+ Formulation of policies for remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel.

 ldentification and recommendation to Board, the name(s) of persons who are qualified to become Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel in accordance with the criteria laid down.

* Recommend to the Board on appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and Senior
Management Personnel.

*  Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

* Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management

D. Criteria for recommending a person to become a Director
The Committee shall take into consideration the following criteria of qualification, positive attributes and independence for
recommending to the Board, the appointment of Director{s).

1. Qualifications & Experience
The incumbent should have appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law,
management, sales & marketing, operations, research, corporate governance, education, community service or other

disciplines.

2. Attributes/Qualities
The incumbent Director should have one or more of the following attributes:

» Respect for and strong willingness to imbibe the Company’s Core Values.

» Honesty and Professional integrity.

= Strategic capability with business vision.

*  Entrepreneurial spirit and track record of achievements.

»  Ability to be independent.

+  Capable of lateral thinking.

+ Reasonable financial expertise.

*  Association in the fields of Business/Corporate world/Finance/Education/Community Service.

E. Eligibility Criteria & Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel & Senior Management Personnel
The eligibility criteria for appoiniment of key managerial personne!l and senior management personne! shall be
accordance with the job description of the relevant position. In panicular, the position of Key Managerial Personnel shouid
be filled by senior personnel having relevant qualifications and experience.
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The remuneration structure for Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall be as per the
Company’s remuneration structure taking into account factors such as level of experience, qualification, performance and
i suitability which shall be reasonable and sufficient to atiract, retain and motivate them.

The remuneration may consist of fixed and incentive pay/retention bonus reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate fo the working of the Company and its goals.

The aforesaid employees may also be provided any facility, perquisites, commission, accommodation, interest free Joans or
loans at concessional rate in accordance with the policies framed for the employees or any category thereof. However loan
I to the Directors who are KMPs shall be governed by such approvals as may be required by the Companies Act, 2013.

For and-on behalf of Board of the directors of

KLJ OURCES LIMITED

s

{Hem (Dilip Kumar Karn)
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00506995 DIN: 00061804

Date: 3™ September, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure *I11°

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL
YEAR 2023-24

[Pursuant o Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corparate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021]

1 Briefl autline on CSR Policy of the | Company’s CSR policy is focused on enhancing the lives of the people. |
Company The Company has identified to promote its CSR activity in the specific
area of heaith care including Preventive health care and sanitation.
However, in furtherance of the Company’s CSR initiatives, it may take up
one or more additional projects/programmes covered under Schedule VH
of the Act as recommended by the CSR Committee.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SL | Name of Director Designation /Nature Number of meetings of Number of meetings
No. of Directorship CSR Committee held of CSR Committee
during the year attended during

the vear

1. | Smt. Kalpana Seth Chairperson 2 2
2. 1 Sh. Ram Parkash Makan Member 2 2
3. | Sh. Babulal Bhutoria* Member 1 i

* Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, a member of CSR Commntee demised on 18" September, 2023. Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was
inducted as Member of the Committee effective from 15" December, 2023.

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and www kljresources.in
CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company
4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of Not Applicable
CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.
5. (a) | Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 Rs. 15,625.82 Lakhs
{b) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Rs.312.52 Iakhs
section 135
(¢) | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the Nil
previous financial years.
(d) | Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. _ Rs. 4.57 lakhs
(¢) | Total CSR obligation for the financial year |(b)+(c)-(d)]. Rs. 307.95 lakhs
6. (a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Rs. 313,60 lakhs
Project).
(b) | Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
() | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil
(d) | Total 2mount spent for the Financia} Year [(a)+(h)+(c)} Rs. 313.60 Jakhs |
{e)} | CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2023-24:
L Total Amount Amount Unspent (Rs, in lakhs)
Spent for the | Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
financial year | Unspent CSR Account as per sub Schedule VII as per second proviso te sub-section
(Rs. in lakhs} | section (6) of section 135 (5) of section 135
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of
Fund transfer
313.60 i Nil - - Nil -




] {f) | Excess amount for set off, if any (Rs. in lakhs)

8l Na. Particulars Amount

(Rs. in lakhs)

0) @) @)

(1 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Rs. 312.52 lakhs

section 135

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year Rs. 313.60 lakhs

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 1.08 lakhs

{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil
previous financial years, if any

V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iiD)-(iv)] Rs. 1.08 lakhs

*Gross amount available for set off in next financial vear is equal 1o Rs. 313.60 lakhs - 307.95 lakhs = 5.65 Jakhs

7 | Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial vears -
O] @ 16 “@ (5) [ (6) () ®)
Si. | Preceding { Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred Amount
No. | financial | transferred Amount in Spentin to any fund specified { remaining | Deficiency,
Year(s} | to Unspent Unspent CSR | the under Schedule VII to be spent | if any
CSR Account Financial | as per Section 135(6), in
Account under | transferred to | Year i any succeeding
sub- section (6) | Unspent financial
of CSR Account years
section 135 under Date
sub- section Amount of
(6) of transf
_section 135 er
Nil
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Yes No
(2) | Social responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year
v
(b) | Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:
S Short particulars of the Pin code Date of Amount of | Details of entity/Authority/beneficiary of the
No. | property or asset( s) of the creation | CSR registered owner
fincluding complete address | property amount
and location of the or assef(s) spent
. property]
a @) B) ) ) 6
CSR Registration | Name Registered
No., if applicable Address
Not applicable
9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the Not applicable

average net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

KLJ RESOURCE

\vaqul

(Kalpana Seth)

S LIMITED

Chairperson, CSR Commitiee

DIN: 66949098

Date:3™ September
Place: New Delhi

2024

i

(Dilip Kumar Karn)
Director
DIN: 00061804




Annexure ‘1V?
Part-l

Betails of Remuneration of Emplovees and Directors
(Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

i.  The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for
the financial vear

And
H. The percenfage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
l Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;-
Name Designation Directors Remuneration | Percentage increase

fo Median in Remuneration
Remuneration

Executive Director

Hemant Jain Managing Director 101.94:] 371.52
Kamiendra Navratansingh Whole Time Director 6.67:1 4.20
Chauhan*

Suresh Chand Jalther Chief Financial Officer - (10.57)
Ajai Kumar Gupta Company Secretary - 18.67
Non-Executive Director

Bilip Kumar Kam Director 0.06:1 -
Kalpana Seth Director 0.06:1 -
Ram Parkash Makan Director 0.10:1 20
Ranjit Ray Banthia Director 0.03:1 -
Babulal Bhutoria Director 0.03:1 -

* Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Director of the Company had demised on 18th September, 2024 and Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was
appointed as an additional Director in the capacity of Non-executive Independent Director of the Company effective from

15th December, 2024,

Note: Remuneration' includes sitting fees for Non-Executive (Non-Independent) Directors and Non-Executive Independent
Directors.

iti. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-23: 0.40
iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolis of the Company as on 31% March, 2023: 138
v. Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the managerial personnel and the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration:

% change in

remuneration

 Average increase in salary of employees (other than managerial personnel) {an
Average increase in remuneration of managerial personnel 225

vi. Affirmation: _
It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is as per the

Remuneration Policy of the Company.

:
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Part-11

[Details of Employees]

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (2) & (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Si. No. | Particulars Details

1. Name Sh. Hemnant Jain

2. Designation Managing Director

3. Remuneration (including Performance based Commission)* Rs. 5,72,29,48]

4, Nature of Employment Contractual

5, Quaiification and Experience of the Employee ' PGDM in International Business (Harvard
University)

6. Date of Commencement of Employment 1¥ April, 2009

7. Age 53 years

8. Last employment held before joining the Company NA

9. Relationship with other Directors NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

‘1( SOURCES LIMITED
g
(Dilip Kumar Karn)

Director
DIN: 00061804

DIN: 00506995

Date: 3™ September, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure “V”
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNQLOGY ABSQORPTION

Conservation of Energy

Company continues 1o take measures towards conservation of energy through optimum utilization of energy and other
resources. Utilization of energy efficient machines, procurement of energy. efficient technologies etc. is done as part of
energy conservation measures. The Company has been consistent in its efforts 1o conserve energy and natural resources
and reduce consumption of power, fuel, oil, water and other energy sources by following strict adherence to:

1. Power saving processes and methods

2. Installation of Auto Power Cut-Off for electrical energy consumption.

3. Energy saving in utility by proper machine planning.

4, Proper training to the employees and workforce to ensure minimum wastage of energy and natural resources.

Technology Absorption
The Company has indigenized and absorbed technological changes. The Company continuously strives to meet

international standards of precision through improvisation of existing processes, innovation and adaptation of new
technologies and methods. The product quality has improved significantly due to better utilization of machines, improvised
processes and enhanced precision.

B. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

1. Vzlue of Imports calculated on CIF Basis
' {Rupees in lakhs)

S1 No. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
1. Materials (Chemicals) ‘ 3,15,066.08 3,46,441.42

2. Expehdimre in Foreign Currency during the Year:
: (Rupees in lakhs)

51 No. Particulars : 2023-24 2022-23
1. Interest on LC financed 426.54 328.47
2. Traveiling & Tour 63.97 55.70
3. Business Promotion 24.21 26.81
4, Membership & Subscriptions 49.34 38.50
5. Survey Fee ' 7.15 -

Total 571.21 449.48

3. Earning in Foreign Exchange
{Rupees in lakhs)

Sl No. Particulars : 2023-24 2022.23

1. Export of Goods calculated on F.O.B. 3,977.63 3,684.55
basis

Total 3,977.63 3,684.55

d on behalf of Board of Directors of
KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED

(Hemfnt Jain) (Diiip(ﬁ;nar Karn)

Managing Director Director
DiN: 00506995 DIN: 00061804

Date: 3" September, 2024
Place; New Delhi




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

L COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your Company’s corporate governance philosophy is founded on the principles of fair and transparent business practices.
The governance structures are created to protect the interests of and generate long ternm sustainable value for all
stakeholders — customers, employees, partners, investors and the community at large. The business of the Company is
governed and supervised by Board of Directors and together with the management they are committed to uphold the
principles of excellence across all activities.

IT, BOARD QF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance in the
| Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and Jong term interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain
an effective, informed and independent Board,

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the uitimate responsibility of the management, corporate affairs, direction and
performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and duties. The functional
Management of the Company is headed by the Managing Director of the company and has functional heads for every
department, which look after the management of the day-to-day affairs of the Company.

a) Compositien of Board
Your Company’s Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors having adequate
knowledge and experience for providing strategic guidance and direction to the Company. As on 31 March, 2024, the
Board of Directors comprised of 6 (six) directors out of which 2 (two) were Independent Directors. The Board is headed
by a Non-Executive Chairman. Accordingly, the composition of the Board as on 31* March, 2024, was in accordance with
Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (hereinafter “SEBI
| Regulations”) read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of the Board as on 31 March, 2024 is

as appended below:

Sl Name of Director DIN Category Date of No. of Shares
No. Joining the held in  the
Board Company
1. Sh. Hemant Jain 00506595 Executive/Managing 01/10/2005 | 1315200
Director
2. Sh. Kamlendra 09695105 Executive/Whole Time 12/08/2022 -
Navratansingh Chauhan Director
3. Sh. Dilip Kumar Karn 00061804 Non-Executive Director/ 10/10/1997 900
Chairman
4 Smt. Kalpana Seth 066949098 Non-Executive 14/08/2014 900
Director/Women Director
5. Sh. Ram Parkash Makan 08374991 Non-Executive/ 14/11/2019 -
Independent Director
6. Sh. Babulal Bhutoria® (7143965 Non-Executive/ 15/12/2023 -
independent Director

*During the year under review, Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Independent Director of the Company had demised on 18"
September, 2023 and Sh. Babulal Bhutoria, was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-executive
Independent Director of the Company effective from 15™ December, 2023.

b) Board Meetings and Board Procedures
During the year, the Board of the Company met 7 (Seven) times on 5 April, 2023, 30" May, 2023, 11® August, 2023, 5®
September, 2023, 14" November, 2023, 15" December, 2023 and 14" February 2024. The maximum gap between any two
Board meetings was less than 120 days as stipulated by Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI
Regulations. Meetings of the Board were generally held at Corporate Office of the Company situated at New Delhi.

All the members of the Board were provided with requisite information as required as per SEBI Regulations well before
the Board Meeting. None of the Directors is disqualified for appointment as director under Section 164 of the Companies

Act, 2013,




Further, the company has received a certificate from Ms. Deepti Chawla, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI CP No.
8759), New Delhi, confinning that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry

of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority.

The Board of Directors of your Company plays a pivotal role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the
Company. The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined. All relevant informatien as
mandated by the regulations is placed before the Board. The Board reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify the instances of non-compliances, if any.

Skills/competence/expertise of the Board of Directors

The major skills/competencies/expertise held by the Directors are summarized below:

Name of Directors

Category of Directors

Skills/expertise

Hemant Jain

Managing Director

Chemical Industries, sales, marketing, procurement,
commercial, board governance, production and technical,
project set-up, strategic planning, business management and
a broad perspective on global market opportunities.

Kamiendra Navratansingh
Chaghan

Whole Time Director

Chemical Industries experience, sales and marketing

Dilip Kumar Karn

Chairman & Non-
executive Director

Chemical industry experience, Accounts and finance,
general  management, practical understanding  of
organizations.

Kalpana Seth Non-Executive Director Chemical industry experience, sales and marketing
Ram Parkash Makan MNen-Executive & Business and general management

Independent
Babulal Bhutoria Non-Executive & Chemicals Industry experience

Independent '

d) Details of Familiarization Programme
Details of familiarization programme of the Independent directors are available on the website of the Company

(URL:http/fwww.kliresources.in).

¢) Inter-se relationship
The Directors of the Company are not related inter- se.

N

Directors’ Attendance Record and Directorships

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings during the year, last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and details of other
Directorship and Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of each Director are appended below:

SI. | Name of ' No. of No. of Committee Attendance Particulars Directorship
Ne. | Directors' other Memberships / in other Listed
Director | Chairmanships in other Entity
ship’ Indian Public {Category of
Companies Directorship)
Member® | Chairman’ | No. of  Board | Attendance
Meetings at last
Held Attended { AGM
Attended
1. | Sh. Hemant Jain Nil Nil 7 4 NO_ -
2. | Sh.Kamlendra Nil Nil 7 3 No -
Navratansingh
Chauhan
3. Sh. Dilip Kumar Nil Nil 7 7 Yes -
Karn
4. Smt. Kalpana 1 Nil 7 7 Yes Adilakshmi
Seth Enterprises
Limited
i {formerly KI1J
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Plastics
Limited) (Non-
Executive
director
5. Sh. Ram Ni Nil Nil 7 6 No -
Parkash Makan
6. Sh. Ranjit Ray Nil Nil Nil 4 2 No -
Banthia*
7. Babulal I 3 Nil 2 2 No KLJ Polymers
Bhutoria** ‘and Chemicals
Limited

*Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Independent Director of the Company had demised on 18 September, 2023.
**Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was appointed as an Addmonal Director on the board and designated as Non-Executive &

Indepen{%ent director of the Company, effective from 15" December, 2023.

Notes:
1. The Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above does not include K1} Resources Limited, alternate directorships

and directorships in foreign companies, companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Private
Limited Companies.

2. In accordance with the SEBI Regu]atlons Memberships /Chairmanships of only the Audit Committees and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee of all other public limited Companies have been considered.

g) Independent Directors
The Company currently has 2 Independent Directors which comprise 1/3rd of the total strength of the Board of D:rectors

During the year under review, Sh. Rarnjit Ray Banthia, Independent Director of the Company had demised on 18"
September, 2023 and Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was appointed as an Independent Director on 15" December, 2023.

Based on the confirmations/declarations received from the Independent directors, the Board opines that all the Independent
Directors fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 and are mdependem of

the management.

h) Independent Directors Meeting
The Independent Directors met once during the year under review on 15" June, 2023 without the attendance of Non-

Independent Directors. Both the Independent Directors namely Sh, Ram Parkash Makan and Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia were
present in that meeting. The appointment of Independent Directors is in compliance with Section 149 read with schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and with the provision of SEBI Regulations.

The Independent Directors in the said meeting had, infer alia reviewed the performance of non-Independent directors and
the Board as a whole and the performance of the chairperson of the company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties,

Remuneration of Directors
The remuneration of Managing Director is fixed by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of Nomination and

Remuneration committee and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The remuneration and Notice period of
Managing Director and Whole Time Director are as per their terms of appointment agreed 1o between the company and
them. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings. No Commission was paid to
any Non- Executive Director for Financial Year 2023-24. There are no severance fees payable to the Directors. The
Company has not granted any Stock option(s) to its Directors,

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Director(s) of the Company and sitting fees paid to non-executive directors
for the Financial Year 2023-24 have been provided below:

¢+ Executive Director/Managing Director/Whole Time Director
(Rupees in lakhs)

Name of Director Salary* Commission Total
Sh. Hemant Jain 132.29 440.00 572.29
Sh. Kmalendra 374 - 3742
Navratansingh Chauhan ,

*Salary includes basic salary, perguisites and allowances, contribution to provident fund etc.
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ol COMMITTEES OF BOARD

a. Audit Commitiee

. Nomination And Remuneration Committee

+ Details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as mentioned

below:
(Rupees in lakhs)

Sl. No. | Name of Directors ' Sitting Fees
] Sh. Ram Parkash Makan 0.60
2. Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia 0.20 I
3. Sh. Bzbulal Bhutoria 0.20
4 Sh. Dilip Kumnar Karn 0.35
5 Smt. Kalpana Seth 0.35

The Board of the Company has duly constituted an Audit Committee, comprising of three Directors. As at 31" March,
2024, the Audit Committee comprised of one non-executive and two independent directors. The constitution of the Audit
Committee meets the requirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations. All the members of
the Committee were provided with requisite information as required by the SEBI Regulations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include those specified under Regulation 18 of the SEBI Regulations as
well as under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter alia include;

* to oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of jts financial information,

» torecommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the Auditors of the Company,

* 1o review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process,

* to review quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board and to advice and make
recommendations to the Beard on matters related to financial management of the Company, including Audit Reports,

¢ to approve or subsequently modify the transactions of the Company with the related parties,

¢ to scrutinize the inter-corporate Joans and investments,

¢ to assess the value of undertakings or assets of the Company, whenever it is necessary,

 to review and discuss with Auditors about internal control system, major accounting policies and practices reviewing
financial and Risk management policy of the company, in compliance with the SEBI Regulations and legal
reguirements concerning financial statements,

= 10 monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters and

* to carry out any other functions as mentioned in terms of reference to the Audit Committee.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year under review. The meetings were held on 30" May, 2023, 11" August,
2023, 14™ November, 2023 and on 14™ February, 2024. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to
the Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of the members at the Meetings as on
317 March, 2024 were as follows:

SL | Name of Member Status No. of Meetings during the
No. financial year 2023-24
Held Attended
1. Sh. Babulal Bhutoria* Chairman 1 1
2. Sh. Ram Parkash Makan Member 4 1 41
3. | Smt. Kalpana Seth Member 4 | 4

*During the year under review, Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Chairman of the Committee, had demised on 18® September, 2023
and he attended 2 (Two) meetings of the Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 15" December, 2023 has re-constituted the Committee and
Sh. Babula] Bhutoria was appointed as Member and was designated as Chairman of the Committee.

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Regulations, the Board has constituted the
Nomination ané Remuneration Committee. The Committee inrer alio reviews and approves the Annual salaries,
commission, service agreements and other employvinent conditions for the Executive Director and senior management. The
remunesation policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements on a periodical basis. As
on 31% March, 2024, the Comimittee comprises of one non-executive and two independent Directors.

o i s s v,
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The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

* o determine / recommend the criteria for appointment of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors to the
Board;

s (0 determine / recommend the criteria for qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director;

= to identify candidates who are qualified 10 become Directors and recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal; :

¢ to review and determine all elements of remuneration package of Executive Director, i.e. salary, benefits, bonuses,
pension eic;

¢ toreview and determiine fixed component and performance linked incentives for Directors, along with the performance
criteria; i

+ to determine policy on service contracts, notice period, severance fees for Directors and Senior Management;

e to formulate criteria for evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of the Board as a whole.

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
committee of the board. An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a
director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with
stakeholders, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and judgment.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times, during the year under review. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the
Secretary to the Committee, The meetings were held on 4" September, 2023, 10™ November, 2023, 15" December, 2023
and 12" February, 2024, The composition and the attendance of members at the meetings as on 31° March 2024 were as

follows:

SL Name of Member Status No. of Meetings during the
No. _ _ financial year 2023-24
' Held Attended
1. Sh. Babulal Bhutoria* Chairman i i
. Smit. Kalpana Seth Member 4 4
3. Sh. Ram Parkash Makan Member 4 41

*During the year under review, Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Member of the Committee, had demised on 18" September, 2023.
The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 15" December, 2023 has re-constituted the Committee and
Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was appointed as Member and was designated as a Chairman of the Committee.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations, the Board has constituted a Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee. The Committee inter alia looks into the redressal of complaints of investors such as transfer or
credit of shares, non-receigt of dividend / notices / annual reports. During the year, the committee met 4 (four) times. The
Meetings were held on 06" April, 2023, 11" July, 2023, 17" October, 2023 and on 16" January, 2024,

The composition of the Stakeholders® Relationship Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members as on
31% March, 2024 were as follows:

Sl No. Name of Member Status No. of Meetings during the
financial year 2023-24

Held Attended

1. Smt. Kalpana Seth Chairperson 4 4

2. ' Sh. Dilip Kumar Karn Member 4 4

3. Sh. Ram Parkash Makan Member 4 4

During the year under review, Nil complaints were received and hence as on 31¥ March, 2024, there were Nil complaints
pending with the Company. Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the

Committee.

. Cornorate Social Responsibility Committee

The Board of Directors has constituted 2 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) of the Board in
terms of the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. As on 31% March,
2024, the CSR Committee consists of two independent Directors and one non-executive Director. Smt. Kalpana Seth is the
Chairperson of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
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Pursuant to the provisions of the CSR Policy of the Company, the CSR Committee met 2 (two) times during the year umder
review i.e. on 26" July, 2023 and 1¥ March, 2024. Members of the CSR Committee and their attendance at the meeting as
on 31% March, 2024 were as follows:

Sk Name of Member Status No. of Meetings during the
No. financial vear 2023-24
: Held Attended

1. Smt. Kalpana Seth Chairperson 2 2
2. Sh. Ram Parkash Makan Member 2 2
4, Sh. Babulal Bhutoria* Member 1 !

*During the year under review, Sh. Ranjit Ray Banthia, Member of the Committee, had demised on 18" Septemnber, 2023,
The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 15™ December, 2023 has re-constituted the Committee and
Sh. Babulal Bhutoria was appointed as Member of the Commitiee.

The Commiittee inter alia recommends the amount to be spent on CSR Projects/ Programmes undertaken by the Company
and ensures implementation of the same in line with the CSR Policy of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY MONITORING FRAMEWORK

As on 31" March, 2024, the Company has eight wholly owned Subsidiaries in India and one wholly owned Subsidiary is
based in UAE. None of the subsidiaries of the Company is a material subsidiary in terms of SEBI Regulations. The policy
for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ is avajlable on the website of the company and can be accessed at

www kliresources.in.

Financial Statements, in particular the investments made by the unlisted Subsidiary Companies, are reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company. Minutes of the meetings of the unlisted Indian Subsidiary Companies are placed before the
Company’s Board. A statement containing significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the unlisted
Subsidiary Companies is placed before the Company’s Board.

. COMPLIANCE OFFICER

The Board has designated Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer of the Company.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

# The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under:

Financial Date Time Venue No. of Special
Year Resolution Passed
2020-2021 307 September, 2021 | 1000 AM. |22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan -
Building, 8 Cammac Street, Kolkata-
- 700 017

2021-2022 30% September, 2022 | 10.00 A M, 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan 3
Building, 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata-
700 017

| 2022-2023 307 September, 2023 | 10.00 A.M. 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan -
[ Building, 8, Cammac Street, Kolkata-
700 017

* Postal Ballot held during the Financial Year and Special Resclution, if any, passed though postal ballot:
During the year under review the Company did not conduct any Postal Ballot and no special resolution was passed in
last year through postal ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

During the year under review, financial results for the quarters ended 30" June, 2023, 30™ September, 2023, 31"
December, 2023 and the year ended 3]1™ March, 2024, have been published in a English newspaper namely “The Echo of
india, Kolkata” and also published in a vernacular language newspaper namely “Arthik Lipi®. The Company has submitted
all guarterly, half vearly and yearly compliances for the vear ended on 31% March, 2024 to the Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited. The results are also displayed on the Company’s website www kliresources.in. During the vear under review, no

official news releases and presentations were made to analysts/institutional investors.




VIIE. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

a.General Information

Particulars Details

Registered Office 22, Ground Floor, Shanti Niketan Building, 8, Cammac Street,
Koikata-700 017

Annual General Meeting: | Saturday, 28" September, 2024 at 10.00 A.M.

Day/Date/Time/Venue 22, Ground Floor, Shamtl Niketan Buiiding, 8, Cammac Stree,
Kolkata-700 017

Financial Year 1" April to 31¥ March

Book Closure Monday, 23° September, 2024 to Saturday 28" September, 2024

' (both days inclusive)
Listing on Stock Exchanges Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (*CSE”™)

7, Lyons Range, Kolkata- 700 601 [Listed w.e.f. 16" April, 1987}
The Company has paid the Listing fee for the vear 2023-24 to
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

Plant location 177, Part A, Jamal Pada Road, Village, Silli, Silvassa- 396230

ISIN INE176K01019

Stock Code 021095

Market Price Data The Equity Shares of the Company are not traded; hence market price

data is not available.

bh.Fentative Calendar for the Financial Year 2024-25

Particulars Dates

First Quarter Results Mid of August, 2024
Second Quarter Results Mid of November, 2024
Third Quarter Results Mid of February, 2025
Fourth Quarter and the year ended Results Up to end of May, 2025

c. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity
1,05,55,500 Equity Shares of the Face Value of Rs. 10 each representing 98.28% of the Company’s Equity Share Capital
are in dematerialized form and 1,84,500 Equity Shares of the Face Value of Rs.10 each representing 1.72% of the
Company’s Equity Share Capital are in Physical form. The equity shares of the Company are listed on Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited. The equity shares of the Company are not actively traded.

d. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
As per the directives of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), M/s Neelam Bansal & Associates, Company

Secretary in whole time practice, New Delhi, undertakes the Share Capital Audit on a quarterly basis. The purpose of the
audit is to reconcile the total number of shares held in Nationa] Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and in physical form with the admitted, issued and paid up capital of the Company.

The Share Capital Audit Reports as submitted by M/s Neelam Bansal & Associates, Company Secretary in whole time
practice, New Delhi on quarterly basis were forwarded to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited where the Equity Shares
of the Company are listed.

¢. Share Transfer System
Pursuant to directions of SEBI, the facility to held the Company’s shares in electronic form is available to the

shareholders as the Company is registered with both Depositories namely NSDL and CDSL. Share Transfer documents
for physical transfer and requests for dematerialization of shares may be sent to Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer

Agent.

f. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
R & D Infotech Private Limited
15C, Naresh Mitra Saram,
Kolkata-706 026
Tel No:+91 33 24192641/42
Fax No: +91 33 24761657
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Email: rdinfotec@yahoo.com
Website: www.rdinfolech.org
Shareholding Pattern as on 31% March, 2024
Category Number of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding
Promoters & Promoters Group 66,23228 61.67
Bodies Corporate {(other than 40,58,572 37.99
promoters)
Resident Individuals 58,200 0.54
Total 1,87,40,000 100.00

. Outstanding GDRS/ADRS/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on Equity

As on the date of this report, there is no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/or any other Convertible instruments.

Investors’ Correspendence may be addressed to: -
Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta

Company Secretary

KLJi House, §A, Shivaji Marg,

Najafgarh Road, New Delhi- 110015

E-mail: kliresources(@kljindia.com

DISCLOSURES

Basis of related Party Transactions
The details of all transactions with related parties are placed before the audit commitice for its prior approval. The

Company has entered into related party transactions as set out in the Notes to Accounts, which are not likely to have
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the website of

the Company (URL: http//www.kliresources.in).

. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities - Ni}

. Whistle Blower Policy

The Company encourages an open door policy where its employees have access to the head of the business/function. In
terms of Company’s Cede of Conduct, any instance of non-adherence to the code/any other observed unethical behavior
are to be brought to the attention of the immediate reporting authority, who is required to report the same to the Vigil

Mechanism Committee,
Further, the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns ot grievances

and provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avail of such mechanism. Under the Policy,
every Director and employee has been provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee,

. Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clause (b} te (i) of

Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46
The company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of

sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEB] (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, as
amended.

Details of non-compliance by the Company

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company and no penalties, or structures were imposed on the Company
by the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, where the Equity Shares of the Company are kisted or SEBI or any other statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

Details of Total Fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company, on a consolidated basis
M/s Kumar Chopra & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 000131N) New Delhi, are the
Statutory Auditors of the Company. The particulars of payment of Statutory Auditors fees on consolidated basis are given

below:
{(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Audit fee 9.44
Tax Audit and certification work 0.50
Total 9.94
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g. Disclosure in relation to the Sexval Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013
Details as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
have been given in the Directors’ Report which forms part of the Annual Report.

h. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel
The Board has freamed a Code of Conduct (“Code™) for all Board members and senior management of the Company. All
Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code for the financial vear 2023-
24. A declaration fo this effect signed by the Managing Director of the Company forms part of this Annual Report.

i. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with Ind-AS to comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standard)
Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable, for the year ended 31 March, 2024. In the preparation of
Financial Statements, there was no treatment different from that prescribed in Accounting Standards that had been

followed.

j- Acceptance of recommendations of Committees by the Board of Directors
In terms of the Listing Regulations, there have been no instances during the year when the recommendations of any
committees were not accepted by the Board.

k. Credit Ratings
CRISIL Limited in its credit rating report for 31% May, 2024 has provided CRISIL AA-/stable {Reaffirmed) for long-term

loan facilities and CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed) for short-term loan facilities availed by the company. The Credit rating report
is available on the website of the Company (URL: http/www kliresources.in).

l. Risk Management
The Company has framed a Risk Management Policy to inform Board members about the risk assessment and

minimization procedures. These procedures are periodicaily reviewed to ensure that the executive management controls
risk through means of properly defined framework. The Company’s Risk Management Policy focuses on ensuring that
risks are identified and addressed on a timely basis. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis,

m. Management Discussion And Anaiysis Report
A Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given by means of a separate annexure forming part of this Annual
Report.

n. Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issues, and Preferential Issues etc.
During the year under review, there were no proceeds from public issues, Right issues or preferential issues.

0. Details of Compliances
The Company is compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of SEBI Regulations. The Company had submitted

all quarterly compliances and the year-end Compliances for the year ended on 31" March, 2024 to the Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited.

(Dilip Kumar Karn)
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00506995 DIN: 00061804

Date: 3" September, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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NEELAM BANSAL & ASS0CIATES

(Company Secretaries)

Office: 308, 3" Floor, Commercial Complex Bhanot Bhawan, Azadpur, Delhi-110033
M.NO:+91-9555315118 E-mail: csneelambansal@gmail.com,
nbaasseciates14@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company Secrefary's Cevtificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements under
SEBE {Listing Obligations and Diselosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,
The Members of
KLJ Resources Limited

This report comains details of compliance of conditions of corporate governance by KLJ Resources Limited
{*the Company’) for the year ended 31 March, 2024 as stipufated in Regulations 17-27, clause (b) to {i} of
Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2815 (*Listing Regulations’) pursuani to the
Listing Agreement of the Company with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. .

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures 1w
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipufated in Listing Regulations,

Company Secretary’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof. adopred by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. }t is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of
providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us and the
representations provided by the Managemen, we cernify that the Company has complied with the condiiions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 10 (i} of regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance fo the fiture viability of the Company nor as 1o the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction onr use
The certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be

svitable for any other purpose.

{Néelam™]
Proprietor \
COP No.- 13239

Place; New Delhi
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DECLARATION REGAR.DING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIGR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

As required under Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it is hereby confirmed that for the year ended 31 March,
2024, the Directors of KLJ Resources Limited have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for
Board mbers as applicable to them and members of the senior management have affirmed
ignde with Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

{Hemant Jain)
Managh{ BGirector
DIN: 00506995




CEOANDCFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Boeard of Directors
KLJ Resources Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as the Managing director and Chief Financial Officer
of KLJ Resources Limited (‘the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

{a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial vear ended
31% March, 2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain any statements that might be misleading;

(if) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into
by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of

conduct.

(¢) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems pertaining to financial

reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such

internal controls,
(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

i. there are no significant changes in intemnal controls over financial reporting during the year;

ii. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

iii. /there are no ihstances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

gﬁﬁwm .

D et
- {Hemint Jain) {Suresh Chand Jalther)
Manag|ng Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00506995 PAN: AAUPIZ690R

Date: 3" September, 2024
Place: New Delhi




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2023.24

GLOBAL ECONCMY

The Global economy experienced another year of slow growth in F.Y, 2023-24 marked by high inflation, high interest rates,
rising geopolitical fensions, weak global trade growth and concerns of recession in some parts of the world, The conflict in
Middle East has increased geopolitical risks leading to surging energy prices with potential adverse implications for global
growth. Under the circumstances World Bank estimates global economy to grow by 2.4% in 2024,

INDIAN ECONOMY :

The Indian economy supported by domestic demand and growth in manufacturing and services grew by more than 7%
duaring 2023-24. The growth was also driven by Government investments in infrastructure. Inflation has remained within the
Reserve Bank of India’s target range and policy interest rates remained unchanged. With improved capacity utilization and i
strong balance sheet, the private sector investments are witnessing growth. As per World Economic Outlook published by
IMF in April, 2024, India is poised to keep its position as the fastest growing economy in the world in 2024-25 with
projected growth at 6.8%.

Robust GST collections, increased stamp duty collections by states on housing sales, and stable exports of manufactured
products and services show all around increase in the economy and the same is expected to sustain on the back of a normal
monsoon this year. Indian economy’s prospects remain bright with continuing investment spending and increased
consumption by Government. India’s manufacturing sector ended 2023-24 on a stellar note with the Purchasing Manager's
Index (PMI) soaring to a 16 year high of 59.1 in March 2024,

According to the IMF, the Indian economy is anticipated to progress steadily at 6.7% in FY 2024 and 6.5% in FY 2025,
However, the RBI’s forecast is more optimistic, projecting a higher GDP growth of 7.6% for FY 2024 and 7.0% for FY
2025.India’s economic outlook remains positive, supported by stronger consumer demand, increased capital expenditure,
and enhancements in both physical and digital infrastructure. Private and government investments are expected to be the
primary drivers of economic growth in 2024-25, backed by improving prospects of rural consumption due to the easing
inflation, increased spending in an electjon year, and proactive government policy measures. The Budget 2024-25 reflects
the Government’s continued focus on infrastructure development, economic stability, sector-specific developments,
environmental sustainability and strategic global positioning.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The petrochemical industry is a dynamic and essential part of the global economy, characterized by significant
technological advancements and facing both opportunities and challenges. With a focus on sustainability and innovation,
the industry is poised to continue piaying a critical role in supporting diverse economic sectors and addressing global needs.
Today, petrochemicals play a vital role in numerous sectors including manufacturing, agriculture, and healthcare, among
others. In India, they are pivotal in driving the nation’s econemic growth towards becoming a superpower. The sector’s
growth trajectory is expected to remain upward due to evolving consumer preferences, ongoing innovations, and increasing
consumer demand.India’s chemical and petrochemical industry is forecasted to reach approximately USD 300 billion by
2025. The Ministry of Petroleum estimates that demand for petrochemicals will triple by 2040, reaching USD 1 trillion.
Factors such as population growth, technological advancements, and rising awareness are driving the demand for -
petrochemical products, especially in developing nations like India. India’s petroleum sector is poised to be a key economic
driver, with both public and private oil companies increasing investments in refineries to meet the rising demands and
reduce import dependency. The availability of resources and a favorable geopolitical environment in India are attracting
investiments from global o0il companies into the petroleum sector. The government’s focus on research and development in
the petrochemical industry, along with initiatives like expanding gas pipelines and refining capacity, is driving growth. Tax
concessions on petrochemical products further stimulate the industry’s expansion, particularly in polymers, synthetic fibers,
and plastics. '

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of distribution of chemical and petrochemical products. Over a period of
time the Company has become one of the leading importers of petrochemical products in India. Due i¢ increasing demand
of finished products in India as well as in overseas market, the Company has also entered into manufacturing of wide range
of speciality chemicals and de-aromatized solvents including blending of base oils to take lead in the market. Product range
of the Company covers a range of paraffins, alcohols, aromatics, ketones, monomers, acetates and amines to name a few.
The Company has strong tie-ups with leading global players which ensure cost effective and uninterrupted supply to its
customers. With pan India presence of marketing network, storage tanks, drumming and distribution facilities, the Company
leverages on its modern lab testing facilities to provide comprehensive and complete solutions, ensuring satisfaction across
the value chain, '

gl " Page i




Dwring the year under review, on standalone basis the Company achieved total revenue of Rs. 3,65,710.72 lakhs as
compared to Rs. 3,82,135.43 Takhs in the corresponding previcus year. EBIDTA for the year was Rs. 2,337.38 lakhs as
compared to Rs. {1,431.39) lakhs for the previous year. Profit for the vear stood at Rs, 3,794.15 lakhs as against loss of Rs.
(2.930.32) 1akhs in the previous year. Total Comprehensive Income, comprising of Profit/(foss) and other comprehensive
income for the year stood at Rs. 4,298.65 lakhs as compared to Rs. (2,791.76) lakhs in the previous year.

During the year under review, on consolidated basis the Company achieved total revenue of Rs. 4,11,256.64 lakhs as
compared to Rs, 4,39,991.55 lakhs in the corresponding previous year. EBIDTA for the year was Rs. 10,420.20 lakhs as
compared to Rs. (197.81) lakhs for the previous year. Profit stood at Rs. 8,122,990 lakhs as against the loss after tax of Rs.
i (2,471.84) lakhs in the previous year. Total Comprehensive Income, comprising of Profit/(Joss) and other comprehensive
income, for the year stood at Rs. 8,627.40 lakhs as compared to Rs. (1,889.24} lzkhs in the previous year.

STRENGTHS
Our Company has the following principle competitive strengths:
¢ Positioned strategically to realize opportunities in the sector
~+  Experience and end to end expertise in the trading and manufacturing products.
Sustained investment in equipment and fixed assets
¢ Professional Board and Management Team

The steady growth of the Company owes itself to the unerring strategy of leveraging its core competencies and drawing
heavily upon past expetience by Company’s management, An effective combination of energy, excelience and endurance is
evident everywhere from the operational sites to the administrative division. The result, a holistic growth pattern that has
seen the company grow into a preferred choice for its customers.

KEY CHALLENGES
Volatility in raw material prices: More than 50% of global petrochemical capacities are based on naphtha, a crude oil

derived product. The prices of crude oil products have witnessed significant volatility, thereby making petrochemicals
prices highly volatile. '

Increased competition: Large capacity additions taking place in ethane rich Middle East and demand rich China. Since,
ethane based petrochemical products are cheaper than petrochemical products in India, domestic producers are expected to

witness marging pressure.

High entry barriers: Given the capital intensive nature of the petrochemical plant and tariff barriers, new entrants and
smail and medium size companies are prohibited from easily entering into the market.

OPPORTUNITIES
Backward & forward integration: Given the volatility of crude ¢il prices and India's heavy dependency on oil imports,
there is an opportunity for oil and oil related companies 1o reap benefits of increase in presence across the value chain.

More vaiue-added products in portfolie: Demand for performance plastics such as biodegradable polymers is expected to
be on rise across the world including India. Given the environment concerns with traditional plastics, companies should
look at expanding their portfolic and include more value added products.

Increased geographical presence: Given the capital intensive nature of the project and high costs associated in India (due
to no duty waivers, no/ very less tax exemptions and high interest costs), the domestic companies may also look outside for
organic and inorganic opportunities. .

Increasing Per Capita consumption: The per capita consumption of chemicals in India is 1/5" of the global average.
Consumption of FMCG products and agrochemicals in China is 4 times of India leaving huge headroom for growth.

Increasing adoption of Speciality Products: With rising urbanization and industrialization, the demand for engineering
and high performance materials is also rising steadily. Growih in the automotive, electronics, consumer goods and
construction sectors have also added to the demand.

FUTURE QUTLOOK
The chemical industry which had long been out of favor is finally getting its groove back. Despite a spate of headwinds, the

highly cyclical industry has mantained its performance, helped by continued strength across automotive and construction
markets, two maior end-use markets for chemicals.

Chemical companies continue te shift their focus on attractive growth markets in an effort to cut their exposure on other
businesses that are grappling with weak demand. The indusfry is alse seeing a pick-up in consolidation activities as
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chemical makers are increasingly iooking for cost synergy opportunities and enhanced operationzl scale in a still-difficult
global economic environment.

RISKS AND CONCERNS '
The Company has framed a Risk Management Policy in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI

Regulations. Accordingly, the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee which reviews the key risks,
concerns and mitigation plans at regular intervals. Risk assessment, Risk Management, Risk Monitoring and Risk
Mitigation measures are adopted by the Company for timely action. By identifying and proactively addressing risks and
oppertunities, the objective is to build and maintain sustainable, robust business model and to protect and create value for
all the stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers, regulators, and the community. Risks related to the
Company and our responses to mitigate them are discussed below.

Strategic Risks
Strategic Tisks refer to long-term strategy and plans of the Company, including risks associated with macro environment,

global petrochemical industry, growth projects and competitiveness of our operations. The Company has in place a well-
developed framework 1o mitigate the strategic risks.

Operational Risks ,

Operational risks refer to risks impacting operations of the Company. It includes inter alia supply chain, employee
productivity, health and safety of employees and environmental impact and risks to business reputation. The Company is
exposed to various risks which impact Company’s reputation such as labour relations, product mix, innovations and
effective deployment of technology. The Company has in place a crisis management plan and is committed to servicing
customers and stakeholders effectively. A key operational component is supply chain of raw materials and the costs
associated with it. Supply chain disruptions could increase the operating costs and disruption in supply and volatility in the
prices of raw materials poses a significant risk to operations and operating costs. The Company closely monitors the
developments in supply chain and effective steps are taken to mitigate all operational risks.

Financial Risks
Financial risks refer to ability of the Company to meet financial obligations and lessen the impact of various factors like

interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates etc. The Company always endeavors not to have a significant level of
indebtedness and ensures availability of adequate cash to meet operational and working capital requirements as well as
adverse situations. ‘

Credit Risk is a threat to any company and in order to mitigate this, the Company undertakes a systematic assessment of the
financial health of its customers. Raw material price risks are mitigated through well planned and timely purchases and also
by entering into formula-based pricing with customers. Currency fluctuation risks are proactively managed through simple
hedge with forward contracts/option.

Legal and Compliance Risks

Legal and compliance risks refer to risks arising from outcome of legal proceedings, government action and/or regulatory
action, which could result in additional costs. The Company is subject to various laws, regulations and contractual
commitments. The risk of substantial costs, liabilities and damage to reputation related to non-compliance of these laws and
regulations are inherent to the Company’s business. The Company has policies, systems and procedures in place aimed at
ensuring substantial compliance and there is a strong commitment from the management to enforce compliance.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The company has proper and adequate system of intemnal controls commensurate with its size and nature of operations to
provide assurance that all assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized, recorded and reported properly; applicable
statues, the code of conduct and corporate policies are duly complied with.

The Company has an internal auditor which conducts audit in various functional areas as per audit programme approved by
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The internal auditor reports its findings. and observations to the audit
committee, which meets at regular intervals to review the audit issues and to follow up implementation of corrective
actions. :

The committee also seeks the views of statutory auditors on the adequacy of the internal control system in the company.
The audit commitiee has majority of independent directors to maintain the objectivity.




KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Company has identified the following ratios as key financial ratios:

Sk No. | Ratio Type unit 202223 Variation | Explanation for changes
2023-24 .
(In %)

1 Current Ratio Times 1.52 1.53 056 | °

2 Debt-equity ratio Times 0.52 0.46 13.23 | -

The debt service coverage
Debt service coverage ratio has decreased during

3 ratio & Times 226.61 -120.29 -285.07 | current year as compared to
previous year mainly due
to loss in the current year

. The return on equity has
. . 2 g0 _ .

4 Return on equity ratio | Percentage 4.69 3.66% 228.29 decreased mamlly on
account of Joss in current
year

5 | lnventory trnover Times 4.83 5.75 1602 | -

ratio
Trade receivables :
6 turmover ratio Times 4.20 5.15 -1835 | -
The trade payable turnover
Trade pavables ratio is decreased in current
7 payan Times 4.07 5.70 -28.52 | year due to decrease in
turnover ratio . .
' purchase & increase in
average trade payable
g | Netcapital tumover Times 537 6.12 2222 -
ratio
The return on equity has

9 Net profit ratio Percentage 1.05% -0.77% -236.03 decreased mam!-y on
account of loss in current
year
The return on capital

10 Return on capital Percentage 6.76% 1.81% 474.41 employed has decreased

employed mainly on account of loss
in current vear

11 Return on investment | Percentage 14.67% 14.17% 3.52 | -

HUMAN RESQURCES DEVELOPMENT

Employees are the key to achieve the Company's objectives and strategies, The Company provides to the employees a fair
and equitable work environment and support from their peers with a view to develop their capabilities leaving them with the
freedom 1o act and to take responsibilities for the tasks assigned. The Company strongly believes that its team of capable
and committed manpower, which is its core strength, is the key factor behind its achievements, success and future growth.
We are continuously working to create and nurture an organization that is highly motivated, result oriented and adaptable to
the changing business environment. The industrial relations remained cordial during the year.

BISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Disclosure of accounting treatment has been given in the section ‘Other Disclosures’ of *Corporate Govemnance Report’
which forms part of the Annual Report.

FOQRWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This communication contains statements that constitute ‘forward looking statements’

including,

without limitation,

statements relating fo the implememation of strategic initiatives and other statements relating to our future business
developments and economic performance. While these forward Jooking statements represen: the management’s judgments
and future expectations concerning the development of our business a number of risks, uncertainties and other unpomm
factors could cause actual developments and resuits o differ materially from our expectations.

These factors inchude but not Jimited to general Market, Macro Economics, Governmental, regulatory trends, mov ‘ement in
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currency exchange, interest rate, competitive pressures, technological developments, changes in Financial Conditions of
third party dealing with us, legislative developments and other key factors that could adversely affect our business and
Firancial Performance. .

KLJ Resources Limited undertakes no obligation to publicly revise any forward looking statements to reflect future events

7
(Dilip Kumar Karn)

{Hemant
Managing Director
DIN: 00506995 DIN: 00061804

Date: 3" September, 2024
Place: New Dethi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KL] RESOURCES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

i. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KL] RESOURCES
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and the material
accountmg policies information and other epranatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “standalone financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
accounting standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and cash flow for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the’Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters:

‘Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities section of our audit report including in relation to these maty
Qur opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Branches : Jagjct Singh Strest, Patti Baru, Baraut, Distt. Baahp (LLP.) - 250611 Tel. : 9837564041

F-19, Anget Mega Mall, Kaushambhi, Ghaziabad {LLP}- 201010, Tel. : 0120-4331621
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Auditor’s response 1

during the year at various locations
50 as to cover all the locations
during the year. Approved
surveyors are also engaged for
verification of inventory lying in
the bonded warehouse at the port.
The inventory is situated at
multiple locations and keeping in
view the magnitude, nature and
specifications of the inventory,
technical expertise is required to
physically verify the same.

Sno. | Key Audit Matter
1. In respect of parties’ balances,| In the absence of external |
confirmations were sought from all | confirmations, we as auditors carried
the parties atthe year end. There are | out alternative procedures to verify
| parties who have not sent the| the balances:
confirmations. It has  been | i, We tested the effectiveness of
explained that management has the controls over sale and purchase
system of reconciling balances with transactions with the parties and
| the parties from time to time during |  accounting of the same.
the year. All the parties are having | ii. The transactions of sale/ purchase
regular business transactions. were verified through external bills
and invoices to/from the parties.
The payments were cross verified
from the bank statements of the
company. In view of the high |
magnitude of such transactions we
followed SA 530 “Audit Sampling”
of ICAL in this regard.
2. The physical verification of stockis | We have followed the following
carried out by the management | processes:

L

i,

1.

v,

We carried out checking of the |
~ stock records to verify the stock.
Feeping in view the magnitude of
transactions, the same has been
done as per sample selection basis
i accordance with SA 530 ” Audit
Sampling”.
The records of the physical
verification of stock during the
year were verified.
The report of physical verification
as  on 31.03.2024  from |
independent approved surveyors
in respect of stock lying in the
bonded warehouses has been
produced for our verification.
Keeping in view the location, |
magnitude and nature of the
mwventory consisting of Chemicals
in containers of voluminous size
at the port, and other places, we
were not technically competent to
personally  verify the stock s
physically and  relied
approved surveyor’s report.
We also tallied the same with
regular stock records maintaineg "

our verification.

4%
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4. Information other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report

Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report.

Our Opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereorn.

In connection with olir audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

‘materially misstated. '

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial posttion, financial performance, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going’ concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s finar 7

reporting process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Stateme ;%
2,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone finahza
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eITOT,)
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Page 3 0of13
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reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements. .

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financiai
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 2 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

ii.  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi gn
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

iii.  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v.  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate Y i)
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear ofS5rI7 (
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. :

the current period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe these audit matters in
our audit report unless law or regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matters and
when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

Page 4 of 13
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comunuricated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so wouid
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (21) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

H. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
- Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us: ' :

a. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
position in its Note No. 44.3 of Standalone Financial statements.

b. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts. Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not
arise. :

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to t Qﬁ\t‘m LS

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. _ S i
d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge axid
belief, as disclosed in the note 63 to the standalone financial statements, o
funds have been advanced or Ioaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever
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by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(ii} The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 63 to the standalone financial staternents,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
enfities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the managernent representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Clause (d) above contain any material
misstatement.

e. The Board of Directors of the company have proposed dividend for the year
which is subject to the approval of the members of the company at the
ensuing annual general meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in
compliance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

L. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that in our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Charterpd Rccountants

B2\ o8
FALRDIY CEOHY

Place New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024

UDIN: 24080990BK A AFK5770
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ANNEXURE “"A”TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 7(I) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements
of KL} RESOURCES LIMITED for the Year ended 31st March, 2024}

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of

audit, we state that:

i.(a){A The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

) including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and

equipment and relevant details of right of use assets and investment property.

(B)  The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

{b} These property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given fo us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification

(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the

company.
(d) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including
right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for

holding any  benami property under the Benami Transactions {(Prohibition)
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

ii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
managerment is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate

: for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the company. ‘

iii. During the year the company has made investments in, provided guarantee
and granted loans, unsecured, to companies.
(a) During the year the company has provided loans and stood guarantee or
provided security to other entities as under
A. - Theaggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates- see table below.
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()

(d)

)

iv.

V1.

- The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deeme

KL] Resonrces Limited
Awdit Report FY 2023-24

Rsin Lakhs

| Advances —|
innature
of loans

Details as per clause A & B

Guarantees | Security Loans

Aggregate amount
granted/ provided
during the year:-

- Subsidiaries

- Others

Balance outs tanding
as at balance Sheet
date in respect of
above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Others

4,588.64
31,440.82

5,987 07

11463.91 _
17.831.56%

** Net of provision for Doubtful Rs. 399.45 Lakhs
## Net of provision for doubtful Rs. 181.18 Lakhs

According to the information and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion
that the investment made, and terms and conditions of the grant of all Joans and

- guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

In respect of loans and advances, the schedule of repayment of principle and
interest has been stipulated. The repayments have not happened on the stipulated
date and the loans/ advances have been renewed. Please see our response in

subclause (e).

- Following fully provided advances are overdue:

- Subsidiary: Rs. 399.45 Lakhs

- Non-related parties: Rs. 181.18 Lakhs
As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, company
is taking adequate steps for recovery of impaired loans.
As per the information and explanation given to us, loans aggregating to Rs
14.751.08 lakhs (gross of provisicn) constituting 60.46% of total loans outstanding
have been renewed during the year. No fresh loan has been granted to settle the
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

The company has granted loans which are either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment only to its subsidiaries. The
aggregate of such amount outstanding as on 31/03/2024 is Rs.12.72 lakhs and
constitute 0.05% thereof to the total loans outstanding (gross of provisions). No
such Loans have been granted to other related parties/ promoters. '

As per the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the
company has complied with the requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Actin
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

deposits during the year,

We have broadly reviewed the cost records specified by the Central Govt. VL
148(1) of the Act, maintained by company and we are of the opinion that prima \
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(b)
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(d)

(e}

(&)
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KL] Resources Limited
Audit Report FY 2023-24

facie the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees state insurance , income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as applicable and there are no arrears
of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
disputed statutory dues are as under:

Nameof | Nature of dues Amount Period to Forum where dispute is
the | Disputed | which the pending
statute {in Rs. amount
lakhs) relates

Customs | Penalty imposed Rs.145.99 | 01-Apr-2015 | Customs & Excise Appellate
Act1962 | by Commissioner fakh - | to 31-Mar- Tribunal Customs

Customs 2017
Ahmedabad

Customs | Penalty imposed | Rs.1305.5 11-Aug-2017 | Customs & Excise Appellate
Act1962 | by Commissioner 0 lakh to 14-5ept- | Tribunal Customs

Customs : 2019
Ahmedabad

During the course of our audit, we did not come across any transactions in the
nature of surrender or disclosed income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As information and explanation given to us the company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
On overall examination of the financial statements, in our opinion, the funds raised
on short term basis prima-facie have not been utilised for long term purposes by the
company. _

As per the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of books, we are of the opinion that the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures. o

As per the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of books, we are of the opinion that the company has not raised loans during th
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associ

companies.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or I
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. \
The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures during the year,
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xi.(a)

(b}

{c)

xil.

xiii.

xiv.(a)

(b)

XV.

XVii,

XVili.

Xix.

As per the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the company or
any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

N report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors in form ADT-4 zs prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit
and Auditors) rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As per the information and explanation given to us there was no whistle-blower
complaints received during the year by the company

The company is not a Nidhi Company and as such para is not applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions entered into by the company during the year with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements,
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Inour opinion and as per our examination, the company has adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business
The report of the internal auditors has been considered by us.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reverse
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934),

The company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities.

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India

Clause xvi(d) of the Order on CIC is not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses duting the year and company incurred
cash losses of Rs 3386.44 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a petiod of

one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company a5
when they fall due.
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XX. There are no unspent amounts at the end of the year towards Corporate Social
Responsibility on ‘other than ongoing projects” or ‘ongoing projects’ requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) & (b} of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

- xxi. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Company’s Auditors Report
Order (CARQ) report given by auditor of companies included in consolidated
financial statements.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates

(Firm Regj

Place New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024 Membership No. 080930
' UDIN: 24080990BKAAFK5770
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ANNEXURE'B'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 7(I)(f) of our report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of KLJ RESOURCES LIMITED for the Year ended 31st March, 2(24)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of KLJ Resources Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under

the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate -
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

‘Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy

of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk
that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures sel eds
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of Pl
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with teference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
Is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial _
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
. Charlerefl Accountants

B17, (G£)
{ KALINDI {OLONY

HEW DELHIGS

Place New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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K L J Resources Limited
CiN: LEV1Z0WB1986PLC041487

Regd, Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700617

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs)

5i. . Note As at 3tst March As at 31st March
No, | F2icutars No. 2024 2023
ASSETS
1 [ Non-cutrent Assets
{2) Property, Plant an¢ £quipment 2a 2,734.83 2,850,73
{b) Right-of-use. Assels 2b 1,309.93 1,237.00
[€) Capital work-in-progress 2c - -
{d} Investment Property ) 2d 858.02 803.26
{e) Qther intangible assets 2e 2.74 1.53
{f Intangible assets under development 2f 62.33 -
[{+}] Financial Assets
{1} investments 3 11,899.01 12,150.50
{il} Others 4 697 .44 303.31
{h Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 379.59
{i) Cther non-current assets & 318.15 285.33
2 | Current Assets ]
{a) Inventories 7 71,621.77 78,213.65
{b} Financial Assels
{i) Investments 3 - -
{li) Trade receivables 8 88,331.88 83,921.14
(i) Cash and cash equivalents g 17.71 16.57
{tv} Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 7.814.91 7,353,717
{v) Loans 11 23,818,863 5,397.06
{vl} Other financial assets 12 302.82 347.02
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 1,692.05 1,259.97
(d} Other current assets . 14 3.735.08 3,435.64
TOTAL ASSETS 2,1%5,117.30 1,87,965.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 | Equity
(&) Equity Share capital 15 1,074.00 1.074.00
(b) Other Equity 16 81,918.55 77.619.89
2 { Liabilities '
Non-current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabllities
{i) Borowings 17 - -
{ia} Lease fiabilities 18 1,149.16 1.074.28
{i() Other financiat fiabilities 18 114.64 113.05
{b) Provisions - 20 228.27 209.20
{c} Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 674.20 -
{d) Other non-current liabilities 21 114.34 §7.62
Current Liabilities
(a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 22 43,240.09 36,208.58
{iz) Lease liabilities 23 329.41 276.53
(i} Trade payables: . 24 |
a) dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 250,38 61.449
b} Guefs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 84.726.98 79,770.02
enterprises .
(i) Other financia! fiabilities ) 25 35.44 77.95
(b} Other currerit fabitities 26 1,234.83 1,388.26
{c}) Provisions — 27 26.91 25.22
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,15,117,30 1,97,965,08
Material accounting pelicy & other information 1
21066

The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For, Kumar Chopra & Associates
Charteked Accountants

KAUING COLowy
NEW DELHI-65

M.No. 080980
HNew Delhi, 27th May 2024

Suresh Chand Jalther
Chief Financial Officer

or & on behalf of the Board of Directors

1

W
Dilip Kumar Karn
Director
Din:00061804

Company\Secretary
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_ K L J Resources Limited

CIN: L67120WB1986PLC041487
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata.T00017

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L 0SS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
{Rupees in .akhs}

Year Ended Year Ended
Note
No. 31stMarch, 2024 31st March, 2023
INCOME
{ ]Revenue from Operations 28 3,61,910.73 3.80,221.86-
It {Other income 29 ) 3,799,099 1,913,657
I TOTAL INCOME {1+ l 3.65,710.72 3,82,135.43
IV JEXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed ' 30 614.80 11,669.35
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 3t 3,43,257.60 3,90,091.98
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade 3z 6,405.12 {24,521.86)
Employee Benefits Expense ‘ 33 1,810.85 1,299.47
Finance Costs 34 3618.14 1,879.33
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 §47.15 670.10
Other Expense . 35 428497 5,017.88
TOTAL EXPENSES () 3,60,638.63 3,86,116.25
V IPROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (1-1v) 5,072.09 (3,980.82)

VI {Exceptional Items
VI {PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (V-V} 5,072.09 {3,980.82)
Vili[Tax Expenses .

=]

1) {Curent Tax 377.00 -
2) {Deferred Tax 900.94 (930.01)
3) {Short/(Excess) Provision for Earlier Year - {120.48)
IX IPROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (ViL-vill} 3,794.15 (2,930.32)
X JOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 36

A (i} itemns that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 657.38 282.63

- [ ({i} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss {152.86) (68.24)

B {7) tems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - (111.90}

{ii} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - 26.07

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 504.50 138.56
xI TOTAL .C_OMPREHENSNfi INCOME FOR THE YE{T\R ‘(JX+X) ) 4,298.65 (2,791.76)

{Comprising Profit/(Loss} and other comprehensive income for the period)
XIt {Earnings Per Equity Share {Continuing Operations); 37

Basic 35.33 (27.28)y

Diluted 35.33 ‘ (27.28)

Material accounting policy & other information : 1 =
The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 2to 66 / ]
/
Fo '{1 on behalfof the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date Cﬁw :
For Kumar Chopra & Associates - z
ered Accountants ] Hemant Jain Ditip Kumar Karn
Fir istration No. 000131 ' Marzaling Director Director
Dini00506985 Din:00061804

Sun§ Jain / |

Partper \ e T e 0L e . il 7.

M.Nb. 083200 Suresh Chand Jatther Aja i Gupta

New Delhi, 27th May 2024 Chief Financial Officer Company %ecretary
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K L J Resources Limited

CIN: L6T7120WB1886PLC04148T
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata- 700017

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 March, 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs)

33st March, 2024

st March, 2023

A) FCASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 5072.08 {3,980.87)
Add:Adjustments {or non cash items:
Depreciation 64715 £70.10
Add:Adjustments for other iterns:
Add: Gain/Loss on MTH en FX forward Contract - 3249
Loss/(Prafit) o Sale £ Disssrd of Assels (net) {27.05) -
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of shares (net) {34.35) (472.08)
Disposal of Intangible Assets under Development - -
Finance Cosis 3,818.14 1,879.33
Less:
Dividend Income (B47.30) (38.93)
Interest income {2,432.29) {1.018.60)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 5,995.39 {2,926 .48)
Adjustmant for Increasa/decreass in operating assets
(Increase}/Decrease Trade and Other Receivables {4,410.74) {20.062.43}
(ncrease)/Decrease in Inveniorios 6,59¢.28 (24,225.51),
(Increase) Decrease in other current assets {299.44) {1.741.28)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (348,92) {136.88)
(increase)/ Decreasa in other non current assets {32.82) (71.20)
Adjustment for Increaseldecrease In operating liabitities ]
increase/{Decrease) Trade and Other Payables 14505 23,185.45
Increase/(Decrease) other current liabilities (153.33) (3,483.25)
Increase/Decrease) other financial kabilities (40.92} {73,33)
Increese/(Decrease) other non current liabities 48.41 -
Increase/(Decrease) Provisions | 19.07 28,78
Cash Generated from Operations 12,5:4.43 (29,530,13}
Taxes Paid (net} 699.08 1,680.80
Nel Cash from Operaling Activities 11,815.35 {31,211.02)

B} |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (162.22) {181.50;
Salesof Property, Plant & Equipment 54,51 -
Intangible Assels under Deveiopment — (62.33) -
Purchase of Investment Proparty (85.1%) -
Loans (given)repaid(net)- Subsidiaries, Assoclates, Joint Venturesand Dthers {18,421,87) 5,673.66
Proceede from Other Current Invesiments - 6,072.21
Proceade from Other Non Current Invesiments B873.84 {6,067 49}
interest received 243229 999,32
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Bark Balance Including FDR's {461.14) {(3.373.00)
Proceede from disposal of Nen Cument investments in Associate {Refer note 50y 501 -
Piofit on Sale of Shares 34,35 A72.0%
Dividend Incorme from companiies other than Subsidiaries, Associates, Jolnt Ventures B47.30 36.93
Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities {14,915.07) 463216

C) |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Terns Borrowings 7,031.51 {11.24)
Dividends Paid {including Dividend Distribution Tax) - (26.85;}
Payment of Lease labiities {454 .89) (453,53
Short Tarm Borowings {nef) 28,803.78
Finance Costs X (3,455 68) {1,728.36)
MNet Cash (used in) / from Financing Activities 3,100.86 26,58).80
Net Cash inflowsq outflows} from activities 1.14 494
NetIncraase in Cash and Cash Eguivalents .14 4.94
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 16.57 11.63
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 17.71 16.57
Component of Cagh and Cash Equlvalents
Cash on Mang 13.10 12.82
Balance with Banks:
Current Accounis 4.61 75

171.71 18.57

The above cash flow statemant has been prepared under the indirect method
assetowlin INDAS -7 .

A3 per ouf repod of even data
ForKumar Chopra & Associates
Accountants

12, (55)
KLINDI COnony

Sunif Jairy
Partqer

M No. 080990

New Defhi, 27th May 2024

Hemart Jain

Tcz!m oA Qehaif of the Board of Directors

PUZ I - N

Suresh Chand Jaither
Chief Financiat Officer

Ajal Kumar Gup
Company Secrela

G

Dilip Kumar Karn
Direator
Din:00051804




H L JResources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kotkata- 7050617

STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY AS AT 31st MARCH 2024

A, EQUITY SHARE CAP(TAL

{Rupees in Lakhs}

- Particulars = RO SAmcunt i Rs.
Balance as at 3151 March 2072 1.074.00
Changes in equily share capital during the vear -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1,074,040

BALANCE S AT 31st MARCH 2024

(Rupeas in Laichs)

i Balancaat the'
o

B. OTHER EQUITY

irpics

o

: %gﬁﬂsbﬁ?% S :

Ft20TA5] .

Baiance
Profit for the year -

379415 -

Changes in accounting policy or) -

prior pariod errors
Restated balance al tha -

beginning of the reporting
Total Comprehensive income -

81,918.55

for ths year

Dividencis -
Transter {o retained eamings -

Issue of Bonus Share -

Balance as at J1st March 299.34

2024

3.312.60

74,995.30 B

28.5%

2,783.78

81,918,45

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2023

Balarca a5 ot 015t Agrd 2003

80,438.56

[2791.78)

Profil for the vear
Changes in accounting policy or] -

ior period errors
Rastated balancs s the N

irning of the reporting,
Total Comprshansive Income .

for the vear

T7.646.80

{26.85)) -

(28.85)

Divigdends =

Transfar lo retained samings _ .
Issua of Bonus Share -

Batance as at Mst March
2023 | 291.34

3,219,850

w77

2,268,08

T?.M!.B?

As par our report of even daie
Forflumar Chopra & Associates
_rt-,?d Accountants

Fi \‘ g Nao. 000131N

. KALINDT COLORY
Sunit JJain KEW DELHI-68
Partn,

M.Ng 080880

New Deihi, 27th May 2024

MY{A‘WQ\'\QJ\"\E/ —

" Suresh Chand Jalther
Ciief Financia! Officer

62,

rd
Dilip Kumar Karn
Director
Din; 00051804

Ajai Kumrébpt/

Company lEacrelary



, KL J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES & OTHER INFORMATION

1.1

b)

Corporate Information

KLJ Resources Limited ("the Company’} is a listed entity incorporated in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017, India having CIN:
LB7120WB1986PLC041487. Corporate office at KLJ House, 8A, Shivaji Marg, Najafgarh Road,
New Delhi - 110015

The Company is engaged in importing marketing and distribution and biending of Base oils,
Aromatics in India. Product range also covers range of Paraffins, Glycol Ethers, Oxo-Alcohols,
Aromatics, Monomers, Esters & Amines etc. Company having offices at Delhi, Mumbai, Kandla
(Gujarat), Kolkata, Chennai and factary situated at Silvassa.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are separate financial statements and have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian accounting standards) as
amendment from time to time. ‘

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis under the historical cost
convention and on an accrual basis except for the following which have been valued at Fajr value
as required under Ind-AS instead of historical cost,

i Defined benefit Plan-Gratuity

ii. Certain Financial assets and liabilities

fii, Assets held for sale-measured at lower of cost or fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair vaive of an assets or liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the assets
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
assets or liability at the measurement date,

Use of Estimates and Judgment

_The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of accounting policies and the
feported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reporied amount of income and expenses. Examples of such

estimated useful fife of property, plant and equipment actual resuits may differ from these
estimates, :

Useful life of Property, Plant and equipment (PPE): The company depreciates PPE on a
Written Down Value (WDV) over estimated usefut lives of the assets. The charge in respect
of periodic depreciation is derived based on an estimate of an asset's expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historica

=
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iii.

vi.

K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
lives, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful fife is reviewed at leest anpnually,

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present vaiue of the
defined benefit obligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An-actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates,

Under the projected unit credit (PUC) method a projected accrued benefit is calculated at the
beginning of the period and again at the end of the period for each benefit that will accrue for
all active members of the plan. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions,
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

i}sefui life of intangible assets: Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured

refiably.

The Company amortizes intargible assets on a Written Down Value (WDV) over estimated
useful lives of the assets. The useful life is Estimated based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors such as the

" stability of the industry and known technological advances and the level of maintenance

expenditiures reguired to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets. The
estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

Expected credit losses on financial assets: The company provides for impairment
provisions of trade receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the expected credit loss calculation based on the Company's history of
collections, customer's creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Leases:
Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the noncancelable period for which the lessee has the

right to use ‘an underlying asset inciuding optional periods, when an entity is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend {or not to terminate) a lease. The Company considers
all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee. to
exercise the option when determining the lease term. The option to extend the lease term is
included in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee would exercise the option.
The Company reassesses the oplion when significant events or changes in circumstances
occur that are within the control of the lessee.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill: As at the end of each
accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, Investment property
Investments and Intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment
property, Investments and infangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for

impairment each year.
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Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverahle
amount,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. future results could
differ due to changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the
estimates are recognised in the period in which the resuits are known /materiaiize,

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents refers to the fine item on the balance sheet that reports the value of a
company's assets that are cash or can be converted into cash immediately. Cash equivalents
include bank accounts and marketable securiies such as commercial paper and short-term
government bonds. Cash equivalents have maturities of three months or less,

1.4  Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to
the ordinary activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of
the performance.of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

1.5 Investments

1) Investments in Subsidiaries & Associates and Joint Ventures
Investments in subsidiaries, associates & Joint Ventures are accounted for at cost less

impairment loss, if any.

2} Other Investments
Investments other than in subsidiary, associate, joint ventures are held within business model of

both collecting contractual cash flows and selling them. These are measured at fair value, with
value changes recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

1.6 inventories

ltems of inventories are valued at lower of specific cost or net estimated realizable value after
providing for obsolescence, if any. Inventory of raw materials lying at factory are valued on FIFQ
Basis, .

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of transport, cost of conversion and other
costs including manufacturing /other overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective
present location and condition. Infer-unit goods transfers are valued at lower of cost/ net

estimated realizable value,
Non duty paid goods lying at port has been valued without Basic Custom Duty due to uncertainty

of quantum of material to be sold against transfer of ownership/ duty paid.

1.7 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
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futiire .cash receipts ar payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the company are segregated based on the available information.

1.8 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation / Amortization

a) Property, plant and equipment are measured: at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of asset includes the following:

i.  Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets

il.  Incidental éxpenditure during the consfruction period is capitalized as part of the indirect
canstruction cost to the extent to which  the expenditure is directly related to construction or is
incidental thereto.

iii.  Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the sile on
which it is located if recognition criteria are met,

b) Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-

term construction projects are capitalised if the recognition criteria are met,

c) Upon sale of assets cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

d) Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that is yet to be delivered
by the supplier / vendor at the reporting date is classified as capital advance; and

e) Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each
reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress,

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) over
the useful iife of the assets as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.8 Investment Property

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the company, is classified as investment property, Investment Property is measured
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less

depreciation and impairment, if any.

1.10 - Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acqtiisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated
amortization/ depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Thecost comprises of purchase price,
borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for

the interned use.
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Cost of items of intangible assets not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date is
disclosed as intangible assets under development,

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful fife. The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting pericd, with the effect of
any change in the estimate being accounted for on 3 prospective hasis.

1.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable valua
and impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. At each reporting date company assesses the estimate amount of
impairment loss. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if thera
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount and such losses either no longer exists
or has decreased. Reversal of impaired loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which

the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU) is estimated fo be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

1.12 Revenue Recognition

The Company dérives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods, manufactured goods and
- related services.

Effective 01 April 2018, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115)
-'Revenue from contracts with customers’,

There is no effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115, Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of
performance obligation which is treated as satisfied upon transfer of control of promised products
or services to customers on output method in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

On each reporting date expected credit loss on receivabies is measured and accounted for as per
Ind-AS 109,

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
Revenue from sale of products and services are recognized at a time on which the performance

obligation is satisfied,

Other gperating revenue ~ Service Charges

Company renders services only incidental to its primary activity that is trading of goods and sale
of manufaciured goods. Service charges are accounted for on satisfaction of performance
obligation which is treated as satisfied on completion of rendering of services under the contract,

Dividend income is recognized as and when received.

Claims: Alt sorts of claims by or against the company are recognized as and when acknowledged
/ accepted / settled / received.
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1.13 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits- Employee benefits payable wholly within 12 months of rendering
services are classified as short term employee benefits and are recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Prefit and Loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

The obligations for employee benefit such as Leave encashment is accounted for on accrual
basis,

Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to defined schemes such as Provident Fund and ES! is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan: The Gratuity benefit is funded through the Group Gratuity Scheme under
the Life Insurance Corporation of India. Contribution made under the scheme is charged as
expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The liability /asset in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of reporting period less fair value of the planned assets. The defined benefit

obligation is calculated annually by actuarial valuer.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income,

Performance based declared ex-gratia & accretion thereto is provided in the Statement of Profit
and Loss and to be disbursed as per the policy framed by the management.

114 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss account in the year in which
they are incurred.

1.15 Fuhctional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the financial statements. are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. (Functiona! Currency) The financial
statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the presentation currency of company.

Foreign Currency Transactions : :
a. All foreign currency transactions are translated into functional Currency at the rate

prevalent on the date of transaction.
b. Non-monetary items are translated at the rate on the date of initial transaction.

C. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are transiated at the prevailing closing
spot rate_at each reporting date.

AN
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d. Foreign exchange gain or Iosses in respect of monetary and non-monetary iterns is
recagnised in statement of profit and loss. '

1.16 Tax expenses represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

a

i,

fii.

Current income Tax
Taxes including current income-tax are computed using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and
generales taxable income.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected fo be recovered from or paid o the taxation authorities Liability for additional taxes, i
any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are completed,

Current tax relatéd to OC! ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCn),

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using balance sheet approach.

- Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is

computed using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assefs is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow alf or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax related to OCI ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income {OCH.

1.17 Provisions

i)

i)

Provision is recognized when:
The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and

A probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and

A reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Reimbursement of the expenditure required to seltle a provision is recognised as per contract
provisions or when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received.

Provisians are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Discounting of Provisions
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Provision which expecied to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due fo the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

1.18 Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

a)
)

i
i)
b)

€)

d)

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an cutflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; or

A reliabie estimate of the present ebligation cannot be made; or

A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of rescurce is remote.

Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingent Liabifity and Contingent Assets are
reviewed at each Reporting date.

Contingent Liabit;ty is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement.

1.19 Earnings Per Share

1.20

1.21

1.22

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

Dividend to equity holders

Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are
approved by shareholders or board of directors as appropriate.

Financial instruments:-




a)

jit.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction £osts that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments. Purchase and sale of
‘Financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement
A. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets At Amortized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI i it is held within a business mode! whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principai and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The company in respect of equity investments {other than in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures} which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election fo present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity

instruments.

Fair value through Profit and loss account ,
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all

changes recognized in the P&L.

‘B. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,

b) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL,

¢} Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss if incurs because the specified debtors fails fo make
the payments when due in accordance with term of debt instrument financial guarantee contract
are recognized initially as fiability at fair vajue ,adjusted for transition cost that are directly
attributed the issuance of the guarantee -Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind As 109 and the
amount initially recognized less cumulative income recognized in accordance with principal of Ind

AS115.

€. Derivative financial instruments
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The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and
options contracts io mitigate the risk of changes in .exchange rates on foreign currency
exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

This category includes derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as
hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they do not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments.
Any derivative that is either not designated as hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per
Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or
loss. ‘

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized Initially at fair value and attributable
transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.
Subsequent te initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or
loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income.

d) Derecognition
Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the

ownership of the asset. '
Financial Liability

A financial liabifity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

e) Impairment of financial assets: ‘

The company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortized cost and FVOC! debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 45(b) details
how the company determines whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the companies applied a simplified approach permitted by ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial

recognition of receivables,

Current and Non-Current
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-

Current classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is —

a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading. .

c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash eguivatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to selile a liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

a} It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b} ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d} There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for af least twelve menths

after the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabiiities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Leases:

As a Lessee :
The Company lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings taken on lease. The

company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU" and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term Ieases) and low vajue leases. For these shori-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. ' :

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost mode! ie. right-of use asset at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Right-of use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on

a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The lease liability is initiéuy measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease fiability and

reduce by lease payment made.

As a Lessor :
Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognized in income on

straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Transition
Effective April 1, 2019, the company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” and applied the standard to ali

lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method, on the date of
initial application. Accordingly, Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have

not been retrospectively adiusted.

For the comparative information that is til March 31, 2019, the Company has followed the

following accounting policy as a lessee

Finance Lease:
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantiafly

all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
lease,

Assets held under finance ieases are initiailly recognised as Asssts of the LCompany at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
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payments. The cofresponding Habflity to the lessor is included in the balance shest as 2 finance
lease obligation.

Operating Leasa:
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a

straight-ine basis over the lease term except where another systematic basis is more
representative of time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Non-current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets {or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considerad highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable anly when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn
and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified
as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented

separately in the statement of financial position.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are no longer met, the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset
that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of

{# its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not been classified as held
for sale, and .

(if) its recaverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as
held for sale,

Units of Measurement:

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs rupees with two decimal points except where otherwise stated.

Business combination
Business combinations arising from transfers of interest in entities that are under the control of

the shareholder who control the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and fiabilities
acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and
they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared
in the financial statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the value of net
assets and the consequent reduction in value of investment held by the Company is transferred

to the capital reserve or to the accumulated batance of profit and loss.
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KL JResources Limited
Regd. Office; 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-To0017

Hotes to Stzndelone Financisl Statements as a1 3158 March 2026

{Rupess in Lakbs)

Nnium’ .an‘o‘iiir'u‘e'nt Face T Wo ol shares - T T et
| T ol invest CValug | As ot 3103 24] As ar M03-F3] A% #1 T1 D524 T Be ol 355321

1 NONCURRENTINVESYMENTS

A J In Equity Sharec

o] tikiw of The cﬁ{npan_)‘

A} Quoted (Fully Paid Up)

! mri-.n valu:?x:u;f-:-z: R!.‘eAgg.-!W- (PY- R5.3,12,660) EwyShaes | 10 1350 133 G4z 328 ]
2 ﬁ:{,ﬁﬁ;"g‘ B1.036 R, 7.2.80.351.85- (PY- 5.37.58.14100) Equity Shares it 2,785,503 215683 v 517,58
3 Ji?&“’&.i.;"'l';"’m“;%.m RS, 2,95.19.700% { PY- 1,42,52.550 ) Eauty Shares ? .50 39,000 i 6253
4 E&%ﬁx:& 31-3-26 R, 1,86,000 { PY- 110,000+ } Equiy Shares 5 1.805 1.800 +.68 w1
5 :;u Vahe 25 oia? 31424 R1.60,5006 (PY- 31 1003 Equity Shares 5 1.000 1,000 2.01 231
4 %‘?ﬁf&ﬁm Rs. 4,89 575% { PY- 2,02,200" } Equity Shares 2 Soc 00 70 202
7 uﬁ& Velue as 0a ;fizt ns. 4,30, 4000 [ PY- 4,11,050- ) Equity Shares 10 *.000 900 430 Ak
i nfm;: m:ﬁi& RS 3,30,9500 (PY. 291,500/ ) Equity Shares 2 1,800 1.00¢ 331 292
¥ rgvﬁumaa-sﬁ'mz.w,tsw-{w- 1,18,925¢ ) Exully Shaces 2 0 Seo 2% 12
1o Jmcm:‘;g R 2,34, 106  PY- 1,71,856%) Equity Shares 1 1,000 s 24 172
" mﬁﬁt fim.m Rs. 1,39, 750/ { PY~ 83 4800/-) Equity Shares 2 100 100 140 0.82
12 m Value a5 on 31-3-24 Rs. 1.48,99,250 (Y- Rs. 1,84,20,750) Equity Shares ! 35,000 35000 14059 14

b) Unquoted (Fulfy Paia ug)

) In Whotly Dwned Subsidiary

T | Allamonts Townthips and Resorts Pyl Lid, Equity Shares 10 11,36,000 £1,30,600 112,00 113.00

2 | Brokenhits Townsbips st Rowirts Pyvi. Lid. Equity Shares 10 £6,16,000 18,10,000 161,00 181.60

3 | Soringdale Towsships and Resors P Lid. Equity Shares 10 1090000 | 1000000 100.00 109.00

4 | Vabey View Townships Pvl. Lit. Enuity Shares 10 040000 | 20,10,000 21,00 20500

5 | KLJ Specimiity Chemicals Pyt Ltd. Enuity Shares 19 0,000 50,000 .00 5.00

& | AX Busikitech Pl L1, Equity Shares 10 10,000 10,000 . .

7 | Ssahok Real Estate Py, Lid Equity Shaces m 16,000 10,000 1.00 1.00

8 iLakand Chemscals (indin) Lig. Equily Shares 10 1.00.00,000 | 1,00,00,000 1,900.00 1,000.06

v ﬁs';mg"m Y- "‘;""’" Pevmed investment of Fs INR Equity Shares | AEDH1000 2470 2,570 39,18 825.10
¥} in Associates

1 | Hamlog Plastic Goode Pvt, U, (Sharehakding 26%) Equity Shares f 1® i - [ 18.235 ! . ‘ 284

1 1 Prithvi Sound Producis Co. PvL Lid Equity Shares 100 5115 571§ 1,835.04 148523

2 | Lubhavard Properies P, 11, Equity Shares 10 8,600 2,500 552 £6.00

3 | Hamiog Piasiic Goods Py Lid, Equity Shares 0 12,138 . 10383 .

4 [ HH Buildtach Pl Lid. ' Equity Shares 19 8400001 845,000 8484 s5.78

5 | Bhadani Financers Pvi. Ligt. Equity Shires 19 23,500 33,500 104.70 9273

& | Pragatl imports Pui. Lid. Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 108,07 w70

7 | Progsti implrace Py, Lig. Equity Shares 16 45,000 45,000 £1.45 .13

8 Pragati Tradecom P, Lid. Equity Shares 0 45,000 | 45,000 67.04 18.05

B | Swastik Exporis and HApOTs PvL Li6, Equity Shares 1n 45,000 45,000 vsas | o536 |

10 | Swatic Tracom Put. Lig, Equity Sheres 16 45,000 45,00G v} 2837

11 Swastik Tradex Pol, 11, Enuky Shares 10 45,000 45,000 877 85.81 |
12 | Sereswati Co.Operating Ban L1d. Equity Shares 0 50 6| . 0.01 0.0
13 | KLJ Developers P Lid. Equity Shuios 10 4.76,000 £,78,000 1,456.13 1,659,850
| KLY Plagtic 110 . Equity Shares 10 58,000 58,000 - -
15 | AMI Computers 11 Equity Shares 1 2.000 2000 -
18 | Asia Pacific Einancial Services 16 Equily Shares 10 500 560 -
ki E 8 M Dyschem Lt Equity Shares 19 500 500 -
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¥ L J Resources Limited
Ragd. Gifice: &, Camac Street, Holkata-T0001T

Notes to Stangalone Financiag! Staements 23 2t et March 2024

B | In Preference Shases- Unquaoted {Fully Paid )
Adilakshri Enterprises LIg. p ! i i } ) .
T(Formerly M As KLJ Prastic LI ) I Preference Shares E 19 i 15.210 i 15,210
2 | Sherisha Techaclogies Pvi Lid ’ Preference Shares i i ! 18.71.5¢% ' 1971609 f 792.26 71538
C I In Debertures- Unquoled (Fully Paid Up} (Through Subsidiary}
|
T | Lakelang Chemicals Gindia) Lid. (OCD ) l Debentures l 10 ‘ | ’ 2,798.00 279800
O | In Mutual Funds: Quoted {Fully #ai¢ Ug)
Kotak Hancard Mulicap Fund Mutual Fuads (No's in
Market Vaiug a5 on 31.3-24 .4 39 30 Y575 (PY- Rs. 3.26,01.5447) unks) ° i T .3t 32562
MNCL Capitel Componder Fund s
Maket Vakin a5 00 33-3-24 Fls.£,24.23,000- ( PY- 3,08,12,000+) Fund No'sinunty) | 100 300000 | 300000 fae23 ez
E | lavastrrvent Gther
1 {imeasimant Other { Watch) [ [ t l ] 4900 43.00
Total Investments +1,299,01 12,150.50 J
5)  Agpregate amount of quated investments and Markel vale {hereaf; 2,062.36 1512.88
by Aggregate emount of uaquoted invesimens; e85 18,832.85
<} Aggregate smoun of impak it value of i 19019 0ite
. invostmenis are recognised &1 Far Velue as per ind AS 109, n 2 and heve beert caried ot cost less imprirement loss if any, {Brough Other
Comprehansive Ipcome.

1+



KL J Resources Limited
Regd. Office; 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017
Nates to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31st March 2924

{Rupees in Lakhs)

As At As At
31st March 2024 3ist March 2023
4 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Unsecurad, censidered good)
Security Deposits 462.05 ) 88.19
Finance Lease Receivable 23539 21812
"Refer note ro, 60 Lease” 697.44 303.34
§ DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) {net)
Balance as at the beglnning of the period 379.60 (508.24)
Add: Charge/(Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (900.94) §30.04
Add: Charge/(Credit) to Other Comprehensive income {152.86) (42.18)
{674.20) 379.59
Component of Deferred Tax Asset/ {Liabilities)
Opening Balance
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset 65,36 81.63
Provisions 49.40 56.12
Current Year Losses 953.00
Fair Value of Invesiment (682.38} (641.23)
Defined Benrefil Plans (5.78} (4.75)
374.60 {508.23)
Charge/(Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss
Property, Plant & Equipment and infangible Asset 6581 - {16.27)
Provisions (13.75) {6.72)
Current Year Losses (953.00) 953.00
{900.94) 830.01
Charge/(Credit} to Other Comprehensive Income
Fair Value of investment (156.62) (41.15)
Defined Benefit Plans - 376 : {1.03)
(152.86) {42.18)
Closing Balance
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset _ 131.18 65.36
Provisions : ‘ 35.65 49.40
Current Year Losses - 953.00
Defined Benefit Plans {2.03) (5.78)
Fair Value of Investment {838.00) (682.38)
{674.20) 379.59
6 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS .
Planed Asset (Gratuity) ’ 318.15 285.33
"Refer note no, 38 for Employee Benefit Obligation™ 318.15 285.33
7 INVENTORIES
Stock In Trade 44,845 16 61,548.31
Stock In Transit - 28,770.82 16,260.68. -
Raw Materals 148 188.2%
Finished Goods . 4.30 216.40
VYaluation of inventories are done as per point no. 1.6 of significant accounting paficies 71,621.77 78,213.65
8 TRADE RECEIVABLE
{Unsecured, considered good)-
Related Paity 5,070.88 9,119.83
Others 83,265.17 74,826.26
88,339.05 83,946.14
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Losses 747 25,00

88,331.88 83,921.14




K L J Ressurces Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-760017

Notes L0 Standalone Financial Statements as at 3151 Mareh 2024

For trade recelvables outstanding as on 31st March 2024, following ageing schedule shall be given:

receivables — considered good

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 & months -4 1-2 Years 2-3years | Mare than Total
months- year 3 years
{i) Undisputed Trade 8788275 38.24 200.37 217.6% - 88,339.05 |
|receivables — considered good :
(i Undisputed Trade - - - - - .
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
(i) Undisputed Trade - - - - . -
JReceivables — credit impaired
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - . -
- considered good
T(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - . N . ~
— which have significant
increase in credit risk
(wi} Disputed Trade - - . B . -
Receivables — credit impaired
For trade receivables outstanding as on 31st March 2023, following ageing schedule shal! be given:
) (Rupees i Lakhs)
Particulars - Outstanding for foilowing periods from due date of payment
Less than & 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than Total -
: months year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade 82,231.48 346.34 326.53 49515 546.64 83,946.14

(i)} Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

iv) Dispuled Trade Receivabies
— considered goed

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables
— which have significani
increase in credit risk

(vi} Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

“"Refer note no. 55 for market risk and
credif risk”




K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

10

11

12

13

14

Notes to $tandalone Financial Statements as at 31st March 2024

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand

Balance with Banks:

Current Accounts

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
FDR's with Banks as Margin Monrey
FOR's with Banks as Security

LOANS
(Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured)
Loans to related parties

{Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk)
Loans to related parties
Less: Provision for doubtful advance

{Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured)
QOthers )

{Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk}
Loans to Others
Less: Provision for doubtfu! advance

"Refer ncte no. 42 for Loan repayable on demand”
"Refer note no, 55 for credit risk and market risk”

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Accrued Interest on FDR's
Advances {(Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received)

Others Receivable

CURRENT TAX

Current Tax Liability
Direct Tax Payable

Less: Advance Tax & TDS

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses

Balance of GST

Other Advances

80

As At
31stMarch, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
As At
31st March, 2023

13.10 12.82
4.61 375
17.71 16.57
6,199.21 5,767.85
1,615.70 1,585.62
7,814.91 735377
5,987.07 2.710.75
399.45 399.45
(399.45) (399.45)
17,831.66 2,686.31
181.18 181.18
(181.18) (181.18)
23,818.63 5,397.06
67.28 60.10
79.82 165.04
155.72 121.89
302.82 347.03
377.00 -
1,969.05 1,269.97
1,592.05 1,269.97
359,62 275.48
2,900.95 2.879.38
47451 280.78
3,735.08 3,435.64

)

y



Kl J Resources Limited
Regd, Office: 8, Camac Street, Koikata-700017

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 315t March 2024

(Rupeesin Lakhs}

As At As At
315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023

15 -EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capitai; 2,500.06 2,500.60
Rt e T e

2,50.00.000 Equity Shares (PY 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares) of Rs.10/- each

issued, Subscribed, Called & fully Paid -up shares: 1,074.60 1.074.00

s o b et

{3) Reconciliaion of the shares outstanding at the Beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As Af M st March, 2024 As At 313t March, 2023
. No. of Shares No. of Shares

Equity Shares Held Amount Hald Amount
Al the beginning of the year 1.07.40,000 1,074.60 1,07.40.000 1,074.00
{ssued during the vear - - . -
Cutslanding at the end of the vear 1,07,40,600 1,074.00 1,07,40,000 1,074.00

{b} Rights, preference and rastrictions attached to Equity Shares:
The company has at present only one dass of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each share. Each shareholder is entitied for one vate per share heid & entitied
1o dividend in propoction of thelr shareholdings, In the svent of fiquidation of the company, the hoiders of the equity shares will be entitied o raceive remaining assets of the
company, after distibufion of alf preferental amounts, in proportion of their shateholdings.

(c) Detalis of Sharsholders holding more than 5% shares In the comparny:

As At 31st March, 2024 As At d1st March, 2023
Name of the Sharehoiders No. ‘:es!:““ P'ﬁ::::ﬂ? of Na, ;fj:'"’ F”:;;";g’ of
Sh. Hemant Jain 13,15,200 12.25 13,15,200 2.25
Sh, Kama! Jain 13,14,750 12.24 1314750 12.24
Sh. Pushp Jain 13,15,050 12.24 13,15.050 12.24
Bhadani Financers Pyl Ltd. 12,060,000 1117 12,060,000 1117
Siddhi Shree Vincom Pyt, Lid. 12,09,022 11.26 12,08,022 1128
Sh. K. L. Jain : 8,756,000 9.08 9.75,000 .08
Mangalshree Suppliers Put. Lid. ’ 38,88,200 8.28 8,898,200 8.38
Pioneer Infra-Constructions {P) Lid. 7.50,750 5.98 7.50,750 B.8g
Smit, Sushla Jain 8,75,000 6.29 6,75,000 6.29

{d} The aggregate shareholding of the promoters and Promotar group as on

As At 31st March, 2024 As At 31st March, 2023
% Change % Change
Name of the Promoters No. ‘:'S': ares P':::z;:; of during the Ne. OP:,SIZ'"’ P‘ﬁ:;:?ﬂg; of during the
year year
A. Promoter
Sh. Hemant Jain 13,15.200 12.25 . 13.15.200 12.25 -
Sh. Kamal Jain 13,14,750 12.24 - 13,4750 12.24 .
Sh. Pushp Jain $3,15.050 12.25 - 13,15,05¢ 12.25 -
Sh. K. L. Jain 8,758,000 8.08 - 8,75,000 6.08 -
Smt. Sushita Jain 8,75,000 8.29 ~ 8,75.500 829 -
B. Promoter Group
Skfdhant Jai 1.500 0.01 - 1,560
Masler Harsh Jain (through his guardian Mr, Pushp Jain) 1.500 001 - 1,500
Ms. Harshita Jain (Ihrough his guardian Mr, Pushp Jain) 1,506 0.01 - 1,500
Kavan Jain 1,500 0.01 - 1,500
Chetan Jain 1,500 ¢.08 - 1.500
Supreme E Solutions Private Limiled 524,280 4.89 - 5.24.280
Times Technosoft Private Limiled 450,000 4.19 - 450,000
Prithvl Sound Product Company Prvate [imited 45,448 0.43 - 46,448
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KL J Resources Limjted
Regd, Office; 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Noles to Standaione Financial Statements as at 31st March 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As At As At
31st March, 2024 J1st March, 2023

16 OTHER EQUITY
a) Securities Premium Account*

Balance as st the beginning of the period 3815.60 3,819,60

Balance as at the end of the period 3,819.60 3,819.60
b} Capital Reserves

Batance as at the beginning of the period 291.34 291.34

Balance as at the end of the period 291.34 281.34
¢}  Retained Earnings :

Balance as at the beginning of the period 71,201.12 74,158.29

Add: Profit for the year 378414 (2,930.32)

Less: Dividend (including Tax) - 26.85

Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 74,995.26 71,201.10
d}  Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at the beginning of the period 2,307.85 2,168.30

Add: Adjustment of Planned Assets (Gratuity} (11.18) 3.08

Add; Fair Value of Investment 515.68 135.48

Net Balance of Other Comprehensive Income 2,812.35 2,307.86

81,918.55 77,619.89

*Securities Premium Account is use to record the premium on issue of share. The reserve is utlise in accordance
with provision of company Act,2013

17 BORROWINGS-NON-CURRENT
Secured

Vehicle Loan
Secured with HDFC Bank Ltd. by Hypothecation of Vehicie

Repayable in monthly instaliments in next 5 months - .27
Less Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings - 11.27
18 LEASE LIABILITIES-NON.CURRENT
Lease Liabifity 1,149.16 1,074.28
"Refer rote no. 50 for lease liability™ ’ 1,149.1¢ 1,074.28
19 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-NON-CURRENT
Obligation against Financial Guarantee at Fair Value 114.64 113.05
: 114.64 113.05
20 PROVIS#ONS-NON-CURRENT
Provisions for employee benefits Ex-Gratia 67.70 69.97
Provisions for employee benefits Gratuity 160.87 138.23
228.27 209.20
21 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Security Deposits 114.34 67.62

114.34 67.62




K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

22

23

24

25

26

27

Notes to Standalone Financial Staterments ag at 3ist March 2024

As At
39st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As At
31st March, 20623

BORROWINGS-CURRENT
Secured, Repayable on Demand
From Banks:

Cash Credit Facilities 30,761.65 28,087.51
Buyer's Credit in Foreign Currency 11,540.64 6,526.16
42,382.29 34,613.67
Unsecured
Loans
Related Parties 837.81 1,683.64
937.81 1,583.64
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings - 11.27
. - 11.27
"Refer note na. 43 for Borrowing from Banks 43,240.08 36,208.58
LEASE LIABILITIES
Current Maturity of Long Term Lease Liability 329.41 276.53
"Refer nole na. 60 for lease liability* 329.41 276.53
TRADE PAYABLES :
a} dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 250.38 61.49
b) dues of ¢creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Relaled Parlies 78.24 50.13
Cthers 84,647.74 79,718.89
¢ ) disputed '
dues of micro enterprises and smal enterprises
Others :
84,977.36 79,831.51
"Refer note no, 48 for MSME Disciosure”
"Refer note no, 49 for Trade Payabie Ageing®
OTHER FINANCIAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest accrued 35.44 4546 -
Derivative Liabilities { MTM on FX forward Contract) - 32.49
. 35.44 77.95
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Liabilities 225.01 200.23
Interest Received in Advancs 3.18 -
Advances From Customers 271.49 913.12
Expense Payables 735.27 274.91
1,234.93 1,388.26
PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee benefits Gratuity 26.91 2522
26.91 25.22

22




K L J Resocurces Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Naotes to Standalone Einancial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

{Rupess in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
28 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale from Trading Concern ’ 3,60,281.06 3,66,523.51
Sale from Manufacturing Concern ’ 975.41 12,804 67
QOther Operating Revenue : 654.26 893.68
2,61,910.73 3,80,221.86
29 OTHER INCOME _
interest on FDRs 412,40 273.74
tnterest on Right-of-use Assels 20.27 19.28
Reclassified Net Cumulative {Loss) gain
on Investrent in Equity Share Carried at - 11199
FVTOCH
[nterest Other's 1,996.62 725.58
Rent 333.81 307.22
Bad Debts Recovery (Net of Write off) . : 34.03
Misc income 10.55 16.48
Profit on Sale of Shares & Mutual Fund {Net) 34.35 360.15
Bank Guarantee Fees 114,64 28.26
Dividend 847.30 36.93
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 2705 -
3,794.99 1,913.57
30 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening Stock 188.25 490.60
Add : Purchases 42803 11,387.00
816.28 11,877.60
Less: Closing Stock 1.48 188.25
614.80 11,689.35
31 PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE )
Purchase of Traded Goods 3,35,229.26 3,78,239.56
import Expenses 7.027.02 6,814.09
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Effact 1,001.32 5038.33
3,43,257 .60 3,90,09%.98

3z CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & STOCK-IN-TRADE

Traded Goods

OpeningStock 77,800.00 53,248.34

Ciosing Stock 71,615.08 77.809.00
6,193.02 (24,560.66)

Finizhed Goods

OpeningStock 216.40 245.20

Closing Stock 430 216,40

. 212.10 28.80
6,405.12 {24,531.856)
33 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries & Wages * 1,676.13 1,161.40

Confribution to Provident and ofher funds 66.96 78.97

Staff Weifare Expenses 67.76 §1.10

1,810.85 1,298.47

* Inchided Managerial Remunaration Rs.440.00 L skhs (PY NIL Lakhs)

B GE
RALDECOL

KEW B
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K L J Resources Limited

Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

34

35

36

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

Year Ended

31st March, 2024

(Hupees in Lakhs)
Year Endad
st March, 2023

FINANCE COST
interast Paid
Bank Charges & Commission

interes! on Right-of-use Liabilty

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent '

Rates & Taxes / Fees

Repairs & Maintenance

Insurance Expenses

Power, Electricity & Water

Consumable Stores, Spares Parts Consumed
Telephone & Mobile ’
Postage & Courier Charges

Printing, Stationery & Compuler expenses
Travelling and Conveyance

Vehicle Running & Maintenance
Adverlising & Publicity

Business Promation

Brokerage & Commission

Export Expenses

Fraight Expenses

Consuitancy, Legal & Professional Fees
Membership & Subscriptions

Director Sitting Fee

Gain/l.oss on MTM on FX forward Contract
Miscellaneous Expense

Corporate Guarantee Charges

CSR Expenses- Refer Note §1

Provision for Expected Credit Lossas
Provision for Expected credit losses for a financial guarantee contract

Provision for doubtful debts
Auditor Remuneration- Refer Note 45

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The disaggregation of changes to OCi by each type of reserva in equity is shown below:

a) Remeasurment of Defined benefit plans

ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Income Tax refating 1o items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss

b} Remeasurment of Fair Value Investment

itemns that will not be reclassified fo Profit or Loss
Income Tax relating to ems that will net be reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss

¢} Remeasurment of Fair Valye Investment

ltems thal will be reclassified subsequently to Profil or Loss
Net cumuiative (gain)oss reclassified to statement of profit and loss of
investment in equities canded at fair value through other comprehensive income

Income Tax relating net cumulative gain reclassified to staternent of profit and
loss of investment in equities carried at fair value through other comprehensive

income

3,343.65 1.572.45
122.01 15588
152.48 150,97

3,618.14 1,879.33

27.06 26.38
17.52 26.08
69.59 56.03
0.38 0.45
44.74 37.00
0.90 1.78
11.81 12.86
9.78 10.64
29.50 24.43
190.70 173.45
42.15 32.34
051 16.75
254.28 200.66
430.03 597.39
50,15 139,54

2,424 89 2,958.15

168,18 . 260,25

66.76 56.40
1.70 1.80

- 32.48
50.54 2016
70,00 8.27
313.60 380.00
{17.83) 6.00
159 113.05

- (200.00)
15.94 15.50

4,284.97 5017.58

{14.94) 4.11
376 (1.03}
672.30 288.52
(156.62) (67.21)
. 504,50 224.39
- (111.90)

- 26.07

- {85.83

. . . . . . . . R — - T
Adtuarial Gain on Gratuity and increase in fair valuation of investments along with its tax component are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Note 37, Earnings per Share:

{Rupeet in Lakhs)

318t March 2024

31st March 20723

Particulars
{Rs. per share) {Rs. per share}
Rasic £PS
From continuing operation 3533 {27.28)
From disconiinuing operation R i
Dituted EPS
From continuing operation 3533 {27.28)
From discontinuing operation . -
37.1 Basic Earning per Share
The earnings and weightad averags number of oP Uity shares used in catuulation of basic earning per share:~
{Rupses in Lakhs)
Particufars 3ist March 2024 315t March 2023
Profit atiributabie io ePuily holders of the Group:
Contirwing operations 3,754.15 {2830.32)
Discortinuing operations - -
Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earming Per Share 379415 [2,830.32)
Weighted aversge number of shares for the purpose of basic samings pet share 1,07,40,000 1,07,40,000 '
37.2 Diluted Eaming per Share
The eamnings and weighted average number of sPyity shares used in calcuiation of diuted eaming per share:-
{Rupwws in Lakhs)
315t March 2024 31st March 2023

Particulars

Profil atiributable o sPuity holders of the Group!

Conlinuing operstions 3,794.15 {2,930.22)

Discontinuing operations - -
3,7¢4.15 {2,930.32)

Eamings used in calculation of diluted Ea_'frﬁng Per Share from continuing operations

The weighted number of ePuily shares for the parpose of dilted saming per share reconciles 1o the weighlad averaga numbar of ePuity shares used in calculation of basic

eaming per share as follows:

Particulars 315t March 2024

31st March 2023

Waighted average number of EPuity shares used in calculation of basic earnings per
share
Effect of dilution:

1,07,40,000

1,07 40,000

Share Options
Weighted average number of EPuity shares used in calculation of diluted eamings per

share

1,07.40.000

1,07,40.000

Note 38.Employes Benafit Obligation
The Group oblained reports as requiced by Ind AS 19
31 2024, The distlosures as rePuired by the Ind AS 19 are g5 below,

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity
The Group makes arvval contributions 1o an income tax approved irrevocable Yust gratulty fund to finance the plan Hability,

employoes.

(Employes Benafils) hased on which disciosuras have been made in the financial statement for the year endad. March,

a funded defined benafit plan for qualifying

Actuariat Assumptions
Particuiars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
i) Disounting Rale 719% 7.19%
ii} Future Salary increase £.00% 6.00%
Particutars A1t March 2024 31st March 2073
Retirament Age (Years) . &0 &0
Monrtality ratas inclusive of provision for disabitity 100% of tALM (2012-14}  100% of IALM {2612-14)
Allrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate Withdrawal Rate

LUp to 30 Yaars 3.00% 3.00%

From 31 1o 44 yaars 2.00% 2.00%

Above 44 years ) 1.00% 1.00%
Halance Sheet ard related analysis [Rupoes in Lakhy)
Particulars 31st March 2024 Jist March 2023
Present Vaha of the obiigation at end 187.48 164.45
Fair value of plan assets 318,15 285.33
Unfunded Liabilityfprovision in Balance Sheet 13067 120.88
The amounts racognized in the income statement
Particulars 315t March 2024 st March 2023
Totat Servica Cost 2093 18.31
Net kvterest Cost : 8.92) {5.10)

13.21

Expenise recognized in the income Statement 12.01




K L J Resources | Imited
Regd. Office: 8 Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Gther Comprehensive income (OCH)
Net cumulative urvecognized actuarial gainiloss} opening

Actuarial gain f {loss} for the year on PBG 13.8% 4.35
Actuaria gain f{loss) for the year on Asset {1.05} {0.29)
Urrecognized actuarial gainf{loss) at the end of the year (14.94) £11
Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Net defined banefit liabifity at the starl of the period (120.33) {75.98)
AcPuisition adjustmerit . {15.93} -
Total Bervice Cost 20,93 1831
Net Inlerest cost [Income) {8.92) {5.10)
Re-mesasurements {14,594} 411y
Conltritxsion paid to the Fund {20.80) (59.00)
Benedil paid directly by the enterprise B -
Nat defined benefit lisbiiity at the end of the periag {130.67) {120.88}
Sansitivity Analysis of the tefined benafit obligation
4} Impact of the change in discount rate
Pra Val liga! he of i 187.48 184,45
#mpact due to increase of 0,50% {7.76} {7.34)
Impact due lo decraase of 0.50 % B.40 7.94
impact of the change in salary increase
P ¥ bligath of i 187.48 164.45
Impact due to increasa of 0.50% 7.57 7.34
(7.08}) - (8.53)

impact the to decrease of 0.50%

Sensitivities dus ta mortality & withdrawals sre not material & hence impact of changa due to thess not calculaled,
Bensitivitios as rate of incresse of pansions in payment. rate of increase of pensions befora retirement & fife expectancy are nol appiicable.

Nots 38.investment Propertiss
{i) Lease Arrangements

The Group has various premises under operaling lease arrangements. Thease are cancellable and range batween 11 months 1o 5 years which are fenewable by mutual
consent on mutuslty sgreeable lerms. Tha Group has faken inderes! free security deposit under cerain agresments.

(i} Amount recognisad In proift or loss for investment proparties

Renisl income 3381 307.22
Depracialion 30.35 31.61
Rertal Expensas 0.35 0.45
Profit from Investmant properties 307 275.16

(ifi} Estimation of Tair value
The Campany hes two properlies that have been considersd as Buitding under investment properies. The fair value of the leased properties is estimaled al Rs, 5573 lakhs,
The fair valuation is based on valuation report by the approved vaiuers,

{iv} fmmovable Property hald for rentaf income and capilal appreciation classified as irvesiment property as per ind AS 20,

Note 40. Intangitie Asseis under development

intangible assets under devalopment ageing as on 31si Mar 2024 x in Lakhs)
Amotind in intangible essets under development 1o a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 Year More than 3 Yoar Tolat
62.33 . - - 62.33
62.33 . - - 62.33
{Aupess in Lakhs}

Intangible assets undor development ageing as on 3tst Mar 2023

Amount in intangible assets under davelopment for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 Yoar More than 3 Year Tolad

Note d1.Loans and Advances stc,

Balances in Loans and advances, Recaivables / Recoverable, Advance from Customers, Suncry Creditors and Surky Debilors atc, are subject lo reconcitiation, confirmation
and consePuaniial adjustments, # any.

I the opinion of the Managemant, the value of Current Assels, Loans and Advances, on realization in the ardinary course of business, will not be less than the valug at which
thess ara siated in the Balance Sheet, excepl wiless staled otherwise, The Provision for alf known Liapilty is adePuate and nol in sxcess of the amouni censidered

reascnably necessary,

Note 421 sans and Advences .
Loans or Advancas in the nature of Joans have been granted {as dafirad under Companies Adt, 2013), either saverally or jointly with any other parson, that are repayable on

demand or withoul specifying any terms or pariod of repayment are as follows .

[Rupess in Lakhsj
318t March 2024 315t March 2023 .
Type of Bomowsr Amgunt  of loan  or|Percentage 1o the total| Amount of loan  orPercentage ta the totat
advance [a the nature of|ioans and Advances in advance In the nature of|Loans and Advances in|
ican utstanding {the nature of icans toan outsianding the nature of foans
Reiated Parties {Gross) £.396.52 . 3,130.20 -
Less: Provision for doubthal advance (389.45), - {398.45) -
Related Fartias (Net) 5 987.07 25.14% 271075 50 23% COEYA £ I
Others {Gross] 18,012.74 2,867.4% AT ‘ft?r
Less: Provision for doubtful advance {181.18) {181.18) A B2, (6 \g
{Others 17,831.55 74.66% 268631 4277% 3 Tt (ghokY -\ oo
|Promoters - - - - =i Lw neldas [
[Gireciors - - : - Y e R EL ’/
[KMPs i _ N - . oy o)
! E - i - - \\ ) ‘\'\Q
{To j 1 2331843 100.00% £ 357.06 100.00% Wt

8Tt
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Note 43, Borrowing from Banks
Credit Facilities are secured as under:

basis with aii banks in Consortium on stocks in trade and the entire current sssets inchuding goods in lransit and Book

The facilities are secured by the first charge on pari passu
cme additional properties owned by the company/direciors

Cebis and Receivables Furthes the loans are collateralized by the guarantess of promoter directorsigroup canzern and s
relativesigroup concerns. Inrespect of Buyer's Cracit, indian Bankers have given guarantee to foreign banks,

¥ returns or statements of current assets filed by the

The Company has borrowings from banks or financial inslitutions on 1he basis of security of current assats, the Puarten
Comgany with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account

PNB 3500 200 7700

HOFD 8.500 150 73550

5T 5000 500 22500

KOTAR 4.500 ) 137550 132230.00
1GIC) 4 500 - 34 KXy

5Ch 2,000 - 550

TOTAL 40,000 2,230 1 1,32,230 |

Hotn 44, Comumitments, Contingent Liabilities and Comingént Assals
44.1 Capital Commitments ; As at 3tst March, 2024 Rs. Nit 2nd 345t March, 2023 Rs.Nit

44.2 Contingent Liabilitiss & Contingent Astat
i) Contingent Lisbiiities and Contigent Assets, as defined in Ind AS 37 on "Provisions on Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assals”, are disclosed belaw. Provision is made,
if it becomes probable that and cutflow of future economic benafils wifl ba rePuired for the ilem praviously dealt with a3 Cortingent Liability.

{Rupeey Iy Eakhy)

Fardculars oy 2 af 315t March 2024 15t March 20235
Bank Guaraniees 52638 300.00

i) i is et practical of the company 1o estimate the fiming of cash outfiow i any in respect of above stated contingent liakilities,

iiiy Company does not axcept any reimbursament from third party in respect of these contingent liabilities,

44,3 Contingent Llabilities

Demand aggregating Rs. 1451.49 lacs has been raised by Commissioner of Cusioms Ahmedabad and Commissioner of Customs Kandla, against the company. The company

has disputed both the orders before the Appeilate Tribunal Customs. in the opinion of the managemant and B3 per legat adviss laken by the company the demand is highly
improbeble and hence not provided as lia:bflil)f in the books of accaunts. The company is cortingendly liable 1o the axtent of Rs. 1451.49 Lacs,

Note 45. Break Up of Auditors Remuneration

vEir 316 Mareh 20245

Farticulany i Z
Payment to Statutory Auditors

-Audil Fee 9.44 9600
Payment fo Tax Audilors 0.50 .50
Payment lo Cost Auditors 2.00 . 2.00
Payment o internal Auditors 4.00 4.00

1584 15,50
Note 46.Detal! of Unhadged Forsign currency BXposUres are as under:
Fapeas i Lakhs)

Partitulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Un-hedged Forsign Currency Payable 83,106.62 . 41,265.69

Note 47, No amounts arg due for deposits at the Balance Sheet date to the investor Education and Protection Furd,

Note 48, MSME Disclosurs
The company has not received confirmations from many suppliers regarding their slatus of cegistration under Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Deavelopment Acl, 2006
and as such, it is presumed that they are nol registerad under tha A2t In casa of supplier wha have confirmed their MSME statys Totiowing information is distosed as per the

Section 22 of the Micro, Smalt and Medium Entorprises Development Act, 2006

i. 'ﬂ‘\eprhdpalanwmand!hainleras!mﬂwmmremainingwrpaidloanysuppﬁerssatﬂ‘mendofeachammﬁngyear:
{Rupess in Lakhs)

As at st March 2024 As at 313t March 2023

Particulars

Principal Unpaid as at 31st March, 2074 _ 250.38 61.49

Intarest accrved theresn and unpaid R WL N
250,38 61.49

Total amount outstanding as at 315t March, 2024
i) The amount of irderast paid by tha buyerﬁ'niafmsafsectioms.abnqwimmeMdmmmlmmmw«mmmaappmwdaywww

. accounting year;
- Principal paid beyond appointed day during the year - NiL . NIL
intersst paid during the year . NiL . NiL

i} The amount of inlerast due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which bave been paic but bayend the appainted day during the yaar) but without
. adding the inferast specified undar this Act;
Interest due and payable as at 355t Marech, 2024 NIt . NiL
iv} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of sach accounting year;

Interest due and payable for the year endac 21s! March, 2024 NIL
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v} The amount of further interest remalning due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dale whes the interest dues as above are actually paid lo the small
enterprise, for ihe purpose of disaliowance as deductible expenditure under section 23 - NiL

Note 48. Trzda Payble Ageing

For trade payable cutstanding as on 31st March 2024, following ageing schedule shall be given:
{Rupess in Lakhs)

Famicular Outstanding for foitowing periods from dae date .
J Less than 1 Year 1-2 year ] 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Tolat
HMSME 250.38 - ] - - 250.38
Cthers 24436.09 235.72 | 28.11 27.06 8472658
Disputed dues MSME ]
Disputed dues Others |
For trade payable sutstanding as on 318l March 2023, foltewing ageing schedule shail be given:
{Rupess in L ekhs}
Particular OQutstanding for following prriods from dus date
Less than 1 Year 1-2 year 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total
MEME £3.49 - - - 61,49
QOthers 79461.40 73.83 234.78 - : 78770.02
Disputed dues MSME
Disputed dues Glhers

Note 50. Sale of Shares of Associate
During the current financial year the company has sold 4100 No. shares of Hamlog Plastic Goods P Lid (Associate Company) for a consideration of Rs 35.01 Lacs. Ater the

sdle of these shares Kamlog Plestics Goods P Lid coased 1o be an Associate Company,

Nota 51. Corporate Social Responsibifity {CSR}

a} CSR smount rePuired o be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 reed with Schadule Vi thareot by the Company during the year is Ry.312.52 Lakhs
. [Previous Year Rs.377.81 Lakhs)

b} Expenditure relatad to Corporate Sociaf Responsibiily is Rs.313.66 lakhs {Previous Year Rs.380 Lakhs)
[Rupast in Lukhs)

Particualars 31st March 2024 315t March 2023

A, Ameunt Required to be spent during the year
{i) Gross amaurd (2% of average net prafit as per Section 135 ofCompanies Act.2013) 312.57 377.81
ii) Set off gvailable from previous year - 4.57 238

|{ii} Set off available irom previous yea
[iii} Tatal €SR obligation for the vear [{h-fiil] 307.95 375.43
B. Amount apsroved by the Board to be spend during the year 31360 380.00

£, Amount spent during the yaar o

2} Construction/acPyisition of any asyet 0.00 0.00
313.80 380.00

) On purposes other than {a) ahove
Total 313.60 380,00
D. Set off available {or succeeding years 5.85 4.57

E. Amount unspent during the year! Shotfall st the and of ysar - B

F. Yotal of previous years shortfall
G. Reasan for shorfal)
H. Where a pravision is made with respect (0 a bability incurred by entering inlo & contraciual obligation, the
movements in ihe provision during the year shold be shawn saparatly

Specify the reason(s}, if the company has failed to spend the twa percent of the average net profit as par section 135{5} Not Applicable

[Rupews in 1.akhs}

Details of Related party Transaction

Sh.No. TName of the Company 1 Nature of transaction by the Company | Jist March 2024 T~ 31st March 2023 |
1 [KLS Foundation ] Promating Education & Skill gevelapment ] 313.00 | - ]
Datail of Amount spent towards CSR given below:

Nature of CSR asctivities {Rupens b Lakhe}
Particulars st March 2024 st March 2023

Haaith (Constructioniacquisition of assets)
Haalth Education & Skill Devalopment Activity
Total

313.60
313.60
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KL JResqurees Limited
Regd. Qfice: 8 Camsc Streel Kotkata T00047

3 Uisclonures In raspect of ladisn Accounting Standerd {Ind AS-id) “Relstec Party [Haciozures’ as specified under Section 113 of the Campanies Act201), read with Ruke T of
NOE 53 |ira Companies [Accounts) Rule 2014 fen amendeds:

‘F Enlerprises whera control exlsts:-
2 Subsidisies:

Altamanis Townships and Regorte P, Lig,

Srokenhiis Townships and Resory Pv Ltd.

Springuake szms.hips end Resoriy Py, Ltg.

Valley Viww Tommahips P, LIg,

KLJ Aesources DIACC

AK Buildlach P e,

Snahok Real Estale P LI9

KiLf Speciafity Chemicels Pt Lisited

. KL PTE Mmited {Subtidiary of ki) A DMEC)
Lakelarsf Chamicais India Lirnked

2 Othar reisted parties with whom the company had transactions;-
2} Asuocintes:
KLJ Organic [ Thaiand) Lid. (Associate of KL) Revources PACC)

b} Entities Over Which KMP Have Contral Oy Singnificant Influence
KL Prasticizers Limiad,
KL Drganic Lid,
Prithwé Sound Products Co. Pyt Lid.
Hamiop Frestic Goods P, L4,
KLJ Polymers & Chemicals Ud.
KL Potpmers Pt Lid
HH Bustctech Pl Lid,
Irspiration Deaiecs Pt Lid,
Fatog Traders P, Lid.
KL Gwvslopers Privats Limitsd
KL Foundation
HLJ Resttach P Lirnited
O M Really Dwvsiopers P Lid,
High Eximpetro Pvt, Lid.
Sidha Petrochamicals Pt Lid
KL Petroplast Lid
Sonall COverseas P td

€] Koy Managament Parsonnsl:

Sh. Hemmt Jain Menaging Direciar
Sh Ajai Kumar Guple Company Secretary
Bh. Suresh Chand Jakther Chiaf Financiel Officar
Sh. Dilip Kumar Kasmn Hrecler -«

Sh. Rem Prakpsh Mekan Pérncior

M3 Kalpana Seth Oivector

8h. X P8 Chauhan Director

5h. Babulsl Bhutorla Director

# Raiatbvns of Kay Msnageinent Perennnal:
s Nesty Jain Sr.Mansger (Business Development)
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K L § Resourres Limied
Regd. Office: 8 Camac Street Kolkata-700647
} 5 Disclesures In zespect of indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-24) 'Related Party Disclosures’ s specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2043,
Note 53 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rule 2014 a5 #mended);

.40, |Nature of Transaction Name of Related Parties Relatronship 31st_March, 2624 31st March, 2023
a)  Tiapsactions durlng the year (Rui‘:ii:;
1 Purchases KL Plesticizers Limited, Rafer Note 53.2(b) 1356.35 55022
High Eximpetrs Pvt. Lig. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 44236 6,319.27
KLd Organic Lid. Raler -Note 53.2(b) 35443 32197
Sidhe Pelrochemizals Pvi Lid. Rafer Note 53.2{b} 485.47 27253
Lakeiand Chemicals India Limited Wriolly Owned Subsiciary 726,31 <
KLJ Petropiast Lig. Refer -Note 53.2¢b) 97.60 2.225.00
Sonali Overseas Pvi Lig Refer «Note $3.21b) 374.24 5.186.74
4,437.62 1687573
2 Gales KL/ Plasticizers Limitad, frefer -Hole 53.2¢b) 1423.39 5,336,36
High Exitnpetra Put. 1 1d, Refer -Nots 53.2(43 3386.52 458,89
#4.J Drganic Lid, Refer Note 53.2{b) 474197 €,852.06
Laketang Chemicals India Limited Whiclly Cwmed Subsidiary 318,63 335.08
KL Poiymers Pvt Lid, Refer «Note 53.2{b) 0.04 2.00
KL Polymers & Chemicals Lid, Rater .Nota 53 2(b) 1088 238.40
KLJ Petroplast Lid. Reter .Nate 53.2(b) 2067.26 941,17
" Sidhe Petrochervicsls Pvl Lid. Refar Note $3.2(b) 7958.60 5,888.41
20.808.09 Z1,092.34
3 RentPag KLJ Polymers & Chefnicals Lid. Rater -Note 53.2(b) 459 8.50
KL} Plasticizers { imileg. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 14.15 t4.18
Sidhe Petrachemicals Pvi Lid. Refer -Note 53.2(b) Q.00 521
Sadhok Real Estata Pyt Ltd. Wholy Owred Sutisidiary 228.00 238.26
HH Buiidtech Pvt, L1g_ Refer -Note 53.2(b) - [k H
Lakeiand Chernicals Icfia Limited ¥Wholly Cwned Subsidiany 13.86 3408
264.52 269.56
4 RentReceived KL} Developers Private Limited Rafer .Note 53.2(b) 319 -
KL Reattech P Lid. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 1.59 -
KLJ Petropiast Lid, Refer -Note 53.2(b} 5.63 -
1041 -
& Maintenance Paic Sadhok Real Estate Py 4 td, Whoily Owried Subsidiary 11.51 13.37
11.51 13,37
B Reimb, of Exp. Paid KLJ Organic Lid. Refer .Note 53.2(b) 11.80 -
KLJ Petroplast Lid, Rafer -Nole 53.2(b) 4431
KLJ Plasticizars Limited, Refer -Note 53.2(b) 2.9 472
Sidhe Petrochemicals Pvi Lid. Refer Note 53.2(b} 13.28 -
AT.98 43,83
7 Reimb. of Exp.Recd KLJ Organic Lid. Reler -Nots 53.2(b) 32.5¢ 56.26
KLJ Plastcizers Limited, Refer -Note 53,2(b) 212 2118
Sonaki Overseas Pvt Lig Refer Mole 53.2(0y - 2380
Laketand Chemicals Indea Limited Whoty Owned Subskdiary 22528 248
High Eximpetro Pyt, Ltd, Refer Nots 53.2b) 2992 6.07
KLJ Petroplast Lid. Rafer -Nols 53.2(b} 17.75 11.80
308.08 13138
8 Interest Paid Sh.Hemant Jain Managing Director 68.59 5597
D M Reatty Dovelopers Pyt Ltg, Refer -Note 53.2(b} 19.97 1095
KL Davelopers P Etd Refer -Note 53.2(b) 196,08 -
284,04 66,82
"9 Interest Rocelved Sadhok Real Estate Pvt, Ltd, Whelly Qwned Subsidiary 13055 13724
Altarnonte Townships And Resors Pvi Lid, Whoty Owned Subsidiary o 047
Brokenhitts Townships And Resons Pvi Lig Whotty Owned Subsidiary g21 a7
Springdals Townships And Resorts Pvi Lt Whially Owned Subsidiary 0.21 0.17
Vakey View TownshipsPyt Lig Wholly Owned Subsidiary 021 017
Lakeland Chemicals india |imited Wholly Owried Subsidiary 208.80 33.04
KL} Speciafity Charicals P Lid Wholty Owned Subsidiary 8438 -
L £33.56 170.54
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TSR Expenditure

Investment in Shares

Investment in OCD Debenture

Securily Deposil

Remuneration
fKey Managarial Personnel)

#L.J Foundation
Lakeland Chemicals india Limited

Lakeland Chemicals India Limited

Sidhe Patrechemicals Pyt Lid,

Sh. Hemant Jain
Sh Suresh Chand Jalther

{Inciuding contribution ta defined cantribution glans) Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta

Director Silling Feas

Loans & Advances Given

Loans & Advances Received back

Unsecured Loar: Taken

Unsacured Loan Repaid

Financial Corporate Guaraniee Service Given

Financial Corperate Guarantes Service Taken

Mg Neety Jain
$h, X P § Chauhan

Sh. Dilip Kumar Karn

Sh Ram Prakash Makan
$h. Ranjeet Ray Banthia
Sh. Babulal Bhutoria

Ms Kalpana Seth

A K Buitdtech Pvt. Lte.

Allamonte Townships And Resorls Py Lig.
Brokenhilis Townships And Resorts Pyl Ltd
Springdate Townships And Resorte Pyt Ltg

Valigy View TownshipsPul Lid
Lakeland Chemicats india Limjted
KLJ Speciality Chemicals Pvt Lid

A K Buildiach Put, Ltd.

Sachok Real Estate Pt Lid.
Lakeiand Chemicals india Limiled
KLJ Speciakty Chemicals Pvt Ltd

Sh.Hemant Jain -
D M Realty Developers Py, Lid.
KLJ Deveiopers Pvi Lid

Sh.Hermant Jain
KLJ Developers Pui Lid

KLJ Resourcas DMCC

Sadhok Reai Estale Pvi. Ltd.

Rafer -Note 53 .21b)
Whotly Gwned Subsidiary

Whofly Owned Subsidiary

Ratfer -Note 53.2(6)

Managing Director
Crief Financial Officer
Company Sectretary
Sr.Manager{ Business
Development)

Director

Dirgctor
Director
Director
Direttor
Director

Whatly Owned Subsidiary
Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Whally Owned Subsidiary
Whally Gwnett Subsidiary
Whotly Owned Subsidiary
Wholly Ownied Subsidiary
Whofly Owned Subsidiary

Whiolly Owned Subsigiary
Nhiolty Owned Subsidiary
Whatly Owned Subsidiary
Whelly Owned Subsidiary

Managing Director
Refer -Note 53 2(b)
Refer -Note 53.2(b)

Managing Director
Refer -Note 53.2{b)

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Wholly Ownisd Subsigiary

31300
300 -
1,000.00
. $,000.06
2.798.00
- 2,798.00
- 1.7
- 1.47
572.29 121.37
21.91 24.50
19.14 16,13
19.21 19.21
37.42 3591
669.95 21711
0.3% 0.35 ]
0.60 050
020 0.60
0.20 -
035 0.35
1.70 1.50
. 40000
025 0.50
0.25 0.50
0.25 0.50
0.25 0.50
2,675.01 762,90
191256 -
4,588 87 1,165 30
. 400,00
196.00 196 00
856,14 30,00
600.00 -
1,652.14 £26.00
45.00 1,515.00
150,00 R
4,800.00 .
£,995.00 1,515.00
920.00 261.35
4,00.00 -
$20.00 261.35
114.64 28.26
114,64 28.26
8250 6.76
22,60 9.76
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Name of Relsted Parties

Relationship

31st March, 2024

;
3ist March, 2023 i

[ S.No. Nature of Transaction
b} Outstinding Balance as at 315t March 2024
1 Unsecured toans Taken Sh Hemanl Jain #anaging Direclor 631.72 1,44429
O M Raally Developers Pyt Lid, Refer -Note 53.2() 30608 138,65
837.8% 1,583,54_{
2 Loans & Advances Given A K Builttech Pv. Lid Whoily Cwried Subsidiary 359.45 38845
{Provision af doubiful gebt By 21-22y {398 45) {399 453
Balance Amount . .
Sachok Real Estale Pvi. Lt Whoily Qened Subsiciary 1.887.36 1.957.76
Altamonts Tewnships And Resorts Pt Lig. Wholly Cvwned Subsidiary 3.18 272
Brokenhils Townships Ard Resorts Pyt Lid  Wholly Owned Subsidiary 218 272
Springdale Townships And Resorts Pyt W Wholy Owned Subsidiary 318 72
Valley View TownshipsPyi Lid Wholly Owned Subsidiary 318 2.72
hakeland Chemicals india Limited Wholly Qwned Subsidiary 2,698.51 142,08
KLJ Speciality Chamicals Pt Lid Wholly Gwned Subsidiary 1,388 48 _J
5,887 .07 2,710.75
3 Trace Payables KLJ Plasticizers Lirnited, Raler Note 53.2(h) 340 3212
KLJ Orpacic Ltg, Reler -Note 53,2{b) - 106
Lakeiand Chemicals India Limiteq Whally Owned Subsidiary 1.00 -
KLJ Petroplast Lid Refer -Note 53.3(t) 7479 7.60
79.13 40.78
4 Trade Receivables KL.J Plasticizers Limited. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 125.04 43269
KLJ Organic Lig, Refer -Note 53,2(b) 1.004.93 297586
Laketand Chernicals India Limitad Whiolly Owned Subsidiary 80.85 33748
KLJ Polymers & Chermicals iy, Refer -tote 53.2(b) 234 347
KLJ Petropias: Lt Reler -Nole 53,20 887.12 §1.17
Sidhe Petrochermicals Pyt Lid Refer Nate 53.2(b) 3,136.81 5291 39
5,037.0% 909176
§  Interiast Receivable on Debenture Lakeland Chemicals india Limited Wholly Owned Subsktiary 50.36 21.52
50.38 21.52
8 Expenss Payable Sadnok Real Estate Pt | td, Whaolly Owned Subsidiary 005 9.34
.05 234
7 Corporate Guarantes Fes Recsivable KL Resources DMCC Wholly Owned Subsidiary 114,64 20.26
114.64 28.2¢
8 Securly deposit Sadhok Real Estate Py 11d, ¥holty Owned Subsidiary 24407 244.07
Lakeland Chemicals india Limited Wheolly Qwned Subsidiary - 392
244.07 247.99
g Remuneration Sh. Hemant Jain Managing Ditector 46091 .
(Key Managerial Personnely Sh.Suresh Chand Jalther Chisf Financial Officer 276 2.72
{inclutding contribution io defived contritution Pans) Sh. Ajal Kumar Gupta Company Secretary 238 1.97
. 5¢. Manager { Business
Ms Nestu Jain Dew " 278 469
5h. K P 5 Chauhan Director B44 479
£77.18 14,47
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K1 JResources Limiteg
Regd. Office: 8, Camag Sireet, Kolkata-T00017

Note 54. Capitai management (Ruptes 14 Lakhs}

The company manages As capilal 10 ensure 1hat the company wid ba able to continue 5 3 Qoing concem while Maximising e relum to slakehoider through spimization of the detd sng etully balance, The
Tapital siruciure of the company comprizes of debl and iotat equity of the company,

Cebt Equity Ratio {Pupeat fn Lanns}

As ot 5tat March Ax 0t 313t Margh

Panicutars 2024 2021
Borrowing (Note Na. 17 & 22) 324000 38,208 58
Short term cabt £1,240.08 36,208 50
Equity (Note No_15) 1.674.00 1.074.00
Ciher squity {Mote No.t6) 8191855 6180
Taisl equity 62,8872 55 73,6334
Tebt equity Ratio 0.52 .48
Nete 55, Fair Value mezsuremants
{i) Financiat instruments by Category Hupess In Laichn)
Particulans L A5 2t 3131 March, 2024 As o1 Tist Merch 023
: FVTPL, FVTOC] Amortised Cost FVYPL VToct Amonited Coxt
Financial Aswels
Imvestmend - 878220 5518.81 - T,134.80 5015.82
Trade Receivabies . - . . 8533188 . - B3.521.14
Loans - - Z3.818.83 . - 5.397.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - A - . 16.57
Bank Balances - - [AICR - - TASLTY
Orhars - M 1,000, - - 85034
Tots! Financial Assels - §,782.30 1.26,500.2¢ - pALIAT ) 10235470
Firmnciat Lixbilities
Borowings - - 43,2404 - - 36,208,583
Trade Payables - - 8497738 - . 7083151
Loase Habiities - - 147857 - - 1,350.81
hora U M 15008 - - 191.06
Yotal Financial Liabifities - = ] 1,28 24650 - - 13r581.90

b} Bomowings-Cument are evaiuaind by company on paramelers such as irdaresi rzies, specinc couniry risk feclors and other risk fociers. Based on this evAluation tha falr valua of such payabiss zre not
materially diftarent from their canying smoum, As the emoant i immaterial, no fair vabuation is Thquited.

<} Noa Current Loans ghvan amdt Security Deposi heve been corginued o carting vakio as ion ace i
d) Al Investmianis other than subsidiary snc i e L {5 valus, whh value changes recognized in St of Dther Compy income. b L] k and
heve baen carmied at cost iess impaiseman foss if ary, through Cther Comprahensive Income,

i) Fair Vaiue hierarchy

Level 1- Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markeds for identical ussets or liabilitles

Level 2- inpuls other than quated proes included withis Leved 1 that are chservabie for the ssses or Babliky, elher directly (1.0 as Prices} or inGireclly {&.e. derived form prices)
isputs)

Lavel 3. Inpruts for the sxxets or abiliies that are not based on chservable marke! asin (urobservable
The loflowing tabie presenis e Taic value messurement hierarchy of financiel assets measured M Fair vatua -

A at 31.93-2024 N {Rupess in Lakos)
Particylars Eavel 1 Lave? 2 Level 3 Totat
Financiat Assats
Fiaancial Assats at Falr Vaiue thisugh OCI

Invesiment 2,082.38 471584 - 678220

1,062.36 4718 84 . 4.732.20

As at 31-83-2¢7% {Ruipert In Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Lavei? Levwl 3 Total
Financial Aszats
Financial assats st Falr Value through OCI

Invesiment 1.483.85 587081 - T.234.88

1453.35 567043 - 7.134.88

(¥ Valustion technique used to determine fair value
2) Quotad invesiments have bees valued baseq on manket pite quatation,
b} Investment in bulus? Funds have besn valued 25 per NAV daclared on the balance sheet date,
) i led equity i #® Nt hedd for iracing. They wre heid for fong tam strmiegic purpose. The company has chosen o designals these investments s FYOCH, sinca & provides a
more mazningiul present ation,
d) The carrying amourd of financial ssets and liabifilies other than Rvasiment ae considered 10 be the same a3 ey fai values,
&) Managsments uses s Desl fudgersent in estimating the fair vatse of is financisl instrments, Howbver, there aer inherent ki in any sstimation isch ique. Therefors, for substardiay ag financial
n: s, the fair valus esdi p *mmmwmmmmmwmmmymmum wmmsﬂuumaimasoimspm‘ednes.Aswch.lmvalw
of finEncisl & Lasquent to the rep q,dmamcymumemmrmmmwmsnpmead:mwmwe.
(v} Flnanclal risk mansgement .
mmwsmwrmmammwmrmmnmmmThcmmwpmormﬂﬁmmahmmkh&umm« y's ioes, Tha O Y8 principsl

mmdalmuhdweTmaRmmmm,mmammvmmmmmammmmwymuwmm

mCornwnfskcmmhmm&k,mmmmkydﬁmwnwnymmamaaivﬂiesmowrmeabylmvdmpoﬁdesomsmmm:rulmrmndumambmirnd.mes«rw
nd ged in wilh #he compani poiidcclmﬂslnbjeuives.ﬂwbouiﬁwdiredmuﬂmlmnqmspoﬁﬁesmrmlmqlmemol’mesedsk,uhich:resum:ﬂscdbeluw:—

a} Market Rink
Market risk iv the risk that the fair value of luture Cash fiaws of & financisl Instruments wil Noctuate because of changes in markel prices, Market sk Fompiises Interest rate fck gnd foreign SursnGy risk.

i} interwst Rate Risk ~
interest rote risk is the risk 1hat the 123 value of future <2sh flows of 8 financisl instrumenis wif fluciuate because of change in market inderes fale. Company is not exposed 1o significant ierest ras risk a3 ol
he Rinancisl isiruments which ace subiact 10 interest risk are dut (o be seitied within 12 monins snc CAMTy fixed 7ate of interess,

ii} Forxign Currency Risk
Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the Fair Vaive or Futurs Cash Fiows of #n exposure witt fucluate bacspss of changes in foreign CUTENCY rales. Expasures can arise on soceint of the various assets and
fleblities which are denomintted in curencies otter than Indian Rupes.
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K1 JResources |imited
Regd. OHice: 8, Camazc Straed, Kolkatz-Fooo17

{Amount in $akhs

Foreign Currency Exposurs

J AsatdistMarch,] As at3st March,

1 Panicuiers 202 023
vso uso

Bormrowitgs 138.85 79.53
Trace Pyaples BYT.8¢ #0831
Total 11674 959,24
bj Credit rigk

3 CredX risk erises from the Possibifity thai the counisr Pty mey rol be abie to setiie (heir obiBgations a8 egreed. To Masage this, Ihe Company pefiodicaly assesses financist reliabilty of customess and other
king Ima account the financial Candition, quTent economic rends and #nalysis of historical bad detds and 3gaing of financlal assets. Individys! sisk kmits are set paricdicatly reviswed on ihe

basis of suck information.

The company has prudent & conservative Process fof mansging Hs cragh risk srising in the ourse of ks business #etivities, crudi sisk is activeiy mensged thiough letters of credits, Bank Guarantees, Parenis
Company guatsnines, advence payments snd facdoding & fofisting withmst recourse 0 it company to avaid conaeciions of risk.

Financial a33ets are writien off when there is no fessonable axpeciations of recovery, such a3 a Selbtor failing 1o engage in a fepeyant plan with 1he Cornpeny. Where kans o Feceivables have been writte
off, the Company h Ig #ngage in ank Bctivily 12 altempt (o recover the recal i 3

-blu.m%mrmhnusedlptmiul cfient try ing i cradit loxs ati !crlndcma-r‘v-b‘esbnodun:pmviﬂm
i mwﬁmmwnkukﬁommwmwhuummawbwwrwmm fooking information. The emdmmm&mnceismmmmmhqdw meceivabies

The company exposure 1o customers is dvarsifisd and thare i na significant credit EXPOSUNS O acCounl of any singie customar ks ol 31 March 2024 a0 31 March 2623,

Tha ¥ 8 meking pravi on trade based on E. mmﬁcum.mmmwzmaulm
fAMOuN in Lakhs

Particulars I1-Mar-24 31-Mar-21

11ing bafance 25.00 12.00
Charge in gdement Of proil and loss - 8.00
Cherge/ [F_leluseg to Statement of profil ahd ioss {1783 2
Litissed during the year - -
Baience at the end of the year 7.17 25.00

vaiﬂmfwexpadodambumnciﬂmlmmk)UAssWduetowhichmmismlmninfndeerilee.

H) Other Financial Aswats

cmnykﬁmavmmumhmMmeJMmmarwmhwmmalh-ddebumnmboundwm;ugah..\woﬂmulharn;snoacedlom:tuExpedﬂCradﬂionnvisionmw
Wm.?mmnyt-smmmmtmmmmndvmushbooud-mmoondpuwdvuwmwmriskm«spedﬂmm-mmmx

it} Financial Instruments and cash deposits

cmmklmmbmm;mmumﬁmnmlmmmu ged in willy the penies policy, & ,..ofwm!usmmmomrwﬁntmvedh&hwumerpaﬂymmeb-sisuum
financla quoles recaived fror the couniemady. .
e} Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the sisk that the Campeny wik nol ba sbie to mee: is financial obiigations as they become due. The company mansges Rs fiquicdy risk by ensusing, es far as passible, that @ wil stways have
sufficient iguidity to meet 18 Habliifes when o, urder boih normal and siressed canditions, without Incurring unsccepteble losses Of 1isk {0 the Compeny's apdation.
mmwsmmmmwwymm-mmmmmmsma from of fons and the b ',.hmmmamnnm.TMwnybelkvumlhemd\m
“capital is sufficient 1o muet k5 current fequinsiments, Any shor term surphis cesh fenerated, over endd above the amoums Tequire for working Capital g and ppargtional il , ure Qiven a3
Tnierest bosring loans repaystie an demand. Suth loans reciavabie on Gemands alang with cash & cash syuivaients avoid concenteation disk in any one instrument o counter party
{Amount in Lakhs)
Parti Myturky Profiles a5 st 3158 Merch 2024
’ ’ Helow 3 Mosths 3-8 Monthe. 8-12 manthy 3 years 35 Years Above 5 Years Tolsf
Borawings
Noa-Cunents - . - - - - _
Curent 42,302 29 43729 - C - . 431,240.10
Totat 4230229 CEYAA : z L . 4324810
P . Maturlly Profiles as st 315t March 2021
! Beiow 3 Months 34 Morths &-12 months. 1-3 yoars . 35 Yeurs Above § Yeary Tolw
Bomrowings .
Nor-CaHmants . - - - - - -
Cument 34813187 1.294.91 - - - = 3420858
Total 34613.87 1,564 91 - - N - 3820858
A3 41 315t March 2024 the company had working capital of . 87783,39 Lekhs. inchuing cash st bank Balances of Rs, 732,62 Lakhs,
As ot 316 March 2025 the company had working capital of Ris. 872,925.25 Lakhs ncluding cask and bank Batances of Rs.7.370.34 Lakhs,
Note 58 Segmant Reparting
‘Thera is nG reportaive sag doe lo quantiative th 5 perind AS 108,
Noke §7 income Tax Expense
Rceomiiainndmmuxmlommmwuwmmmmmuxnuwmmbomhm-uxuixswmaﬁ:eabew {Amount in Lakhs)
Yaut snded Jtat Year wndad 315
March, 2624 Rurch, 2023
Enactad income ux @t in lndia applicable to the Company 25.188% - | 25.00%
Profit before 4ax S072.00 [3.980,87)
wmmmmmu:umamm%mmmm 1LIT6.5H (1,801.85}
Tax effecd of tha amounte which are not deduct }in 4 taxabie Income
Pemanent Disakowances 280 89 29035
Deduction wadsr section 24 of 1he income Tax Act (25.18) {21.75)
ini&rest income from Joint Vertura on Rabiity elemant of compound Fnancial instrirtent . -
Tax In respact of eartier years . - (120.45)
[ncome exenpiad from incoene taxes : B .
Oifferemist Lax ratx o capital Gaina . .
Other Rems {2257 {227 46)
Totat income tax expenselcredit) 1,289.68 {1,072.23)

Consequent ta recancilation ems shown above, the effective lax rate {in %iis 562




#1 JResourtes Limifed
Ragd, Office: &, Camac Street, Kalkata-700017 .

Note 58, Disclosure pursuant to section 18§(4)} of the Companies Act 2013 fAmOUN in Lakhs)

As at 315t As at 315t Mu:h,]

Nature of the transaction {lcans giveniinve stment madefguaranten givenisecyrity Pravided] & Purpose March, 2624 2023
{A] Loan and Advances: {Given for Business purpose)
1. AK Buildtech Pyl Lid. 398.45 390 45
{Frrovision of doubiiuf debt F.Y 21-22) {382.43) 395.45)
2. Bhadani Financers P, Lid 5.278.73 2.517.43
3. Headstart Intemational Pyt Lig 14439 144,39
|_{Provision of doubtuf debt £.v 2 1-22) {144.25) {144.35}
4. Manabermie Tea Co Limiled 3879 36.72
(36.79) (36,79}

{Provision of doubihul debl F.Y 21.33]
5. Sadhek Real Estata Pyt L1, 1.887.36 1,957.76
8. Sherisha Technologies Bvi Lid 2,313.30 -
7. Attamonte Townships And Resorts Pyt Lid, 348 272

8. Brokenhifis Townships And Resoris Pl Lid 318 272
3.38 272

5. Springdaie Townships And Resons Pt Lig

14.Vafiey View TownshipsPyt Lid | 3.18 272
11, Widtar Crmnkal?n‘;a P Lid 5,81 158,88
12 Kesar Terminais & Infrastusciure Lid, 550.00 -
13.KLJ Spaciakty Chemicals Private Limited 1.388.48 -
A4.HFCL Limited 3,500.00 -

1 15 Soy.sar Ecibe pvtid 6,178.27 -
16.Dream Shaper Estate Pvi Ltd 3&g -
37.Lakelang Chemicals lndia Lid 268351 742.08
Total 23,318.63 5357.08

| {€&) Guaraniees: {Given for Subskdiary's debt)
KUJ Resources DMCC $1,463.91 11,304,582

£C) Investments made aew disclossd unger Note 3

Note 58. Disclosure pursuant to section Y48 of the Companiss Act 2013 Struck off the COMmpanies
The campany bes bt entered into any trznsactiony with companics struck off under section 248 of the Corpanics Act, 2013 o section 564 of Companics Act, 1956

IF



K LU JResources Limited
Regd, Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Note £0. Leases
i) Rights {o use assets
Particulars

As at 31st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As af 11st March, 2023

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Opening ROV recognised {net) 1,237 .00 1,545.71
Add: Addiions during the year 440.27 86,71
Less: Depreciation during the year 367.33 367.15
Less: Deletion during the year . 8.27
Closing ROU recognised 1,309.84 +1.237.00
ii) Lease Liability
Particulars {Rupees in Lakhs} {Rupees in Lakhs)
Opening Lease Liability 1,350.82 1,558.78
Add: Additions during the year 440,27 €4.27
Add: Interest Accrued during the year 152.48 150,97
Less: Payment 454,99 453.53
Less: Deietion during the year - 9.67
Closing Lease Liability 1,478.57 1,250.82
Current Maturity of long term lease liabigty 329.414 276.53
$,149.16 1,074.28

Non Current Jease Hability

ili) Security Deposit Paid

(Rupees in Lakhs) -

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars )
Opening Security Deposit 215.12 180.44
Add; Additions during the year - (2.44)
Add: interest Income during the year 2027 19.28
Add: Payment . - .70
Add : Deletion {Termination of Leage) - 0.14
235.39 215.12

Closing Security Deposit

Iv} Cash Flow during the year
Particuiars
Low value leases

* Short term leases

v} Extensien and termination pptions

{Rupees in Lakhs)
10.99
73.54

(Rupees in Lakhs)
1813
54.09

The Company has lease contracts for which are used for regular operations of its business. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options which are further discussed below,

The Company has several lease contracts that include axtensicn and termination opfions which are used for regular operations of its business. These
options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the Company's business needs, Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised. :

vi) Critical judgernents in determining the lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension oplion, or

not exeicise a terminztion option. Extension options {or pericds after termination options} are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain 1o be extended (or not ferminated).

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or 3 significant change in circumstances ocours which affects this assessment and that is within the
confro! of the lassea,

¥ii) Discount Rate
Discount rate at which the lease Fabifity is recognised as on the initial application is 10%
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e

Note §1. The previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified, 16 the extent necassary, 1o conform to the current years figures.

MNote 62. Financial Viabitity '
The Company has mads detailed assessment of #s liquidity position for the next one year and of the recaverability and carrying values of its assets and

liabilities, and based on the internal and external information up 1o the date of approval of these financial slatements including credit reponts and
economic forecasts, has concluded that ne adjustments are required o be made in the financial results.

The management believes thal it has consigered alf the possibie impact of known events arising In the preparation of financial resuits, Eurther company
is of the opinion that there is certainty t{\at company will be able to meet its all-financial commitments due in next one year.

Note 83, Representation relate to Fund Advance/ recelve by the company on Ultimate Beneficiaries

Me funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrawed funds or share premium or any other sources or king of funds} by the
Company o orin any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary snalf lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has nol
received any fund from any pary(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company stiall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persens of snlities identified by o on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficaries.”

HNote B4. Crypto Currency Transaction

The company has not dealt with any crypto currency or equivatent product during the year.

Note 65. Benami Transaction .
o proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for hoiding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition)

Act, 1888 {45 of 1988) 2nd ruies made theretinder.

Note 66. Approval of financial statement
The financiz! stalements were approved for issue by the Board of Direclors on 27th May 2024. The board of directors has recemmended a dividend of
Rs.0.28 per fully paid up equity share of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating to Rs.26.85 Lakhs, which is based on refevant share capital as on 31st March, 2024

The accompanylng notes to the standaione financial
statements
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

As per our report of ever: date d‘,ﬂy
L

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
Chigrteked Accountants Hamant Jain Dilip Kumar Karn

Firm Regiktration No. 000131N Managing Director Director

Din:00508995 Din:00061804

Sundl Jal . ‘
Partner B2 RNy MMN’\\qw-c?/ -
M.No. CEoos KALINDI COLONY Suresh Chand Jaither Alai Kumy pta
New Delhi, 27th May 2024 REW DELNI4S Chief Financial Officer Compa etary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KLj RESOURCES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of KLJ
RESOURCES LIMITED (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (“the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate
{Refer Note No 52 of the attached consolidated financial statements) comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and material accounting policies information and other explanatory
information-(hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and
associate, referred below in other matter paragraph, the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian accounting
standards (Ind AS), of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate
as at 31st March, 2024, and their consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended

on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters: _
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the
key audit matter to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled &
responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our audit rgpbffi; 4
including in relation to these matters. Qur opinion is not modified in respect :ﬁ

4
matier.
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Kuanar Chopra & Associates
Chartered Accountants

KLJ Resources Limited

Consolidated Audit Report FY 2023-24

Sno.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s response

L

In respect of partes’ balances,
confirmations were sought from all
the parties at the year end. There
are parties who have not sent the
confirmations. It has been explained
that management has the system of
reconciling balances with the
parties from time to time during the

year. All the parties are having.

regular business transactions.

1.

In  the
confirmations, we as auditors carried
out alternative procedures to verify
the balances:

absence of external

We tested the effectiveness of
controls over sale and puzchase
transactions with the parties and
accounting of the same.

The transactions of sale/purchase
were verified through -external
bills and invoices to/from the
parties. The payments were cross
verified from the bank statements |
of the company. In view of the
high magnitude of such
transactions we followed SA 530
“Audit Sampling” of ICAI in this
regard.

The physical verification of stock is_

carried out by the management
during the year at various locations
s0 as to cover all the locations
during the year. Approved
surveyors are also engaged for
verification of inventory lying in the
bonded warehouse at the port.

The inventory is situated at
multiple locations and keeping in
view the magnitude, nature and
specifications of the inventory,
technical expertise is required to
physically verify the same.

1.

fii.

We have followed the following
processes:

‘inventory consisting of Chemicals

surveyor's report,

We carried out checking of the
stock records to verify the stock.
Keeping in view the magnitude of
transactions, the same has been
done as per sample selection basis
in accordance with SA 530 “Audit
Sampling”.

The records of the physical
verification of stock during the
year were verified.

The report of physical verification
as on 31.03.2024 from independent
approved surveyors in respect of
stock lying in the bonded
warehouses has been produced for
our verification.

Keeping in view the location,
magnitude and nature of the

in containers of voluminous size at
the port, and other places, we
were not technically competent to
personally  verify the stock
physically and relied on approved

We also tallied the same with the
regular stock records maintaine
by the company and produced f, 3

=3
our verification. =

i1
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Kumar Chopra & Associnles KL] Resources Limnited
Chartered Accountanis ' Consolidated Audit Report FY 2023-24

4,

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereeon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s

Report.

Our Opinien on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statement, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audlt or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged

with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows
and consolidated changes in equity of the Group and its associate in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and its Associate and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated financial statements by the Ditectors of the Holding

Company, as aforesaid. - -
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing

the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matte 3
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting un! f?

-Page3of 10
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Chartered Accountants Consolidated Audit Report FY 2023-24

managerment either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group and of its associate.

6. Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

-+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a ma
that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infor
of the entities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion o3
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direc

Page 4 of 10
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supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
independent auditors

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consclidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a -
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstaternents in the consolidated financial statements.

We conununicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and
such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe
these audit matters in our audit report unless Jaw or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matters and when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

7. Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements/Consolidated financial statements/financial

information of four Indian subsidiaries and one foreign subsidiary (including its subsidiary
and associate), whose financial statements/financial information reflect total assets of
Rs.29618.73 lakhs as at 315t March, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 47338.57 lakhs and net cash
outflows amounting to Rs. 2390.76 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group’s share of net profit/(Loss) of Rs (210.02} lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2024, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements in respect of one associate whose financial
statements / financial information have not been audited by us. These financial
statements/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whaose reports
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid sub31d1anes and associate,

is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on the legal an
regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters wij
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Page 50f 10
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8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
L As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. A

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash flow
statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are In agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinjon, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of Holding Company and the reports of auditors of its subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
the consclidated financial statements of the Group and its associate and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s report of the holding company,
subsidiaries companies and associate incorporated in India. Our report
expresses an unqualified opinion that the holding company, subsidiaries
companies and associate which are companies incorporated in India, have in
all material aspects, an adequate internal financial control with reference to the
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements was operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024.

g- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanatzons given to us:

i The group has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
position in its Note No. 44.3 of Consolidated Financial statements.

iL. The group and its associate do not have any material foreseeable losses
on Jong-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company a
its subsidiary and associate.

iv.  a The respectlve Managements of the Holding Company and 1

associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note No. 63 to the consclidated financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
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11

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates to or in
any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries
and associates (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. '

b. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries and associates which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and
associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note no. 63 to consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries and associates from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries and associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

c. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) of Clause (iv) above
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Board of Directors of the holding company has proposed dividend for
the year which is subject to the approval of the members of the company at
the ensuing annual general meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is
in compliance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, and as
communicated by the respective auditor of subsidiaries, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have used an

. accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective
softwares. Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company
has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals .mandated by provisions of section 197 of the Act and in case of
subsidiary companies and associate company based on audit reports of the

remuneration. In respect of managerial remuneration paid by foreign subsids
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

Page 7 of 10
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IL  As required by the paragraph 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”/”CARQ"), issued by the Centzal Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in the CARO report given by auditors of
companies incorporated in India, included in consolidated financial statements.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates

Place of signature: New Delhi
Date: 27.05.2024

UDIN: 24080990BKAAFL321
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Referred to paragraph 8{I}{f) of our report of even date on the consolidated financial
staternents of KL] RESOURCES LIMITED for the Year ended 31st March, 2024}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements under Section 143{3}(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of consolidated financial statemnents of the KL] Resources
LIMITED ("the Holding Company”), as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India, as of

that date. :

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

- The respective Board of Directors of Holding and its subsidiary companies are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility .
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness, Qur audit of intermal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolida
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. /
. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by k 3
other auditors in term of their reports referred to in other matter paragraph below,
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on internal financ
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements 1s a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of consclidated financial statemenis for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstaternents due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. ‘

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company have, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of
such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matter ‘
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements in so far as it relates to four subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

For Kumar Chopra & Associates
hagtered Accountants

S ( xamod CoLawy

NEW DELHE4S

Place of signature: New Delhi
Date: 27.05.2024

UDIN: 24080990BKAAFL3214
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LONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs)

. . Note As at 31st As at 31st
X Particulars No. March 2024 | March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current Assets |
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2a 7,388.85 $,456.91
11{b) Right-of-use Assats 2b 806.00 50533
{c) Capital work-in-progress 2c 1,112.19 331.067
)] Investment Praperty 2d 4,545.39 3.256.65
{e} COther Intangible assets 2e 2,74 1.53
{f} Intangible assets under development : t §2.33 -
Goodwill 215,27 21527
{a) Financial Assets
{i} investments 3 £,010.84 8,455.26
{iy Qthers 4 788.54 184.34
{h) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 3.221.77 73595
(i} Othes non-cutrent assets 5 318.15 28532
Current Assets :
(a} inventories 7 73,074.1% 78,615.32
{b) Financial Assets
(i} investments 3 - -
(i} Trade receivables 8 92,360.85 §7,693.7¢
{iif] Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,353.11 5,743.32
{iv} Bank balances other than (i) above 10 13,420.83 9,816.60
{v} Loans 11 17,831.56 2,686.31
{vi} Other financial assets 12 721.41 522.05
{c) Curtent Tax Assets (Net) 13 1,425.3% 1,161.93
(d} Other current assels 14 421544 3,605.34
TOTAL ASSETS 2,32,874.87 2,10,275.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 15 1.074.00 1,074.00
{b) Other Equity 16 92,883.41 84,152,41
L iabifities
Non-current Liabilities
{a) . Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrawings 17 522.59 138.82
{ia] Lease liabitities 18 748.84 444.04
(li} Other financial fiabilities - -
(b) Provigions 19 326.76 278.00
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 - -
{d) Cther non-current liabilities 20 358.41 87.62
Current Liabilities
{a) Firancial Lizbilities
{i) Borowings 21 44,914.04 36,223.95
{ia] Lease liabilities 22 185.57 120,38
(i} Trade payables : 23
a} dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 250.38 61.49
) dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises ) 88,852.29¢ 84,673.41
{iiij Other financial liabilities 24 153,44 77.95
{b} Cther current liabifities 25 2,609.19 2,936.94
() Provisions 26 26.95 25221
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,32,874.87 2,10,275,24

Material Accounting Policies & Other information
The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 206
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KL JResources Limited

CIN: L67120WB1986PLC041487
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L 0SS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

{Rupess in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
’;‘:"" 31stMarch, 2024 |  31stMarch, 2023
INCOME
1 jRevenue from Operations (Gross) 27 407217.34 4,37, 494.93
I {Otrer Income 28 4,039.30 2,498.57
i [TOTAL INCOME {1+1) 4,11,256.64 4,39,991.55
IV {EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 29 1.380.31 11,699.35
{Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 30 3,86,248.57 4,45,720.37
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade 31 5,618.15 (24,934.53)
{Employee Benefils Expense 32 2,560.75 2,065.97
Finance Costs 33 3,649.44 1,950.07
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 B57.79 1,229.54
{Other Expense 34 4,817.67 5,571.48
TOTAL EXPENSES {iV} 4,05,141.68 4,43,302.26
V |PROFIT/ {LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX {llI-1V) 6,412.96 {3,310.70)
Vi {Exceptional items : -
Share in Profit/{Loss) of Associates (209.99) {56.72)
Vil |PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (V-VI) 5,902.97 {3,377.42)
Vil |Tax Expenses
1) {Current Tax 416.13 153.47
2} |Deferred Tax ' (2,638.46) {933.48)
3} §Shori/(Excess) Provision for Earlier Year 240 {125.57)
X JPROFIT/ {LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Vi-vIl} §,122.90 (2,471.834)
X {PROFIT/{LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS . .
Xi ITAX EXPENSE OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - R
XH JPROFITH (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AFTER TAX {X-XI} - R
IX {PROFIT! (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (VII-VIH]) 8,122.90 {2,471.84)
X JOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 35
A (7} ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 657.36 736.67
(ii} Income tax relating fo items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss {152.86) {68.24)
B (i) tens that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - {111.90)
(ii} Income tax relating to items that will be reciassified to Profit or Loss - 26.07
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £04.50 582.60
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (IX+X}
Xl {Comprising Profit/{l.oss) and other comprehensive income for the period) 8,627.40 (1,889.24)
X¥ {Earnings Per Equity Share (Continuing Operations): 36
Basic 75.63 {23.02)
Dituted 75.63 {23.02)
Material Accounting Policies & Other Information 1
21066 7

The accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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K L J Resources Limited
CIN: LET120WB1SB6FLC041487

Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

CONSCOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs}

315t March, 2024 st March, 2023
A) FHCASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and extragrdinary items 5.802.97 (3,377.42)
Add:Adjustments far nen cash items!
Depreciation 867.79 1.225.54
Add:Adjustments for other Hams:
Add: Gain‘l.oss on MTM on FX farward Contract - 32.49
[Mossi{Profit} on Sale of shares {net) (24.35) {47208}
Loss/{Profif) on Sale of fixed assels net) (27.05} -
Finance Cosls 3.649.44 J1.95007
Lass
IDividend Income (B4 20} (38.93)
Interast Income {1,639.42} (1,282.90)
Other Comprehensive income
Operating Profit before Warking Capital Changes T.872.08 {1,957.26)
Adjustment for increase/dacrease in operating 2ssets
{increase)Cecreass Trade and Other Receivables (4,667.15) {20,986.31)
(Increase)¥Dacrease in Invenlories £542.13 (24,632.18)
(Increasel Decreasa in other current assets (610,40} 1,803.95
{Increase) Decreass in olher financial assets (803,568} (291.82)
{increase) Decrease in other non curvent assets (32.82} (71.20}
Adjustment for incraase/decreass in aperaling liabilities
increasef{Decrease) Trade and Othar Payabies 4,367.77 24,305.66
incressel{Decrease} oiher currert lisbilties (327.75) {3,762.57)
Inereasef{Decrease) other financial liabilities 7549 7785
Increasef{Docrease) other non current liabitias 2%0.79 (3.20)
increase/{Dacrease)} Provisions 49.49 45,95
Lash Generated from Operations 11,756.37 158,177 68)1
Taxes Paid {nat) 68181 1,958.37
Net Cash from Operaling Activities 11,074.46 737, 137.08F
B) [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plart & Equipment {1,481.28), {3,93867)
Addition in Capitat Work In Prograss (781.42)
Intangible Assels under Deveiopment 52.33) {21527
Purchase of investment Property (1,412.08) -
Sale of Preperty, Plani & equipment 54.32 -
L.oans {givenlrepaid (net} Subsidiaries AssOciates, Joint Venlures & {thers {15,145.25) 7,345.89
Precesds form Other Current Invastments 444,43 sar2.21
Procesds form Other Non Currand Investmants 657.36 (2,572.38)
inlacest recaived 1,638.42 1,287.39
increase! {Decrease) in Other Bank Balance including FDR's (3,602.23), {5,837.85)
Profit or: Sale of Shares 3435 47208
Dividend Income fromecempanies olher than Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Ventures B47.30 | 36.93
Nat Cash {used in) Invasting Activities {18,207.13] 4,648.30
¢} [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTMITIES
{¥roceeds from Long Term Borrowings 38277 66.40
Dividends Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) - {26.85;
Payment of Lease liabifities {266.29} {356.46)
Sheort Tesrn Borrowings (ret) 8,680.09 2881915
Financa Costs (3,565.74) (1,885.55)
Net Sash (used in) / from Financing Activities 5,238.87 26,576.65
Net Cash inflows# outftows) from aclivities (2,493.80) {1,811.11)
Effect of Exchange differences on translation of Foreign currency 103.59 507,98
Netincrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2.390.21) (1,403,433}
Opening Balance of Cesh and Cash Equivalents 574332, 7 146.45
Closing Bafance of Cash and Cash Equivatents 1,353.11 574331
Component of Cash snd Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 16.45 2022
Current Accounts 3,336.66 572310}
3‘.353.1 1 574332

The above cash flow ststament has beer, prepared under the indirec! method as sel out in IND AS -7 j'

As per our report of even date
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¥ L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Streef, Kolkata-760017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT 315t MARCH 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

[Rupees in Lakbe)

= PRticUiaTs S o b Amount in Re -
Balance a5 at 31st March 2023 1,074.00
Changes in equity share capital during ine year -
Balence as at 31gt March 2024 1,074.00

BALANC T 315t MAKC:

02

(Rupees in Lakhs)

3. QTHER EQUITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED Jist MARCH 2024

Balanca as af DYsL Apri 2053 -

76,824 51

= 2
$4152.40

Profit for the year

8.122.99 -

0,627.51

Changes in accountng policy
or riod erors

Resiated batance al he
beginning of the reporting

| period
Total Comprahensive
Income For the year

92,780,20

Dividends

Transter to retained samings

Is5us of Bonus Share

Batance as af 31st March
2024

3,81%.60

2%.00

816.58

$2,780.20

© STATEMENT OF CHANGES iIN EQUATY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3fst MARCH 3023

{Rupees in Lakhs}

o] Pladied Ae

R

P
Sl

i T Faiehiue o
i awr‘é
m’ &yﬁ\ﬁ%’%:"@

SR

B
Baiance as at 01st Aprd 2022

24 @- v
78.323.22 -

243337

86,604.5F

Profit for the year

{2.471.84) -

135.48

£1,889.24)

Changes In accounting policy
of price period STery

Restatec balance at the
beginning of the reporting
penod

Tetal Comprebensive

Intome for the year
Dividands

126.25)

| Transfer to retzined samings

Exchange fuctuation on
invesiment with foreign
subsidisty

3.4

Balance a5 at 318 March
2028

486.2%

1,819.50

3877

2,268.385

71238

B4,152.41

A3 per oyr report of aven dale

Suresh Chand Jalther
Chief Financial Officar
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K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS & OTHER INFORMATION

1.1 Corporate Information

KLJ Resources Limited: (“the Parent Company”) is a listed entity incorporated in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at 8, Camac Street, Kokata-700017, India having CIN;
LE67120WB1986PLC041487. Corporate office at KLJ House, 8A, Shivaiji Marg, Najafgarh Road, New

Delhi - 110015

The Company has eight wholly owned subsidiaries including one foreign subsidiary and one associate
company hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Group". The Company & its foreign subsidiary are
engaged in the business of trading/ manufacturing of chemicals. Other six Indian subsidiaries are
primarily engaged in the business of real estate. one subsidiary and one Indian Associate is primarily
engaged in the business of trading & manufacturing.

The consolidated financial statements relate to KLJ Resources Lid., its subsidiary companies &

associate.

1.2  Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial staterments of the group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 20186, ‘

b}  Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis except for the following which have been valued at Fair value as required under Ind-AS
instead of historical cost.

i Defined benefit Plan-Gratuity

ii. Certain Financial assets and liabilities

it Assets held for sale-measured at lower of cost or fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction betwsen market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
assets or liability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the assets or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the assels or liability at the

measurement date,
c) Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of consolidated financial staterents in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial
statements and the reported amount of income and expenses, Examples of such estimates include
estimates of future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans and estimated useful life of
property, plant and equipment actual results may differ from these estimates.




ifi,

Vi,

KL J Resources Limited ‘
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata - 700017

Useful life of Property, Plant and equipment (PPE): The group depreciates PPE on 3
Written Down Value (WDV) over estimated psefy lives of the assets. The charge in respect
of periodic depreciation is derived based on an estimate of an assetl's expected usefu| life
and the expected residual valus at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
fives, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annually,

Defi benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the

ned
defined benefit abligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit

method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
Aactual developments in the fuiure. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates, :

Under the projected unit credit {PUC) method a projected accrued benefit is éaiculated at the
beginning of the period and again at the end of the period for each benefit that will accrue for

iJseful life of Intangible assets: intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are atfributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measureqd -

reliably.

Expected credit losses on financial assets: The group provides for impairment provisions
of trade receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of

Leases: :
Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the noncancelable period for which the lessee has the

right to use an underlying asset including optionai periods, when an entity is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend {or not to terminate) a lease. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise




KL J Resources Limited )
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata ~ 700017

impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assels with indefinite life are tested for
impairment each year,

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
arnount.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could
differ due to changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known Imaterialize,

vii.  Units of Measurement; All financial information presented in Indian rupees and afl values
are rounded to the nearest lakhs rupees with two decimal points except where otherwise
stated. :

viif. Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-
Current classification. '

An asset is treated as Current when it is — _
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢} Expected to be realized within twelve. months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
a) Htis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle:
b} His held lprimarify for the purpose of trading;
¢} lis due to be settled within twelve menths after the reporting period, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve _

months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities )

d)  Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprises of KLJ Resources Limited-and al its subsidiaries
and associate, being the entity that it controls. Controls are assessed in accordance with the
requirement of Ind AS-110- Consolidated financial statements

(i Consolidation of Subsidiaries:
a) The consolidated financial statements of the Group combine Standalone financial

statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries fine-by-line by adding together the
like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

b) Allintra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and unrealised profits/losses on intra-
group transactions are efiminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of

116
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K L J Resources Limited .
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata - 700017

subsidiaries have been harmenised to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted
by the Parent Company.

¢) In case of foreign subsidiary, revenue iterns are consolidated at the average rate for the
period. All assets and fiabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year.
Any exchange difference arising on consofidation is recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income. : :

d) Excess of acquisition cost over the carrying amount of the Parent's share of equity of the
acquire at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill. In cases where the share of
the equity in the acquire as on the date of acquisition is in excess of acquisition cost,
such excess of share in equity is recognised as ‘Capital reserve’ and classified under
‘Reserves and Surpius’. :

e} The consolidated financial statements have been presented in the same manner as
Parent Company's standalone financial statements.

{ii) Consolidation of Associate:

a) Investment in associates has been accounted under the equity method as per Ind AS 25 -
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

b} The Company accounts for its share of post acquisition changes in net assets of associale,
after eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Company and its associate to the extent of its share, through its Consolidated Statement of

Profit and Loss,

Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents refers to the line item on the balance sheet that reports
the value of a company's assets that are cash or can be converted into ¢ash immediately. Cash
equivalents include bank accounts and marketable securities such as commercial paper and
short-term government bonds. Cash equivalents have maturities of three months orjess

accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or ekpense, pertaining to the

ordinary activities of the group, is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of the
performance of the group. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly disclosed in the Notes to Accounts,

Investments

All investments other than Subsidiaries and Associates are measured at fair value, with value
changes recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

P



K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street,_Koikata — 700017

1.6 Inventories

items of inventories are valued at lower of specific cost or net estimated realizable value after providing
for obsolescence, if any. Inventory of raw materials lying at factory are valued on FIFO Basis.

and condition. Inter-unit goods transfers are valued at lower of cost/ net estimated realizable value,
Non duty paid goods lying at port has been valued without Basic Custom Duty due to uncertainty of
quantum of material to be sold against transfer of ownership/ duty paid,

1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation  Amortization

a} Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of asset includes the following:

i.  Costdirectly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

ii. Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect
construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is directly related to construction or is

incidental thereto,

iii.  Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on
which it is located if recognition criteria are met,

b) Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for leng-
term construction projects are capitalised if the recognition criteria are met.

Upon sale of assets cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial

c)
statements and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and Ioss.

d) Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that is yet to be delivered
bysupplier / vendor at the reporting date is classified as capital advance: and

e} Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, piant and equipment outstanding as of each

reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before
such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress,

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) over the useful
iife of the assets as specified in Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.8  Investment Property
Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied

by the group, is classified as investment property, investment Property is measured at its cost, including
refated transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, i any.
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‘ KL J Resources Limited
Reqd, Office : 8, Camac Street, Koikata - 700017

1.9 . Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization/
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, horrowing costs and any
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the interned uze.

Cost of items of intangible assets not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date is disclosed as
intangible assets under development. CR

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life, The estimated useful fife and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any change in the
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value and
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. At each reporting date group assesses the estimate amount of impairment loss. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount and such losses either no longer exists or has decreased. Reversal of
impaired loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.If the recoverable amount of an asset {or
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset for CGU) is
reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

111 Revenue Recognition

The Group derives fevenues primarily from sale of traded goods, manufactured goods and related
services,

Effective 01 April 2018, the Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) “Revenue
from contracts with customers’.

There is no effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115, Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance
obligation which is treated as satisfied upon transfer of control of promised products or services to

in exchange for those products or services, )
On each reporting date expected credit loss on receivables is measured and accounted for as per ind-AS

109, R ‘
The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised

goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it

does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money,
Revenue from sale of products and services are recognized at a time on which the performance

" obligation is satisfied.

Other operating revenue — Service Charges
Group renders services enly incidental to its primary activity that is trading of goods and sale of

manufactured goods. Service charges are accounted for on satisfaction of performance cbligation which
is treated as satisfied on completion of rendering of services under the contract.

Dividend income is recognized as and when received.

Claims: All sorts of cfaimé by or against the Company are recognized as and when acknowledged /
accepted / settled / received. 1

113



K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata ~ 700017

1.12 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits- Employee benefits payable wholly within 12 months of rendering services
are classified as short term employee benefits and are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

The obligations for employee benefit such as Leave encashment is accounted for on accrual basis,

Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to defined schemes such as Provident Fund and ESI is
recognized during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan: The Gratuity benefit is funded through the Group Gratuity Scheme under the Life
insurance Corporation of India. Contribution made under the scheme is charged as expense in the

Statement of Profit & Loss.

The liability /asset in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of reporting period less fair value of the planned assets. The defined benefit obligation is

calculated annually by actuarial valuer.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in Other Comprehensive income,

Performance based declared ex-gratia & accretion thereto is provided in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and to be disbursed as per the policy framed by the management,

1.13 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets, A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss account in the year in which they
are incurred.

1.14  Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic enviranment in-which the Company operates. (Functional Currency) The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the presentation currency of company.

Foreign Currency Transactions
a All foreign currency transactions are translated inte functional Currency at the rate prevalent on

the date of transaction.
b, Non-monetary items are translated at the rate on the date of initial transaction.

c, Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the prevailing closing spot rate
at each reporting date.

. & 4
. . . . . AR =
d. Foreign exchange gain or losses in respect of menetary and non-monetary items is racogntse’§ mﬁ; l%};w )

statement of profit and loss. (r EEWDRRS 1, ]
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2, 74

‘ kﬂfedﬂaw



K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

118 Tax expenses represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

a

i,

1.16

i)

iil)

Current Income Tax
Taxes including current income-tax are computed using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute\ the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and
generates taxable income. '

' Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities Liability for additional faxes, if
any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are compleled.

Current tax related to OC} Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income {och.
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using balance sheet approach.

Deferred income tax assets and fiabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is
computed using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, .

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient faxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred fax related to QCI ltem are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Provisions

Provision is recognized when:
The Group has a present obligation as-a result of a past event, and

A probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and

A reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Reimbursement of the expenditure required to settle g provision is recognised as per contract
provisions or when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received,

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,

Discounting of Provisions
Provision which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by

using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses. .
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1.17 Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

a)
H

ity
i}
b)

c)

d)

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the foliowing cases:

A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; or

A reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made: or
A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of rescurce is remote,
Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are
reviewed at each Reporting date. '

Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement.

1.18 Earnings Per Share

1.19

1.20

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit attributable to equity

 shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the year. The dilutive earning per share is same as
basic earning per share as there is no dilution involved during the year,

Fair Value Measurement

Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,
The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. :

Dividend to equity holders

Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are
approved by shareholders or board of directars as appropriate. .
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b)

K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata — 700017

Financial instruments:-
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Instruments are recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
A. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets At Amortized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

The group in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments.

Fair value through Profit and loss account

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with 2l
changes recognized in the P&L.

B. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

a) Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are intially recognized at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

b) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
The group has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.
¢) Derecognition

Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simitar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset,

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially |
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modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

d) Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment
+to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss if incurs because the specified debtors fails to make
the payments when due in accordance with term of debt instrument financial guarantee contract
are recognized initially as liability at fair value .adjusted for transition cost that are directly
attributed the issuance of the guarantee .Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind As 109 and the
amount initially recognized less cumulative income recognized in accordance with principal of Ind
AS115.

€} Impairment of financial assets:

The group assesses on forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortized cost and FVOC! debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 46(iv)(b)
details how the group determines whelher there has been significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the group applied a simplified approach permitted by ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of receivables.

1.22 Leases:

As a Lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings taken on lease. The
group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use agset ("ROU" and 3
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low vaius leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-tine basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e. right-of use asset at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Right-of use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease liability and
reduce by lease payment made.,

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group- is a lessor is recognized in income on
straight-line basis over the iease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Transition '

Effective April 1, 2019, the group adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” and applied the standard to all
lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method, on the date of
initial application. Accordingly, Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have__
not been retrospectively adjusted. ' Vb &
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Regd. Office : 8, Camac Street, Kolkata - 700017

For the comparative information that is til March 31, 2019, the Group has followed the following
accounting poficy as a lessee

Finance Lease; .
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

lease.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as Assets of the group af their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Operating Lease: .

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except where another systematic basis is more
representative of time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Non-current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for 'sale when their carrying
amount is fo be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn
and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified
as held for sale are stated at the lower of carying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
Preperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately in the statement of financial position,

if the criteria stated by IND AS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are no longer met, the disposal group ceases {o be classified as held for sale, Non-current asset
that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of

i its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not been classified as heid
for sale, and

{ii} its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as

held for sale.

Business combination
Business combinations arising from transfers of interest in entities that are under the control of

the shareholder who control the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that commen

- control was established: for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities

acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and
they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared
in the financial statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the v
assets and the consequent reduction in value of investment held by the Company is trg
to the capital reserve or to the accumulated balance of profit and loss.
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1.25 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the purchase consideration in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value

of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabitities of the acquired entity. When the net fair
vafue of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabiliies acquired exceeds purchase
consideration, the fair value of net assets acquired is reassessed and the bargain purchase gain is
recognized in capital reserve. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the

recoverable amount of a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is less than its carrying amount. For the
impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or groups of CGUs which benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition and which represar:t the lowest level at which goodwill is monstored for

internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell. Key assumptions in the cash flow projections are prepared based on current economic

estimated operating margins.
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K L J Resgurces Limited

Regd. Otfice: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Notes to Consolidated Financia? Statements as at 315t March 2024

1 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Face |

2-No of Shares o

Asat 31.03 §4TA< at310375| 'A% 21 3103 54 JiAs et Fi03.2.

A | In Equity Shares

a) Quoted (Fully Pald Upj

1 |usareat Ve 3?;”§2.§me1§'.§50;. (PY- Rs.6,42,330¢) Equty Shares 10 1,350 1,350 8.42 820
2 |y et vatie 25 on 01-5-24 Rs. 537,588 (PY- 7,62,80,187.85-) Equity Shares 1 275883 ) 275883 782.80 587,58
3 |erert e ae 68 31-3.24 Rs. 1 42,5250/  PY- 2,38.79,700/- ) Eqully Shares 2 39.000 39,000 880 142.53
¢ |yiakot Vale a5 on 31-3-24 Rs, 1.40,600-  PY- 86,0006 ) Equily Shares 5 1,000 1,000 186 o
5 gfa"k;mﬁ 3“’31 224 Re 31,1007 ( PY- 60,600¢ ) Equity Shares 5 1.000 1000 2,51 0.31
& r.?:fe?\a/:hf: ::donL;c:-a-zx Rs. 2,02.200- ( PY- 469575/ ) Equity Shares 2 560 500 470 202
7 |viter vaion e on 1324 s 411,050/ { PY-4,30,100/ ) Equiy Shares 0 1.000 1.0 430 a1
B et vt ot on 31-5.2¢ Ra. 201,50 (PY-3,30,9500- ) Equity Shares z 1.000 1.000 331 292
9 JyTaket Vol a8 on 51324 Ra1,10.0250{ PY- 230,150 } Equity Sharas 2 0 500 230 e
10 | et Valus 25 o 81324 Rs. 748500 ( PY- 2,34,100-) Equity Shares ! 1000 1,000 234 172
| taet Vaige 36 on 31-3-24 Rs. 894505 ( PY- 1,39,750% ) Equity Shares : 1% 1% 1-40 o83
2 l:;;?k;ﬁ'aiue as on 31-3-24 Re. 1,34,26,750 (PY- Rs, 1,49,99,250) Equity Shares 1 35,000 35000 149.99 3
b} Unquoted {Fully P#id tp)
i) In Associates
1| Hamiog Plastic Goods PWt. Ltd. (Shareholding 24%) (upta 14.09.23) Equity Shares 10 . 16,235 - 450
2 | KLJ Organic {Thatiand) Limited (Shareholding 27.84%) Equly Shares | Bant128{  270010] 270010 112284 131579
#) in Others
1| Prithl Sound Products-Co, Pyl. Lid Equily Shares 100 5715 5,15 1,635.04 148623
2 | Lubhavani Properties Pyt. Lid. Equity Shares 10 8,600 8,600 5352 | 66.99
3 | Hamiog Plastic Goods P, LId. Equity Shares 10 12,135 . 105,79 -
4 | HM Buitech Pit, Ltd, Equity Shares 19 640,000 | 640,000 64.64 65.76
5 | Bhadani Financers P, Lid, Enuity Shares 10 33,500 33,500 104,70 02.73
5 | Pragati imporis Pvt. Lid. Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 108.07 .70
6 | Pragati Imptrade Pv1, Ltd. Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 8145 7308
7 | Pragati Tradecom Pt 1. Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 87.01 7808 |
8 | Swaslik Exports and mports Pvt. Lid. Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 0583 8588 |
9 [ Swasti Tracom Pyt Lte, Equity Shares 10 45,000 45,000 96.41 86.47
10 | Swastik Tradex Py, 11. Equity Shares 10 5,000 45,000 95.77 85.81
11 |Saraswati Co.Operating Bank Ltd. Equity Shares 1 50 50 041 0.01
12 | KLJ Developers Pyt Ld. Equity Shares 10 ‘4760001 478000 1,486.13 1,685.80
13 | Ki.J Plastic Lid Equity Shares 10 58,000 58,000 - -
14 | AMI Computers Lid Equity Shares 10 2,000 2,000 { - ﬁ
15 | Asia Paatfic Financial Services Lid Equt:ty Shares 10 500 lcH
16 | 5 M Dyecham Lid Equity Shares 10 500 500

128




Regd, Oifice: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-T09017

K L J Resources Limiled

Notes 1o Consalidated Financial Statements as st 31st March 2024

B | in Preference Shares- Ungquoted (Fully Paid Up)
Adifakshmi Enlerprises Lid. | s ] ]
1 {Formerty Knawn 4s KLJ Blastic Lid.) ‘E reference Shares 10 15,210 15,210
2 Sherisha Technologies Pt |id i Preference Shares 10 19,71,60¢ 1%,71,699 792.26 171538
C | in Mutual Funds: Quoted [Fully Paid Up)
Kotax Standard Muiticap Fund Mutual Funds (No's in
! [Market Vatue as on 31-3.24 R5.3,26,01,544%- {PY- Rs. 326,05 5444 Lits) 10 BA4Dds| 614949 439.31 32600
MNCL Capital Componder Furkl Mutual Funds (No's in
2 |Maket Value as on 31.3-24 Rs.3,06,12,0006- { PY- 3.06,12,000- ) units) 100, 306000 300000 42423 a06.12
O i investment Other
1 linvestment Other { Watch) 1 4900 49.00
Total Investmenits 2,610.84 8,455.26
a) Aggregate amoun! of quoted invesiments and markel value thereof; 2,062.38 1,512.85
b} Aggregate amount of unquoted investments; 594847 5,942.41
¢) Aggregale amount of impairment in value of investments 102.19 102,49
investments are recognised at Fair Vakse as per Ind AS 1089, Iavestments in subsidiaries and associates have beed caried at cost less impairement loss if any, through Other

Comprehansive income.
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K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Notes to Consolidated Financiai Statements as af 31st March 2024

4 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Unsecured, considered goog)

Security Deposits
Bank deposits with rnore than 12 months maturity

Finance [ease Receivable
“Refer note np. £0 Lease”

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES}) (net)
Balance as at the beginning of the period

Add: Charge/{Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss
Add: Charge/{Credit) to Other Comprehensive Income

o

Component of Deferred Tax Assef/ (Liabilities)
Qpening Balance :

Property, Plant & Equipment aad Intangible Asset
Provisions

Current Year Losses

Defined Benefit Plans

Ueferred Tax Assets on account of acquistion of subsidiary
Fair Value of Investment-

Charge/{Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset
Provisions

Current Year Proffit

Defarred Tax Assets on account of acquistion of subsidiary

Charge/{Credit) to Other Comprehensive Income
Fair Value of tnvesiment
Defired Benefit Plans

Closing Balance

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset
Provisions

Current Year Losses

Defined Benefit Plans

Deferred Tax Assels on account of acquistion of subsidiary
Fair Value of Investment

& OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Planed Asset (Gratuity) -
"Refer note no, 37 for Employse Senefit Obligation”

7 INVENTORIES
Stock in Trade
Stock In Transit
Raw Materials
finished Goods

Valuation of invenlonies are done as per point no. 1.6 of significant accounting poficies

8 TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)

Reiated Party
Others

l.ess: Provision for Expected Credit Losses

130

As At
3ist March 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs)

As At
3ist March 2023

732.22 110.37

. 21,60

56.32 52.37
783.54 184.34
379.60 (538.86)
(801.16) 933.48
(835.24) (42.18)
(1.356.50) 352.44
£5.36 81.63
22.47 25.72

953.00
{5.78) (641.47)
383.61 {4.75)
1,418.56 {538.86)
65.81 (16.27)
13.97) (3.26)
{953.00) §53.00
3,539.62

2,638.45 933.47
{833.22) {41.15}
(2.02) 1.03)
(835.24) (42.18)
13118 65.36
8.45 22.47

. 953.00
(2.02) {5.78)
392313 383.51
(839.00) {882.61)
3,321.77 735.95
318.15 265,33
318.15 28533
46,803.43 £1,950.58
26,770.82 16,260.69
265.27 188.25
234.67 216.40
F5.074.19 78.616.32
5.070.88 8754.14
87,208.14 78,955.56
92,369.02 87,719.70
8.17 26.00
§2,360.85 87,693.70




K L J Resources Limited
Regd. Office: 8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

Mates to Consolidated Financial Staterents as at 31st March 2024

Far trade receivablos outstanding as on 31st March 2024, following ageing schedule shall be given:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Partculars Outstanding for following periods frem due date of payment
l.ess than § 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2-3years | More than Total
months j year 3 years
(i} Undisputed Trade 89,742.23 2,238.74 20037 | 217.69 - 92,369.02
receivables — considered good
{ii) Undisputed Trade - - . - . .
Recaivables — which have
significant increase in cradit
(iii} Undisputed Trade - - - - : _
Receivables —- credit impaired
liv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - .
= considered good
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - T -
-— which have significant
increase in credit risk
(vi} Dispuled Trade - - - - - -
Receivables — credit impaired
For trade raceivables outstanding as on 31st March 2023, following ageing schedute shall ba given:
{Rupees in Lakhs)
{Particulars Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Yoars -3 years More than Total
months year 3 ysars
85,005.04 346.34 326.53 485.15 546,64 87,718.70

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables — considered good

{iiy Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit

risk
(lii} Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired

iv} Disputed Trade Receivabies
— considered good

{v} Disputed Trade Receivables
— which have significart
{increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables ~— credil impaired

"Refer nole no. 55 for market risk and
credit risk”
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs) ~

As At As At
. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
9  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand 16.45 20.22
Balance with Banks; :
Current Accounts 3,336.68 5,723.10
3,363.11 5,743.32
10 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
FDR's with Banks as Margin Money 11,805.13 8,232.68
FDR's with Banks as Security 1,615.70 1,585.92
13,420.83 9.818.60
11 LOANS
{Loans Receivables considered good ~ Unsacured)
Others 17,831.56 2,686.31
{Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk)
Loans to Others ' _ 181.18 181.18
L.ess: Provision for doubtful advance 1181.18) {181.18)
17,831.56 2,686.31
"Refer note no. 42 for Loan repayable on demand”
"Refer note no. 55 for credit risk and markef rigk”
12 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Accrued Interest on FDR's 131.26 92.41
Fixed Depaosits (Maturity less than 12 months}) 168.82 -
Advances (Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received) 315.97 329.28
Others Receivable 105.36 100.36
721.41 522.05
13 CURRENT TAX
Current Tax Liability
Direct Tax Payable 57888 106.69
Less: Advance Tax & TDS 2,004.19 1,268.62
’ 1,425.31 1,161.93
14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses 380.85 275.80
Batance with govemnment authorities 3,239.28 2,883.25
Other Advances 585.31 446.29
4,215.44 3,605.34
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Notes t¢ Gonsolidated Financial Statements as al 31st March 2024

As AL
31st March, 2024

15 EQUNTY SHARE CAPITAL

(Hupees in Likhs)

As At
31st March, 2023

Authorised Share Capital: 2,560.00 2,500.00
2.50,00,000 Equity Shares {FY Z.SO,DO,DGQ Equity Shares) of Rs.10/- each
issued, Subscribed, Called & fulfy Paid -up shares: 1,074.00 1,074.00
(3) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and a1 the end of the reporting period:
As At 3ist March, 2024 As At 31st March, 2023
Equity Shares No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Held Held
Al the beginning of the year 1,07 ,40,000 1,074.00 147,460,000 1.074.00
Issued during the year ; . . N R
Outstanding al the end of the year 1,07 ,40,00¢ 1,074.00 1,07,40,000 1,674.60

{b} Rights, preference and restrictions attached to Equity Sharses:

The company has at present only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ each share, Each shareholder is entitied for one vote per share heid & entitled
to dividand in proportion ef their shareholdings. In the event of Biquidation of the company, the hoiders of the equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of

the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their sharehoidings.
(¢} Details of Sharsholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

As At 31n1 March, 2024 As At 31st March, 2023
Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares Parcentage of No. of Shares Percaniage of

Heid Holding Held Holding
Sh. Hemant Jain 13,15,200 12.25 13,15,200 12.25
Sh. Kamal Jain 13,14,750 12,24 13,14,750 iz.24
Sh. Pushp Jain i 13,15,050 12.24 13,15,050 12,24
Briadard Financers Pvi. Lid. 12,00,000 117 12,00,000 1117
Siddhi Shree Vincom Pvi. Lid. 12,08,022 11.28 12,09,022 11.26
Sh. K. L. Jain 9,75,000 a.08 8,75,000 5.08

- Mangalshree Suppliers Pvt. Lid. : 8,986,200 8.36 8,98,200 8.38

Pioneer infra-Constructions (P} Lid. 7.50,750 6.99 ¥.50,750 6.99
Smil. Sushila Jain . 6,75,000 6.2 5,75,000 6.28

(d) The aggregate shareholding of the prometers and promater group as on

As At 31st March, 2024 As Al 31st March, 2023

Naine of the Promoters No, of Shares Percentage of % Change No. of Shares Parcantage of % Change

Hald Holding during the Heid Helding during the

year © year
A, Promoter
Sh, Hemant Jain 13,15,200 12.25 - 13,15,200 12.25 -
Sh. Kamal Jain 13,14,750 12.24 - 13,14,75¢ - 12.24 -
Sh. Pushp Jain 13,15,050 1225 - 13,156,050 12.25 -
Sh. K L. Jain 8,785,000 9.08 - 9,75,000 8.08 -
Smt. Sushila Jain 8,75,000 §.28 - 6,78.000 6.29 -
: B, Promoter (Group

Siddhant Jain 1,500 . - 1,500 0.01 -
Magter Harsh Jais (through his puardian Mr, Pushp Jain) 1,500 6.01 - 1,500 o B
Ms. Harshita Jain (wough his guardian Mr, Pushp Jain) 1,500 0.01 - 1,500 o0 -
Karan Jjain 1.500 0.0t - 1,500 6.0y -
Chetan Jain 1.500 am - 1,500 0.0% -
Supreme E Solutions Privale Limited 5,24.280 4.89 - 5,24 280 489 -
Times Technosoft Privale Limited 450,000 £.19 - 4 50,000 4,19 -
Prithvi Sound Product Company Privale |imited 4G 448 0.43 . 45,448 043
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16
a)

5}

c}

d)

17

18

19

20

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March 2024

OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium Account
Balance as at the beginning of the period

Balance 25 at the end of the period

Capital Reserves

Balanca as at the beginning of the pericd

Add: Exchange fluctuation on investment with foreign subsidiary
Balance as af the end of the period

Retained Earnings

Balance &s at the beginning of the periog
Add; Profit for the year

Less: Dividend {Including Tax)

Other Comprehensive Income

Batance as at the beginning of the period
Add: Adjustment of Planned Assets (Gratuity)
Add, Fair Value of investment

Add: Exchange Fluctuation Difference

Net Balance of Other Comprehensive income

BORROWINGS-NON-CURRENT

Secured

Vehicle Loan

Secured with HDFC Bank Ltd, by Hypothecation of Vehicle
Repayable in monthly instalments in next 5 months

Less Current Maturity of Long Term Bomowings

Term Loan
{Secured Tarm loan from HOFC Bank
Less Cument Maturity of Long Term Borrowings

Unsecured
Bosrowings from Direclors
Others

LEASE LIABILITIES-NON-CURRENT

Lease Liability
~Refer note no. B0 for lease Eabiity”

PROVISIONS-NON-CURRENT
Provisions for employee benefits Ex-Gratia
Provisions for employee benefits Gratuity

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Security Deposits
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As At
31st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As At -
31st March, 2023

3,819.60 3,818,60
3,819.60 3,818.69
486.28 422.34
(0.02) 63.54
486.26 486.28
76,824.51 78,323.20
8,122,890 {2,471.84)
- 26.85

84,947 41 76,824.51
3.022.05 243945
(10,77} 3.08
51568 135.48
103.19 444 04
3,630.15 3,022.05
92,883.41 84,152.41
- 164.96

- 164.96

- 25.64

. 138.32

669.98
148.89

1.50 1.50
522.59 139.82
71B.84 444.04
716.84 444,04
165.19 138.77
160.57 138.23
325,76 278.00
358,41 67.62
358.41 £7.82
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Nates te Consolidated Financial $tatements as at 31st March 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs)

As At As At
31st March, 2024 31sl March, 2023

21 BORROWINGS-CURRENT
Secured, Repayable on Demang
From Banks:

Cash Credit Facilities 32,285.70 28,087.51
Buyer's Credit in Foreign Currancy 11,540.64 5,926,158
43,827.34 34,613.67
Unsecured
Loans
Related Parties 937.8¢ 1,583.64
837.81 1,583.64
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings : 148.8% 28.84
148.8% 26.64
"Refer note ne, 43 for Borrawing from Banks 44,914.04 36,223.95
22  LEASE LIABILITIES
Current Maturity of Long Term Lease Liability 185.57 120.38
“Refer note no. 80 for lease labiity” 185,57 120.38
23  TRADE PAYABLES
2] dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 250.38 61.49
b} dues of treditors other than micro enterprises and smalf enterprises .
Related Parties ) 336572 4,156.66
Others ' 85,486.57 80,516,74
¢ } disputed
dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Qthers - -
89,102.67 84,734,838
“Rafer nole no. 48 for MSME Disclosura”
"Raler note no. 50 for Trade Payable Ageing”
24 OTHER FINANCIAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Injerest accrued 35.44 45.46
Retention Money 37.92 -
[nterest payable Term l.oan and Debenture 4.85 -
Qutstanding Expenses 7523 -
Derivative Liabilities { MTM on FX forward Contracl) S 32.49
153.44 T7.85
25 QTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Liabilties 28370 22332
Interest Received in Advance 316 -
Advances From Cusiomers 1,064.30 1,581.08
Expense Payables 1,248.03 1,122.56
2,609.13 2,936.94
26 PROVISIONS .
26,95

. Provisions for employee benefits Gratuily
: 26.95
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

{Rupees in Lakhs}

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale from Trading Concern 4,04,959.64 4,23,769.48
Sale from Manufacturing Concern 1,603.26 12,804 67
QOther Operating Revenue 654.44 920.83
; 4,07,217.34 4,37,454.98
28 OTHER INCOME
Interest on FDRs 725.53 322.93
interest on Right-of-use Assels 3.95 4.48
Reclassified Net Cumufative (Loss)/ gain
on investment in Equity Share Carried at - 111,90
FVTOCH
Interest Other's 1,635.47 : 955.48
Rent ’ 386.42 355.33
Bad Debls Recovery (Net of Write off) - : 34.03
Misc income 379.23 318,32
Profit on Sale of Shares & Mulual Fund (Net) 34.35 366,15
Business Support {Net) - -
Bank Guarantee Fees - -
Dividend 847.30 36.93
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assels 21.05 -
4,039.30 2,496.57
29 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening Stock 188.25 510,52
Less: Stock wioff from Capital Reduction accounts 892
Add : Purchases 1,457.33 11,387.00
1,645.58 11,887.60
Less; Closing Stock 265.27 188.25
. 1,380.31 11,699.35
30 PURCHASE OF STOCK.IN-TRADE
Purchase of Traded Goods 3,75,067.82 42878577
Import Expenses 10,166.99 11,896.28
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Effect 1,013.76 5,038.33
3,86,248.57 4,45,720.37 -

31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF EINISHED GOODS & STOCK-IN-TRADE '

Cpening Stock

Traded Goods 78,215.04 §3,248.4
_ Finished Goods 216.40 245.20
78,431.44 53,493.54
Less : Closing Stock

Traded Goods ) C 72577162 78,211.67
Finished Goods . : 23467 216.40
72,812.29 78,428.07
5,619.15 (24,934.53})

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES i
2,396.15 1,924.17

Salaries & Wages *
Contribution to Provident and other funds 76.02 77.20
Staff Weffare Expenses 88.58 6461 ‘%\
2,560.75 2,065,97 -
RAE A

* Included Managerial Remunaration Rs.440 Lakhs {PY Rs.Ni)

NEW pens
FRH - 604 ii%ﬂ
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33

34

35

a}

b}
<}

Notes to Standajone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 318t March 2024

Year Ended

31st March, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs})
Year Ended
31st March, 2023

FINANCE COST

Interest Paid 3,398,586 1,586.52
Bank Charges & Commission 167.14 299.07
Interest on Right-of-use Lizbility 83.74 £4.48
3,645.44 1,980.67
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent 81.77 4565
Rates & Taxes / Fees 29.69 48.76
Repairs & Maintenance 127.78 91.07
Insurance Expensas 8.40 7.7
Power, Electricity & Water B86.93 41.55
Cansumable Stores, Spares Parts Consumed 0.80 1.78
Telephone & Mobile 11.81 22.34
Postage & Courier Charges 9.78 23,28
Printing, Stationery & Computer expenses 29.85 29.43
Travelling and Conveyance 255.81 226,66
Vehicle Running & Mainienance 42.15 3234
Advertising & Publicity 0.61 16.75
Business Promeotion 254.28 200.68
Brokerage & Commission 430.03 519.60
Export Expenses 60.15 139.54
‘Freight Expenses 2,541.32 2,961.09
Consultancy, Legal & Professional Fees 185.41 284,83
Membership & Subscriptions 86.75 56.40
Director Silting Fee 1.70 1.80
(Gain/i.oss on MTM on FX forward Contract - 32.49
Miscellansous Expense 150.01 283.90
Comorate Guarantes Charges 138,55 -
CSR Expenses- Refer Nofe 51 313.60 380.00
Provision for Expected Credit Losses {17.83) 4.00
Provision for doublful debts - 199.45
Auditor Remuneration- Refer Note 45 18.51 17.6%
4,817.67 5,571.48
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The disaggregation of changes 1o OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown beiow:
R ment of Defin fit plan:
items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (14.94) 4.1
Income Tax refating 10 items that will not be reclassified (o Statement of Profit 378
and Loss ; {1.03)
Exchange Fluctuation Difference : 103,75 " 444,04
Remeasurment of Fair Value investment -
lterns that will not be reclassified fo Profit or Loss 672.30 288.52
Income Tax relating to items that wili not be reciassified to Statemest of Profit 156.62)
and Loss : ( {87.21)
608.25 - 668.43
d) Remeasurment of Fair Valye Investment
Iterns that wil be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
Net cumulative (gain)ioss reclassified 1o statement of profit and loss of
investment in equities carried at fair value through other comprehensive income - (t11.90)
Income Tax refating net cumulative gain reclassified to statement of profit and
ioss of investment in equities carried at fair value through other comprehensive -
income 26.07
. {85.83}

Aduarial Gain on Gratuity and increase in fair valuation of investments along with its tax COMpOnent are recognise

InCome.

13%

d in other comprehensive
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Note 18, Famings per Share;

[Rugves i tasie}
Particuiars 13t Mareh 2024 2154 Mereh 2023
{Rs. per share} {Ra. per shacs|
Brsk EPS
From continuing aperation 7363 23.00)
From discontinuing cperation . -
Olivied EFS
From contisuing epesation 7563 e
From discontinuing oparation . -
36.9 Basic Exming per Shere
The eernings and woightad dvarage number of equity shares ussd in calculalion of basic seming per share-
! [Rupatr In Lakhi}
Partic ey 31st March 7024 3t March 2023
Profd sttiibulable 1o equity hotders of the Group:
Contirwdrg cperalions B,122.80 {2.471.34)
Discontinmang operations M -
Earnirsgs used i calcutetion of Basic Eaming Per Share 512290 (2. 471,54}
Weightad svarage numbar of shams for the purpose of Sa1ic eemnings per shase 1,07,40,000 1,07,40,000
3£.2 Dihnted Exrring per Share
The earmsings #nd waighiad svarage number of equity shares ussd in caleuiztion of diuted eaming e shure:-
{Rupees bn Lathe}
Particulers 31t March 2024 Jist March 2023
Profit anntxAsbia fo ePuity holders of the Group:
Continuing eperations B,122.90 (2.471.843
Discontinuing operslions - -
12200 2A71.64)

Eamings used in calcwZation of déuted Exming Per Share from continuing oparations

The waighleit nursber of equity sharss for the purpase of diluied saming par share roconcies lo the weighied averege number of equiy shares usad in caicuiation of basic

taming per share as follows:

Patticulars

J1st March 2024

1ixt March 2023

Weightad avarage number of Equity shares used in caluiation of basic eamings psr
shara

Eftect of gliution:

Shate Options .

Weightad aversge aumber of Equily shares used it caicuation of dited semings pac
ahare

Hote 3T.Empioyss Benvefit Dhiigation

£,07 40,000

1,07,40,00¢

1.67,40,000

1,07,40,000

The Group obiained reports s requirsd by ind AS 19 (Emplayse Beqafits) based on which disclosures bave baen made In the Anancist stalement for the yeer andad March, 31

2024. The disclosuren a3 raquived by the Ind AS 19 ern s balow.

Deftrved Baneti Plen
Gratuity
The Group makes annus! coninibutions 1o an income tax approved irevocable trust gredulty fund 10 finance the pisn Exztdity, & funded dafined beneft plan for qualifying
smployoes. N
Actusrial Assumptions
Pariiculark 3ist March 2024 21st March 1023
. Dizounting Rate T.19% 7.19%
W) Fufurs Salery incraase G.00% 8.00%
Particulers 318t March 2034 318t March 2023
Retramenl Age (Years) &0 60
Moriaity rates inchusive of provision for disabiity 100% of IALM (2012-14)  £00% of LALM (2012-14)
Adirilion st Ages Withdrgwa| Rate Withdrawal Rate
Up 10 30 Yeary 3.00% 1%
Fram 31 10 44 years. X 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years - 1.00% £.00%
Balance Sheet and relrted snalysis {Rupass in Lakhs)
rHCUArE 31sf March 2024 st March 2023
Predent Value of the obkgalion st end 13748 164.45
Fuic vEiue of plan assels. ERER) 26553
Unlunded LisbEikyfprovision in Balance Sheel 1387 120.86
The g in the Income
Particuiars 315t March 2024 31ae March 2023
Todal Service Cost 26.83 18.31
Net interest Cost ) 8.92)
12

Expansa secognizad in the Income Statement
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Ciher Comprohensive lncome {OCH

Net cumufative unrecognized actuznial gainfloss} opening -
Actuarial gain / foss} for the year on PED 13.89 436
Actuarzl gain Ktoss} for {he year on Assel ) . {1.08) {D.25)
Unrecognized actuarial gaint(loss) at the end ol the year 11854} 4.1
Change In Net Dafined Senefit Obligation
Net defined benefd fiability 5 the start of the pericd £120.88) {70.98}
AcPuisdion adjustment (1583
Tolal Servics Cot 093 3
Net Imarest cost (incame) {842 5100
Re-measuramerts {14,294} iy
Tontribution paid to the Fund {20.90; {59.000
BeneM pai? directly by Ine anterprise - -
Net defined benelt Habilty a5 the and of the period {130.67) {120.88)
Senwitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation
1) lmpact of trwe change in discount rate X

sant Vil L of 18T .48 164.45
impact dus fo incresse of 0.50% (7.76) (7.34)
Impact due to decreese of &.50 % B.40 794
Impact of the change in salary Increate

3 2y of nd of th; i 748 164,45
fhpac due fo increass of .50% 757 O T4

{1.08) {8.63)

Impect dus to decrease of G.50 %

Sensitivities dun 1o mortakty & withdcawasls are not mﬂéﬂal & hance impect of changs dut 10 these no! celculated.
Sensitivitins 23 7ate of incraase of psasions In paymer, rate of increzse of pensiorik before retirament & Hfe expactancy are nol epplicable.

Note J6.Investment Properties

i} Leass Arrangemants

The Gtoup has vadous premises under operating lease #Tangemants, Theass are canceflabie and range hatween 11 modths i 5 yours which are renewabie by audusi
consen! on Mutually agreeable lsems. The Group has teken Interest frae #acurity deposit under cerain agreaments,

U} Amount recognised In proift o foss for Investment properties .
Renial Income 38E.£2 35633
Copreciation 3036 3161
Rents! Expnses P : 038 D45
Profit from lavesiment properties I55.68 207y
{fill) Extimation of falr vaius

The Company has bwo properties thal have baan considered ag Building under Bwvartmant properties, The fair value of the laasad properies is estinaied 21 Rx, 5573 Ixkhs.

Thue fair valustion is based on valuation tepadt by the approves valuars,

tiv} immovable Property held for rental income and capital apy (asaifind B in prapedy as per ind AS 49,
Note 30. Intangible Agzets under development
intzngibia sssets under deveiopment spaing as on 313t Mar 2024 in Jakns|
Amount it Fiengidle assels undsr devalopmerd for & pericd of
Intangible
aszets under Lexs than 1 year 1-2 yoar 2-3 Your More then 3 Yaear Total
id 8,
ijod,ls in 62.33 . - - $2.33
Total §2.33 = = = §233
3 jble xesets under develop zgeing o3 on 31t Mar 2023 i In Lakhs,
Amount in infangible a3sels under deval BT 1or 8 peros of
imangible
E5Inls under Lest than § year 1-2 year 2-3 Your Moew than 3 Year Total
deysioomeot
Projacts in . - . . .
[EEaELs,
Total - - - - -
Note 30, Capital Working Progres
Capital Working progres ageing A on 3t Mar 2024 [Rupess bn Lakhs)
N Amourd in Capitsl Working progras undar deve| rt foc a pariod of
| Crpitat Vorking progres - Leas than { year 1:2 year A3 Year Mare than 3 Year Totat
Projects in B4ET4 25207 - - 1093.75
|POgress
Towsl 241,74 25202 - - 10932.75
intangible assels unider develop sgeing % on 31t Mar 2423 TRupees I Lisktrs)
_ _ Amount In Casital Working prtgres undar develop for # perlod of
il Working progres Lexs than 1 year 1-2ymar 2.3 Your More than 3 Year Totat
Pro)od:‘h w408 _ - - 354 .08
Total 35403 - - = 354.08
Note 41.Loans end Advantes stc.

' IR Gle, Advance from Cust ., Sundry Credtiors and Sundry Dabors etc, &ce subinct fo reconcBlation, confirmation

Balances i Loans and advances, R
and eonssPusntial adjustments, ¥ any.

in the apinion of the management, the value of Curan] Aiwts, Loans and Advatices, en reaization In the orginary course of business, will nol be ess than the value o which
thess are siwted in the Baiance Shael, sxcept untesa stated otherwise. The Provisien for att kiawre Liabitty Is agePuate and not in excess of the SMOUNT Consikaarsd feajonzbly

necessary.
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Nare 42.40ans 20d Advances

Loans or Advancesia ihe nature of 'oans have Deen grantad either severalty of jeinlly with any ciher person, that are repayable on demand of without specifying any tems or

period of repayment are &3 follows
{Pupres Iy Lekhal
3151 March 2024 Jtst March 2023
Type of Borrower Amount  of lean  orfPercentags to the feuafAmoumt  of  loan orfPorccnhge o the iotel
advanck i the pature oflLoans and Advances fnjsdvince in the nature oflLoans and Advences In
Ipan ousznging 1the natuwre of loany loan sutsiznding the niture of foans
Others 180127¢ 2,887 49
Less: Provision for doubtful sovance {131 .18, {181.18}
“{Cthar fHiei} 17,831.58 150 00% ; 2888 31 100.00%
Promcders e . N | - -
Directors . - - -
KPP - - - -
Tutak 17,EXL.54 0.00% 2,626,31 9.00%

Note 43. Borrowing from Benks
Cre¢h Faciiities are secured as unders

The lacililies sre securd by the firsl chasge on pard passy basis with 2% barks in Coasortium on stecks in Lrzde 8nd dha entite cument assets Ncluding goods in lansit and Book
(ebis and Receivables. Furiher iha ioans ars izad by the of promoier ci Vroup soncerm and some additional properties owned by the company/direciors’

relativesigroup concems, in rspect of Buyers Credlt, Indian Bank;n have given uariries to foreign benks,

The Company has bomowings from anks o financia? inslitdions on the beie of sacurity of cuftent azsels, the Puariedy relums or siaternents of curent sssels fied by he
Company with barks of foancial instiutions ara in agresitsent wih the books of aceound

N Of ik BANK oy s ; e IR T e R B e B a
5 st B T BAaRd RS DR Non Fund Based:on AL DartvRiig T s s L e P,

Stata Bank of india 12,900 30,000 1,006 42,000

m J.500 4,000 200 2,100

HOFC 3 500 15.000 489 - 23,880

AXIS 5,000 17,000 600 22 500

KOTAK 4,500 8,500 50 13,050 1s2230.00

ICICE €500 40,000 - 14,500 |

5CE 2,000 | 5,500 . 7,500

TOTAL 49,000 20,000 2230 1,32.23¢

Note 44. Commitments, Contingant Liabilitles and Centingent Assets
44.1 Capltsl Commitmants ; As w313t March, 2024 Rs.39 Lakhs end 315 March, 2023 Rs 413.24 Lakhs,

“2c Liatitities K Contingent Aseet
7} Contingent Uabilitles and Conligent Assels, #5 defined in Ind AS 37 on “Provisions on Contingenst Liabes and Conlingent Assels”, are disciosed beow. Provia!tet it mate,
H i bacomes peobable that snd suifiow of fulure economic benelits will be rePuired for the Hem previously deakl with ar Conlingent Uiabifity,

{Rupeas in Lakhs
Fankeulam ST oo A8 aE 31 March 20345 50A st J16t Hareh 2023
Bank Guaraniess 532,38 306 060
) K is not pructical of the compeny (o eskémate the ming of cash outhow  any in respect of above steted tontingent abilities.
B} Company doas not axcepl sy reimbarsement from ihird prity in respedt of these contingent iinbiliine.
44.3 Contingant Lisbilties
Demanc aggragating Rs. 1451,49 Iacs hes been raissd by C TR of Customs Ah and C i i of Cusloms Kandla, agains! the company, The sompany

hat dispidnd bath the orders befors the Appefiats Yribunat Cusioms, iy the opivion of the managemant and &3 per fagal advise iaken by the company the demand is highty
Improbable sad harice not provided as hmthwmwms.mmpmhmmyw»mmmum. 1451.49 Lacs,

Hofts 45. Bresk Up of Auditors Remunsration
. [Rupess in Lakhs)
G R B A MR TN RO LS i BV A MRTCR 01T S ord

B
Audiorns

~AucH Fee 1241 11.19

Payment lo Tax Audiors 8,50 0.50
Payroant 1o Cost Audlors 2] .00
Payment to intemal Aucitors 4.00 400

‘ 18,54 LEXT
Note 46 Datak of U, ged Farsign ¥ #xp are a3 under:

JRupees i Lakhs)

Fiiicutars As at 215t March 2024 As ot 3138 March 2023
Un-fiedged Foreign Gurrency Payable : 93,106.82 41,765.69
Feote 47. Na amounts are dus for deposits sl the Batance Sheet date 15 te Invesior ion and Protection Fund.
Nots 48, MSME Disclosurs  °
The compay has nol fvrd Cor ioas [rom sy supgl 3 their status of ion under Mitto, Smafl and Medium Enlerprises Deveiopmant Act, 2006 and

a3 such, kis presumnd that they are nof registered under fhe Azt In case of suppiier wha have confimmed their MSME status folfowing information Is disiosed as por the Saction
22 of the Micra, Smafl and Mediam Esterprises Davaiopmend Acl, 2006 1 )

memmwmmmmmmmmmmwmunwmucmammmyu:

Mopees in Lakhs)
Partcuisrs As st 318¢ March 2024 Ax at 31at March 2023
Principal Unpaid as al 3158 Murch, 2024 250.38 61.49
inlerest accrued thermon and unpaig ML N
250.38 6148

Total amourt outstanding ks a1 M5t March, 2026
¥} The amount of interest paid by tha buysr in ieans of secticn 15, l!ongwimlmlmm‘almcpawnemmm!omsuppﬁ«bmnd!heappoi'mma-yméimm accounting

yoar,
Principal paid beyord appoinied day duling the year NIL Ny,
intersst paid dhaing the year HIE NI

#) The amount of irierest due and payabie for the paricd of deiay in making paymerd (which have been Paidt bt beyordt the appointed day during the year) but withous adding
the inteves! specified under this Ack;
Imterest due and payable as al 31st March, 2024 NiL MIL

#) The amaoord of imfarest atcnved and remaining unpeid o the sad of each accounting year,

interest dus and pavable for lhe year ended 3§50 March, 2024 Nl . NiL
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v) The amount of fynher interest tamaining due and payzbie sven in the succeeding years, until such dale when the interast dues as abovs are @ttudlly paid to the small
aaterprise, for the purpose of disalfowance as deduclitin expanditure under secion 23 - ML,

Note 43, Sl of Sheres of Assoclate
Quring the current financial year the company has solg 4100 No. shares of Hamleg Mastic Goods P Lig (Asspciate Company) for 2 consideration of R 35.01 Lack. After the

sale of these shares Hamiog Plastics Gaods P Lid ceased to be an Associate Cormpany,

Nate 50. Trade Paytie Ageing

For trade payasia outstending as on 15l March 2024, following ageing schedule chall by given:
[Rupees {rr Lekhs}

Paricutar Outstanding for foliowing perlads (rom Sue oale
Loes thae T Year 1-2 year 2-3 Year More than 3 Yasr Total
IMSME 250.38 - - j . 250.28
Olhers £85461.39 236,72 28.41 27.06 B8B852.24
ADispuied dues MSME
Dispuled duas Olhers

For trade poysbhe outstanding ss on 3ist March 2023, fotlowing sgeing schedute shull be given:
{Rupees irn Lakhs]

Outstanding for following pedods from dus date

P Lass than 1 Year 12 year 2:-3Year Mo than 3 Year Totat
MSME §1.49 - - - §1.49
[Cihars 79461.40 73.83 2M4.78 - T97TC.02
Disputed dues MSKME
Disputed dues Othary

Note 51, Corporate Socit Responsibility (CSR}
») CSR amount rePuired lo ba spent s per Section 135 of the Comparies Ad, 2013 read wih Echedive VI theraal by the Comgany duriag the yaur is Re,.32.54 Lekhs

(Previous Yeur Rs.377.81 Lakhs)

) Expenditues feiated 1 Corporaie Sacie! Resp iRty it R$.313.60 lakns (Previous Year Rs.380 Lakhs)
[Rupews In Lathn)
31st March 2024 313t March 2023
4 a3 par Seclion 135M0wrlp¢nielw_2g13} 312.54 T
457 238
307.97 37543
g the year 31340 380
31360 000
0.00 .00
31180 380.00
313.60 380.00
C. Set off avaiabie for suc ing yemrs 5.63 £87
E. Amount unapent during the year Shaifan at the and of year - -
F. Todat of Years shorfall - -
G. Raason for shorlall . +
R.thrclpmvimmsmdcwithmwlnlﬂmwmwwenmmoawdwlnbmnbnmt . R
imavenents i the provision during ther year shoid ba shown saparally

Spacify the reasonix), if the company has falled to spend the two parcent of the avarage net profit ax per saction 135{5) Nol Applicable

Detxlis of R-!aw party Transaction ([Rupess In Lakhs}
St.No. Nanwe of mc Campany H Nature of trensaciion by tha Company i et March 2024 | 11sl March 2073

1 KLJ F | Promoling Educalion & SIGH development I 31300 | N

Detait of Amvount spent towards CSR given beiow:
MNature of CSR activities

Fardcuiar

Heatth {Construction/acquisition of assets)

Health Education & Skifl Developmint Activity
Total

J1at March 2024

3160
J11.60
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Matex 52, Adati
& The list of su

Informotion
ries and assoctates included In consolidation are meniioned below:

K i J Resources LimHed
Ragd. Othcs: &, Camas Biret, Kolkatz-T00017

COUNTRY OF ﬂmOvUﬂﬂOZ OF FROPORTION OF
INCORPORATION OWNERSHIP CWNERBHIP
Hame INTEREST 31 NTEREST 3"
MARCH, 2013 MARCH, 2022
Brokenniis Townships and Resors D, LW, (Subsidiary) Indig 100% 0%
Springate Townshing and Resons Pw, Lid, (Subeidiary) Itdin 100% 100%
KLY Speciatily Chemical Pyl Lid, {Subsitieng India 100% 0%
Alamonte Townships and Resors fvi, Lid, ﬁwnvm_mwn_i . india 100% 100%
Muitey View Townships Pt Lid {Subsidinry} Ingia 300% 100%
KiJ Resources OMCC  (Forelgn Subsidiaryy Dubal (IAEY 100% 100%
KLJ Resources PTE Lid, {Subsidiary of KLJ Resolirces DMCC) Singapare 100% 100%
KL3 Orpanic iland) Limited.  {Associale of KLJ Resources DMCC) ThaHana 27.8i% 27.84%
[Lakalang Chemicpis findia) L1d. Subsidiary) India 100% -
Sidhok Real Estale Prvate Limied (Subsidiary) India 100% 100%
AR Builsiecn Privaie Limied  (Suberiary) Tndia T00% 100%
Hamiog Flastic Goods Pt Lid.___(Assomiate vg 1o 14.05 35, Indls o% 24%

& Additicnal Informatian (s requiced by Sch-i of Ihe Compantes Act, 2013):
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NAME OF COMBANY NET ABSETS L.E. TOTAL ASSETS MINUS BHARE iN PROFIT OR {LOSS) $HARE iN OTHER COMPREHENGIVE INCOME | SHARE i TOTAL COMPREMENSBIVE INCOME
TOTAL LIABILITIES . .
A% % GF Rupaset Io Ixkha A% % OF Rupaws in lakhs AS % OF Rupeas in Iakhs A3 %OF + Rupsss in lakhs
CONSOLIIATED NET CONSOLIDAYED CONSOLIGATED CONSOLIDATED
ASXEFS PROFIT & LO3S OTHER TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME INCOME -
Hit Resources L1d, {Paren Coy d.01% S141870 47.55% 3,882 20 100.00% 4 50 50.01% 4.386.70
1Brokeshills Townships and ResnAe Pvi LTd Jindian subsidiary) 0.01 % 14 -0.01% <0.61 c..oo# D00 .a,ow# Has
Sptingdale Townshins and Resons Pul, Lid. {indian yybsidisry) -0.01% -7.1d .c.n;#, -0.80 0.00% 400 -0 o,;# .aoa
e S SRR
Allamante Townshis mza.zmmnam Pl Lid__(indian subsidiary] -G.0t% -7.28 HH% ~081 0.00% 000 Q0% ,m.ep
Valloy Yiew .qoz.um‘.._m 1 Pvt t1d. (indisn subsidiary} H01% 851 -0.61% «{.81 0.00% 6.00 -0.01% .n..a_ ,‘
0 . e e
KL Resources DMCC (Forsign scbsidiarny * 8.50% 3,145.00 A5 800.19 0.00% 0.08 9.27% 5018
R iR es EMGE TFar L ) - e
Sadhak Rea! Estale Privale Limitad Indian subsidiary) -0.18% 17058 £.58% 233,48 W.m..o* 0.06 082% 146
AK Buildiech Prvale Limited. {Indian subsidisry} 0.A40% 384 57 0,00% .34 0.00% 0.3 0.00% .,o,u_
L] Specialiy Chemical Pyt Ui (imian subsitiar: G00% T FEIL T 6 5o% G0 001% YT
Hamlog Piaslic Goods P, Lid {Associaie) 0.00%, .04 0.00% 0.08 0.00% .00 0.00% 00
Lakeiang Chemicals {India] Ltd, {Iindien subsidiary} B.40% 2.435.70 41.99% 3410.78 0.00% 0.00 _3EII% w..:a,qw .I!Pnji!..
TOTAL To0,00% 35.303.01 305, 50% 2080 100,005 50450 10000 FZCME, A ¢ .A_.M/MM\
* Inchuding KLs Resources BYE L8, Forelgh sobakilary of KLJ Rasowess DMOS snd X1 Qegardc (Fhaland} Limited Avsociste of KLJ Rasources DMCE, ﬂ.u..l.m..a w.“ _" _ ﬁ\\..Wh..
AL
= { KALIMDERODRWY \ T2
* | NEWDELALEN |
NG00/
A 0../;4

o
Jred Aot
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KL JResources Limited
Regd. Office: 8 Camac Street Kolkata-700047

Note 53 Disclosures In respect of indian Accounting Standard {ind AS-24) 'Related Party Disclosures’ as specified under
Ot %3 Isection 133 of the Companies Act,2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rule 2014 {as amended):

1 Enterprises where control exists:-

Subsidiarfes;
Atamonte Townships and Resorts Pyt Lid.
Brokenhills Townships and Resorts Pvt. Lid.
Springdale Townships and Resaris PVL Lid.
Valiey View Townships Pvt Lid.

KLJ Resources DMCC

AK Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.

Sachok Real Estate Pw. Lid

KL} Spediality Chemicals Pyt Limited

KLJ Resources PTE Limited (Subsidiary of KLJ Resources DMCC)
Lakeland Chemicals India Limited

2 Other refated parties with whom the company had {ransactions:-

a) Associatas:
KLJ Organic (Thailand} Ltd. {Associate of KLJ Resources DMCC)

b) Entities Over Which KMP Have Control Or Significant lafluence
KLJ Piasticizers Limited.
K1 Organic Lid.
Prittwi Sound Products Co. Pyt Ltd.
Hamlog Plastic Goods Pvit. Ltd.
KL.J Polymers & Chemicals Ltd.
KL$ Polymers Pvt, Lid
HH Buildtech Pvi. Lid.
Inspiration Dealers Pvt, Lid.
Hamiog Traders Pvt. Lid.
KiJ Devetopers Private Limited
KL.J Realtech P Lig
D M Really Developers Pvi Ltd.
High Eximpetra Pvt. Ltd.
Sidhe Petrochemicals Pvt Lid
KL Petroplast Lid
Sonali Overseas Pyt Ltd

<) Key Management Personnel:
Sh. Hemant Jain Managing Director
Sh, Ajai Kumar Gupia Company Secretary
Sh, Suresh Chand Jalther . Chief Financlal Officer
Sh. Dilip Kumar Kam Director
8h. Ram Prakash Makan Director
Ms Kalpana Seth Director -
Sh. K.P.8& Chaghan Director
Sh. Babulal Bhutoria Cirector

) Relatives of Key Management Personnel;
Ms Neetu Jain Sr.Manager (Business Development)
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. K L J Resouwrces Limited
Regd. Office: 8 Camac Street Kolkata-706017

Disclosures in respect of indian Accounting Standard {ind A5-24} 'Related Party Disclosures' as specified under Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013,

53 read with Rule 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) Rule 2014 {as amended}:
§.Ho. jNaiure of Transaction Name of Rejated Parlies Relationship 3isi March, 2024 3ist March, 2023
Rs{inLacs)
al Transactions during the year {Rupees inlakhs}
1 Purchases ¥LJ Plasticizers Limited, Refer -Nole 52.2(b} 165643 812.9
High Eximpgtro Py {id. Refer -Nole 53.2{b) 442 78 831927
KLJ Organic 116 Qatar WLL Refer -Nota 3.2(b} 31,226.95 41,996 89
KLJ Organie £ Refer -Note 53.2{b} 954.43 3z1.97
Sighe Petrochemicais Pyt Lid. Refer -Mote 53.2{(b} 486.42 21253
KLJ Petroplast Lid. Refer -Mota 53.2(b) 1202.28 2.225.0C
Sonali Overseas P Lid Refer Note 53.2(p) 374.24 5.186.74
36,3d3.51 56.135.31
2 Saes KLJ Plaslicizers Limited, Refer -Nole 52.2{b} 1423.28 £.336.36
High Eximpetro Pvi. Ltd. Refer -Note 5§3.2{b} 338652 458.89
%LJ Organic {td, Refer -Nate 53.2(b) 4741.97 §.852 06
HLJ Orgaric {Thailand) Ltd. Refer -Note 53.2{b) 82.37 813
Maxsu Trading FZC Refer -Mole 53.2(b) 000 1,753.35
KLJ Polymers Pyt Lid. Refer -Note 53.2{b) 0.04 280
KLJ Polymers & Chemicals Lid. Refer -Nota 53.2{b} 1068 23840
KLJ Petroplast Lid. Refer -Note 53.2{b} 285726 94117
Sonali Ovarseas Pt Lid Refer Note 53 2{b} - 282325
Sidhe Pelrochemicals Pyt Lid. Refer Neta 53.2(b) 785957 6 BE8. 61
20.572.20 25 142.02
3 Renl Paid KLJ Polymers & Chemicals Lid. Refer -Mote 53.2(b} 8.50 850
K14 Plasticizers Limited. Refar -Mote 53 2(b} 14.16 14,18
$idhe Petrochemicals Pvt Lid. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 400 521
HH Buildlech Pw, Lid. Refer -Mota 53.2{(0) 2.00 G.35
22.66 25.22
4 Rent Received KLd Deveiopers Private Limited Refer -Note 53.2(b} 3.49 -
KLJ Reattech P 11d Refer -Nota 53.2(b) 1.59 -
HLJ Petroplast Lid. Refer Note 53.2(b) 563 .
. 10.4% -
H] Reimy. of Exp. Paid K12 Organic Lid. Refar -Mote 53.2(b) 11.80 -
KLJ Crganic Lid. Cratar WLL Rofer -Mote 53.2(b) 163.12 27330
KLJ Piaslicizers Limitad. Refer Note 53.2(b) 22.90 477
KLJ Patroplast Lid. Refer -Note 53.2(1) 4451
Sonal Overseas Pl Lo Refer Note 53.2(b) 269
Sidhe Petrochemicals Pv Ltd. Refer -Mote 53.2{b) 13.28 -
211.10 325.61
8 Reimb, of Exp Recd KLJ Organic Li. Refar -Note 53.2(b) 3290 56 26
KLJ Piasticizers Limited, Refar -Naote 53.2(b) 212 .18
Sonali Qverseas Pyt Lid Refar -Nate 52.2{1) - 2360
High Eximpetro Pyt. Lid. Refar Note 53.2(b) 29.92 8.07
KLJ Petroplasi Ltd. Refer -Note 53.2(b) 1775 11.88
8270 128.7%
7 Interest Paid Sh.Hemant Jjain Managing Director £68.59 55.97
D M Reatty Developars Pvi Eid. Reter Note 53 2{b} 19.37 10.95
KL Devalopars Pyt Lid Refar Note 53.2(b} 196.08 -
284.04 66.92
B CSR Expenditure KLJ Foundation Rafer -Note 53.1(b) 313.00 -
3300 .
g Remuneration Sh. Hemant Jain Managing Director 572.29
(Key Managerial Fersonnel) Sh.Suresh Chand Jalther Chiaf Financial Officar 21.91
Sh, Ajsi Kumar Gupta Company Secretary 19.94
Ms Neetu Jain Sr.Manager { Business 19.21
Uevelopment)
Sh. K# § Chauhan Director 37.42
§83.88
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Gisclosures in respect of ngian Accounting Standard {Ind AS-24) 'Related Parly Disciosures’ as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Azt 2013,

53 read with Ruie 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) Rule 2014 {as amended);
. {Rupees in Lakhs)
10 Director Sitting Fees 5h. Dilip Kumar Karn Director 2.35 035
3n Ram Prakash Makan Director 0.50 Q.50
Sh. Ranjeet Ray Banthig Dirsctor 020 082
Sh, Babulal Bhutoria Director 0.20 -
Ms Kzlpana Seth Direclor 0.3% 0.35
1.70 1.80
11 Loans & Advances Given A K Buildtach Pyt 11d. Whally Owned Subsidiary 400.00
- 400.00
12 Loans & Advances Received back A K Buildiech Pvi Ltd. Whally Qwned Subsidiary 400.00
- 400.00
13 Unsacured Losn Taken Sh.Hemant Jain Managing Director 45,00 1515.00
0 M Really Developers Pvi. Lid. Rafer -Nole 53.2(b} 150,00 -
KLJ Developers Pvt Lid Refer -Note 53 .2(h) 4,800,00 -
4,995 00 §.515.00
14 Unsecurad Loan Repaid Sh.Hemant Jain Managing Direcior 920.00 261.35
Ki,J Developers Pvi Lid Refar Note 53.2(b} 4.804.00 -
920.00 261,35
S.MNe.  Nature of Transaction Nane of Related Parties Relationship J9st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
b) utstanding Bala as af 315t
March 2023
1 Unsecured L oans Taken Sh.Hemant Jain Maraging Directer 53172 144439
D M Realty Developers Pvt. Lid. Rafar -Nole 53.2(b} 306.08 138.65
937.81 1,583.64
2 Loans & Advances Given A K Buildtech Pvt. Lid. Wholly Owned Subsidiary 39%.45 399 45
{Pravision of doubiful debt P.Y 24-22) {399.45) {399 45)
Balarice Amount’ - -
3 Trade Payables KLJ Plasticizers Limited, Refer -Note 53.2(b) 3194 25381
KLJ Organlc itd. Refer -Note 53.2(b} . .08
KLJ Organic Ltd. Qatar WLL Refer -Mote 53.2(b} 2,484.74 3,873.94
¥LJ Petreplast Lid Refar -Note 53.2(b) 60221 7.60
3,118.29 4,138.41
4 Trade Receivables KL Piagticizers {imited. Refar -Note 53.2{k) 125.04 432.69
KLS Organic Ltd. Refer -Note 5§3.2(k) 1,004.93 297585
KLJ Organie (Thailand} Lid, Rafer -Nole 53.2(b) - 1,314.83
K1) Crganic Ltd. Qatar WLL Rafer -Nots 53.2(h) 77.78 36.82
KLJ Polymears & Chemicals |.td. Refer -Nots 53.2(b) 234 317
KL{ Petroplast Ltd Refer -Note 53.2(b} 687.12 51.17
$idhe Fatrochemicals Pvt Ltd Refar -Note 53.2{b} 313681 5291.39
’ 5,034.02 10,197.93
5 Remuneralion $h. Hemant Jain Managing Director 450.91 -
(Key Managarial Personnet) Sh.Surash Chand Jaither Chief Financial Officer 270 272
{Including contribution to defined -
contribution plans) Sh. Ajai Kumar Gupta Company Secratary 238 1.97
. Sr.Manager ( Business
Ms Nestu Jain Developmann 2.76 4 fg
Sh. KP § Chauhan Director 8.44 419
477.18 @U?g Xr;}}\
S 2)
=/ B AR Nz
= EAEDICRORY 5
| v duses *)
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Mote 54. Capital mznagement

{Rupors In Lakhej

The compiny Manages fis Caplal i msufe sl e company Wit be able 10 Conbnlie 28 2 (UMD Soncern whiss MARmang the return (0 slakeholder trough nptimization of the debl ans suuity belance, The

capial stuchre of the Sompany compsdses of debt and tulst equity of the company.

Debt Equity Ratio

1Rune b Lokive)

Pacticizlars

As pt 35t Mach
2

Ap 2l Mt March
2013

Botrawing (Note No 17 & 22)

4543663

3.383.77

4543663 26383 7T

Short term detnt
Eouity {Note No.15) 19740 197400
Cther equiy {Note No.16) 288341 8415241
Totel equity $I8ET A1 1522048
Debt equity Ratio [E2) G423
Note 85, Fair Valus mazsuremente
() Finsocisl kstruments by Sategory Frapest i1 Laktd)
Particutirs As a1 315t March, 2014 As at 318t March, 2023
1 FYTPL FNTOGE Amordsed Cout FYTPL FYTOC Amortived Gost
Firnancist Aszets
verimark 570220 - - Al 60 480
Yeade Recaivebles - 97,380.3%5 - - 8 g93.70
Loern - 1781158 - - 25881
Corshy werd Gagh Equivalents - 335014 . . 174332
Bank Eslarces - 12.420.83 - - B.8318.60
Others - A500ss - - 20638
Totel Financial Aveets §782.20 138 476,30 - (KT 1,06 §55.11
Firaclal Linkdiitios
Borrpwings " 4543861 - . IEIEIIT
Tenche Paysbies - 89,102 67 . - B4, T34.50
Leass Iebeitins - B04.41 - - 5442
1Ot : i53.44 - - 1785
Total Financint Llabiktiss - 1,35.597 1% - - 121,741.04

2) Tha cantying senounts of ede Tecedntibics, Bade peysble, cash and ceahy equivaients. and other short Term taceisbles #nd paysbles which sre due {0 be seiBad wihin 12 monthe s conidered 10 the terme
2% thedr felr ywues, dot 10 short teiv hatore.

b} Bottewingu-Cursnt are evaluaied by company on Daremnatins such s intarest Wi, specific Oountry fisk lactors and ofher rick fecions. Baved on T svekadion Mo feir vilue of sch paysbies are nol
different from heir camying amount. As he amount s mmaterie, a0 feic viduation i requined.

£} Mon Cument Loans ghven and Seaurity Deposit have been condinued at taming vk 18 ¥ e

4)nmmmmmmmmmadm&m with vsbse changes gnized in S of Other Comp:
d #1 COdL last KpaF 034 K any, Brough Ofser Comgeniensive Incomme.

{Hy Fair Valwe hlarsrchy
Lavel 1- Quotod prices (unadiusted) in sckve merkets for identica! ssscte o Eabilties

Lavel 2- Inpute olfver fan quoted prives included within Lavel T that are obsarvable Ior the sesate or Rahity, either directly (e, a2 prices) of indivacty (Le. derfved form prices)
Level 3~ inputy. for the assets. or Lablities et are not haved bservieble msrket daie pess)

The following table praseants Bhw e velue moasorement hiornrhy of fnancie! sseets messured ot Faic vilat >

Ar m 3103-2024 {Rupeas b Laihe)
Particulers Leved Levei2 Leveld Totai
Financial Assis
Financiel Asscts #t Fak Vke ¥rough OC)
Irevenlmant s 2082.38 471084 - 878220
106138 471304 - € 78720
As m 3103-2023 {Rupews in Lakha)
Particolsrt Lowel ford 2 Lavel 3 Total
Flnsncisl Assats .
Flonncinl ansets st Fuic Value hrough 001
investment 1483 3% 587083 - 11088
R EL]] 5,670.03 - 7,134.58

N o ued ¥ Twir vk
) Guoted ywestments have been valued besad on market prics quaotation,

&) iovestinant in MutLal Funds have been vilued o8 per NAV desersd on the balence sheat date.

) Imvesbmands in unquelsd squity inetruments se ot held hor widing. They e held lof long term srategic purpose, The company has chosen o designate thess Sweetments st FVOCH, since 1 provides. & mare
mesningful peesoriaion,

d}ﬂnmmnﬂm' ssoets and Sabities othtr than investment Are cormiderdd B be e same e their lar values,
a} o uney ¥ best & in g the e vaiue of ks Snancial inciramens, Howevar, there My Shaent & in sy ¥ , for »t feanciel
utum-mm(ﬂmmwwmmno(neouutwmlnMhmmnmmﬁhnnﬁu&cmhu&nﬂuﬁ--du‘pﬂ-m As such, Tair vakw of
Buarcie nsuments sbseqient i he reporing detes may be difforent kom e amounts reporied of sach 2eporihg dete,

(i) Financtis risk management
Thw Company's principal financiel Rsbiites compriss of Bomawiags, Trede Payebles and othars. The masn prpose of these fnencia? leblides is 80 finance the company’s opasions, The Comoany's princips
Wmnmmtmnm,m,mmmmmmmmmmmmmtm

T}-cm-fuwmhmnmmmwmmmmwuuanmwwwmmwm«mmwummw messred s
with e policies s ek sbjectves, The boand of directors feviews and sgrees pobizien Kr maneging sach of these fek, which are summarissd beiaw::

# Macket Risk
Waciket ik is the sisk that he Taic vadus Of Rture Cash Bows of & fownciad insbuments will fuchutie becacne of changes n marke! prices. Market sk comprises Inleres] eale fnk and foreign currency sk,

# inberust Rate Risk
Falateat rrte dek i Foe ek thal the Teir value of Ature cach Rowa of a financie? snstrumends wil duchas tecauss of chenge ¥ market iverost fate. Compaity i hot exposed to significant ifcres! (ate risk as of the
Sranciel irstrurmants which sre sulect In interast ek arw due 19 be velied within §2 montte snd cary Boed rate of interest,

) Forwigh CusTency Risk
Faceign Gursncy sk i the rink that the Fair Value or Futre Carsh Flows of an axposwre wil Ructunts becasuse of changes in foraipn comency rates, EXposures can anse 00 acooin of the v ssets ang

Tabiities which s denanvinated in cuencies ofher S Indian Rupes.
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The fedowing tebie shaws foreipn curenty exposwces in US Dollar, Buro, AED on basncial nstuments. af the end of (e raporing period. The exporure 16 BE other foreipn ttencies are pot materisl,

{Amount in Lakhs}
Foreign Currency Exposure
Az at 3158 March, 024 As at I1sl March, 2073
Particilere
AED uso AED s
Honpwiogs 130.88 - 991
Trode Paysbles 129.48 984,76 - ] 509.34
A Yotat 11.48 5,121.63 - 58424
&) Credit risk
obligasicne &8 #greed. TO manege thic, the Company periodicaly sasesses fnancs! selabity of customers a0 other

1) Credt fak arises o the poskity tht the counter party miry not be tbie lo selie e
mp-mn‘uki-qim-u:w-:mm&um.w.mamwmnmwmdmum-mnrbmamu.wmm“mmmrwwmm*

of such Hfermation.
mwmpwwm:mded&m-wgwmhmmw’sghummmhnumdamm,nmmilmwmmdwmhumu!mm.ﬁﬂGoaanleu.Pum
Computry pudrariees, sdvance payments snd lacloring & forfieting without rmmhhmwha%mhﬂﬂhmmhhmmmbwmcm

Fmﬂmrtmdmm:hmrm&-mbhw,mu-dab(whinghnw'nnupqmcdm%mcmm,muhnwrmhummuﬂ.
mmm»mhmluummmammu;wumh.w-mmm&, L
mmammmemmmhmmmmwmmmmaﬁrﬂhwxmmmmmmmmmpu-mmenbmar
of KL1 Resources DMCC {Subsidiery) of R, 11483.91 (PY-R0.11304.82)
h&mummammdmwm.mmmmm-mewwmm.mmmmhnarmwmmam.prm
m.mwwuonmmwmmmmm-mmumwwdmmmmemmmmmumuumm-mutmmwmm
wra e and ratew used 1 e proeion matix,

‘thwmomewalumimmvﬂehwdﬂnﬁwﬁlm‘mwoflnyi-#emmnulﬂtMm'mﬂndsl Kacch 2073,

The company K making v on Fade fitied based on E: Credt L nca (ECL) madel, The reconchation of ECL 3 25 fokows
{Farticelers FL-bres-3s) F1Hur-23
| Opering baiance 35,00] 19.00
Charge In startament of profit sind ioxs 0. 6.00)
Charge/ (Radasse) be sintamant o prafic ane luv =17.83; o)
Uikeat during the pear 0.00] 8.9
Brianos #t the v of tor your 7.47] gL
Provision b expected crad lose made i sccondancs with ind AS 109 due W which fwia s change in Trade Racehatie.
) Qhar Financiat Assets i

The Wikeo!f happanded in FY 17-18 sod Company

cmmmmmuahmmwmpwm.hmmsmmhwmmma Bad Debts have been writton off.
i-olrummmumdwmam-nmmi-mmmmmnn«mummmmh«ummummuE»-m&mhupromwmsmm

Aueh.'nuwahlmd--dnq-(twvvﬁmwdlmm-mhmulammﬂumtwudvewﬁﬂmaﬂmhwdblmmdlm
i) Financial instruments and cash duposits
Creait risk trom balsrces with banke and foancia! instiutions i prd with tha
frinciel quotes seceterd from fie couterperty.
) LiusiiRty risk )
Mrﬁlimﬂmmmﬂmhubhbmﬂhwmmnmbﬂmﬂu.ﬂuwmmhhﬁmrﬂby-n-ﬂu.ufuupouk&e,miﬂwuysl-m
-ﬁdniqi&ybmﬂuuuﬁumm,mmmmwmm.mmeMumnmwm.

ore and £ oge om Direciors and Banks. The company brdieves that the workng

The company’s principat sources of lquiRty we cesh and cash equi cavh fow Kwt is g d kom op
u-puiu-admlamhWrm-mmmmmmmmmmmu-nmnuqhhmm vl wrg phven ot

ierest boaing g repaysbie on demend

pokcy, i of sarpive ace mada only with sppeoved with counterpady oo the basis of e

‘_meircmummnu-mumrymummumuaﬂmmmmm-nmhmw

The company Squidity ek i d contraly with ting il
the net Bl or invest e e surpius & 3 range of short drted, secure & fquit instuments including inciading short L2t bank deposits monaytnackel funde Jeverse fepo & sinie fwtument, The poctiolo af
Ehese i oy i dversified b avoid ik 71wty o courtar pady.
Parkk Makurity Profles we i Mt March 2024
Buiow 3 Montho I Horkm 6-12 monthe 1-3 yours 35 Yearn Above 5 Years Total
Borowingm
Non-Curents. - - - - - . .
Cratent 4302734 937.5¢ - - . 4478515
Total 43,827 34 - 781 - x - #4765 15
Porticuism Bekw 3 Monthe 38 Mondhe 812 montm. 1-3 yeurs 35 Yems Aoove 5 Yann Totsl
Bamowingm '
Noo-Curmants - - - - - . -
Cuamont EEY o)) 32.288.70 - - - - 11404
Totad A3 82T 34 3228670 - - - - 7511404
% As at Mt As 2t Jiat
Note 5€.Segment Ra i March 24 March,23
Segmant Revanus From Operation
Indin 7277780 38221014
Dusicle e IBATIN £7.781.37
Tt . 4,19,280.84 43939155
Segrment Result PBT
inda B,585.08 (L4757
Outwide Indks: 966,55 122002
Totsl 2,562.41 (147135
Lew Fianos Cost 384944 1.950.87
Profit  flows) betore Tex [T 2377 A2}
Capitsl Empicyed (Toul Axsst Minus Total Liability }
nda A7.737.08 7803717
Outwicle indie . 8,145.93 T8
Todel : $5,803.01 L RELE ]
Yaur aveded 215t Yaar onded 11st
Mote 5T.ncoma Tex Expenss 2024 208
Eracted fncomw lax rein in Indis spplicable ko the Company 25.168% 25.108%
Prom befora tax 5.02.97 [2,377.42)
Current tax sixpermes on Proft before [az wxpentes ot the enacted income 1sx rate in Inda 148565 {150.89)
Tax wifect of e armounts which ars rot Hpbdt ha} i calcudating taxable income
Pumensmt Deaowsnces ) 01,58 26935
Deducion ynder section 24 of the Income Tax Act [23.12) 7Rt
interest ncome from Joint Venture on abiity slement of compound financie! ingtroment - -
T in respost of earker yean . 240 (120,48}
Income: exempted kam income Lsxes . -
Ditterental iax rate on copital uiew - .
Other o (248.53) [227.48)
Toial Income tax sxpansefcredi) 1,494.81 {82037}
532 72

Concequent 1o reconciliation Aems shown above, the elfactive tax rate (in %) i
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Note £5, Disclorure purtusnt to section 186(4} of the Cempanies Act 2013

75,114.04
Nature of the wransaction {icans givenlinvestment madaiguaranizs givenisasualy provided) & Purpone M'::c:\t, :1:;;‘ M}::c‘h', 3210‘;3
(A} Losn and Advances: [Given fur Business pumpose)

1, Bhadzni Financers Pyt Lid ERETRED 251743

2. Headsian Inlernationa Py, bid 1443 144,29
{Provision of doubiful debt F.Y 21223 {144 15} {144 3%
3. Manaberie Tez Co Limited 3575 26.7%
{Provision of dowblat debl F.¥ 21-22) ) {36.79)
LN isha T logins Pvi Lig 23133C -

. Wicter Chemicals india PviLid 9.81 168868
, Kesar Terminais & Infrastnuciurs Lid. 550,761 -
[7.HFCL Limited 3500 00 -

8. Soy-ser Ediba pvi b §178.27 -

f.0ream Shaper Ertate Pyt Lid J.44 -

Total 17,831.56 2,685 31

(B} Guarantees: {Ghven for idizry's debi}

XLJ Rescurcas DMCC . A

{C) ¥ Fade ere S d under Note 3 - -

Hoie 34, Disclodure porsuait 10 section 248 of the Companies Acl 2012 Struck off tha companias
The copany has not entexed inlo any frmsactions with companics strack ofl wnder section 241 of the Coapanies Act, 2013 o section 360 of Comspanics Acy, 1956
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Note 0. Leases
i} Rights to use assets
Particulars

As at 31st March, 20624

{Rupess in Lakhs}

As at 31st March, 2023

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Opening ROU recognised {net} 505.34 541,97
Add: Additions during the year 524,55 86.71
Less: Depreciation during the year 223.89 185.07
Less: Deietion during the year - 8.27

808.60 505,34

Closing ROU recognised

il} Lease Liability
Particulars

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Opening Lease Liability 554.41 670,86
Add: Additions during the year 524.55 64,27
Add: Interest Accrued during the year 8374 G4.48
Less: Payment 268.30 22563
Less: Delelion during the year - 8.67
Ciosing Lease Liabifity 904.4¢ 564.41
Breakup:
Current Maturity of long term lease fabiiity 185.57 120,38
718.84 444.03

Non Current lease liability

i} Securlty Deposit Paid
Particulars

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees In Lakhs})

Opening Security Deposit 5228 42,50
Add: Additions during the year - {2.44)
Add: Interest Income during the year 3.94 448
Add: Payment - 7.70
Add : Deletion {Termination of Lease) - 0,14
Closing Security Deposit £6.32 5238

bv) Cash Flow during the year

(Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

- Particulars
Low value feases 10.99 15.13
Short term leases 100.09 54.09

v) Extension and termination options

The Company has lease contracts for which are used for regular aperations of its business. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
terrnination options which are further discussed below. )

The Company has several lease cantracts that include extension and termination oplions which are vsed for reguiar operations of its business, These
options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the Company's business needs, Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and temmination options are reasonably certain o be exercised.

vi} Critical judgements in determining the jease term
in determining the lease term, management considers alf facls and circurnstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension eption, or
not exercise a témination option. Extension options {or periods after termination options} are only included In the lease term if the fease Js reasonably

certain 10 be extended (or not terrninated.
The agsessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this assessment and that is within the
control of the fessae,

vii) Discount Rate
Discount rate at which the fease liability is recognised as on the initial application is 10%
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Note §1. The previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified, to the extent necessary, to conterm o the current years figures,

Note €2. Financiaf Viability
The Company has made detailed assessment of its fiquidity position for the next gne year and of the recoverability and carrying values of its assels and

lianitities, and based on the interpal and external information up to the dale of approval of these financial statements including credit reports znd
economic forecasts, has concluded that no adjustments are required 10 be made in the financial results.

The management befieves thal it has considered all the possible Impact of known events arising in the preparation of financia! results. Further company
is of the opinion that there is certainty that company wiff be able lo meet Its all-financial cormnmitrments due in next one year.

Note 63, Representation relate to Fund Advance/ receive by the company on Ultimate Beneficiaries

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources of kind of funds) by the
Company to or In any other person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entities (‘intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend.or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company {Uitimate Beneficlaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any party(s} (Funding Party} with the understanding that the Comparny shal; whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons o entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security o the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries."

Mote 64. Crypto Currency Transaction

The company has not dealt with any crypto currency or equivaient product during the year.

Note 65. Benami Transaction
Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for hoiding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition)

Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

Note 88, Approval of financlal statement
The financiat statements were appraved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th May 2024, The board of directors has recommended & dividend of

Rs.0.25 per fully paid up equity share of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating to .85 Lakhs, which is based on relevant share capital as on 31s{ March, 2024

The accompanying notes to the standalone financlal

statements
For & on behaif of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date f \,\5"
For Kumar Chopra & Assoclates ”
Charteyed Accountants Hamarjt Jain Difip Kumnar Karn
FirmRegistration No, 000131N Manag1 g Director Director
in:008DBSI5 Din:5006 1804
oA & AP e
Surash Chand Jalther

Chief Financiai Officer
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule § of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries and associate for the financial year 2023-24

Part “A™: Subsidiaries

{Amount in Lakhs)

< I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
N'o (Figures in (Figures in (Figures (Figures in (Figures (Figures (Figures (Figures | (Figures

’ Rs.) Rs.) in Rs.) Rs.) in AED) in Rs.) in Rs.} in Rs) it Rs. }

AEtamm?te Brokenh.ﬁls Sprzngd_aie Valley View KL AK Sadhok KLJ Lakeland
Name ofthe | Townships | Townships | Townships | 7l ™ | o o o | Boildtech | Real Estete Speciality | Chemicals
subsidiary and Resorts and Resorts { and Resorts Pvt. Lid. DMCC Pvt. Ltd, Pyvt. Ltd. Chemicals | (India) Ltd.
Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Lid. . Pvt Ltd.

The date
since when 25082014 | 25082014 | 25082014 | 25082014 | 14.052014 | 28022018 | 03.07.2017 | 17.082021 | 27.10.2022
subsidiary 25.08. .08, .08, 08 05, 28.02. 07. 08. Ja.
was acquired
Reporting
period for the Same Same Same Same Same Same Same Same Same
subsidiary Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting | Reporting Reporting Reporting | Reportingng
concerned, if Period Period Period Period Pericd Period Period Period Period
different from
the holding
Company's
reparting
period
Reporting
currency and Dirham
Exchange INR INR INR INR 1AED = INR INR INR INR
rate as on the 22,702
last dote of
the refevant
Financial
year in the
case of
Joreign
subsidiaries
Skare capital 113.00 161.00 109.00 201.00 36.70 1.00 1.00 5.00 1,000.00
Reserves & $.14 (8.44) (8.05) (9.44) 344,05 (386.37) (170.18) (1.54) 3062.03
surpius
Total assets 108.48 156.30 104.73 195.40 580.01 13.70 1.989.00 1414.61 12,997.83
Total 108.48 156.30 104.73 195.40 580.6t 13.70 1,989.00 1414.61 12,997.83
Liabilities
Investments Nil Nil Nil Nil 49.45 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Turnover Nil Nit Nil Nil 1674.92 Ni? Nil Nil 8.513.02
Profir before (0.61) (0.61) (0.60) (0.61} 34.63 €0.31) 63.37 (0.99) (128.84)
faxation
Provision for Nil Nil Nil Nil (1.40) Nil (9.90} Nil {3,539.62)
faxation
Profit after (0.61) (0.61) (0.60) (0.61) 33.23 (0.31) - 5347 (0.99 31.410.78
taxation
Proposed Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nit Nil Nil
Dividend
% of
shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% . 160% 100% 100% 100%
of holding
Company
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Notes:

1. The reporting period for the Company as well as jts all subsidiaries is 317 March, 2024,
2. AED stands for United Arab Emirates Dirham. The value of 1 AED as on 31" March, 2024 is Rs. 22.702
3. The company does not have any associate/ joint venture as an 31¥ March, 2024,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KLJ RESOURCES LIMATED

1

v
) (Dilip Kumar Karn)
ector Director
: DIN: 60G61804

(Hemant Jai
Managing Di
DIN: 00506995

iz«wmj "

{Suresh Chand Jalther) (Ajai
Chief Financial Officer Company S
PAN: AAUPJIZ690R Membership No.: FCS 8020

Date: 27" May, 2024
Place: New Delhi



	6096fd4e9b97b3a907b6fc87cbb5799fb1806760d57b2830637602baf37b173a.pdf
	38ac4809a3ee08d3aab8dfe133b1501c572e8a0895ddae15d529dc47c5c238c9.pdf


